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FINANCIAL CONDITION
UNION COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Federal Grantor/
Pass Through Grantor/County Department
Program Title

Pass Through
Entity
Number

Federal
CFDA
Number

Disbursements

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE/

Ohio Department of Education/
Board of Mental Retardation Developmentally Disabled/
National School Lunch Program 07115-03-04-PU-00
Ohio Department of Education/
Department of Human Services/
Child and Adult Care Food Program 036208
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT/

Ohio Department of Development/
County Commissioners/
Community Development Block Grants/State's Program B-F-93/97/98-073-1/2
Direct Program/
Mental Health and Recovery Board/
Supportive Housing Program OH16T8941701

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE/
Attorney General of the State of Ohio/
County Prosecutor/
Crime Victim Assistance 316400087
Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services/
County Prosecutor/
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 316400087
Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services/
Sheriff's Department/
Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program 97/98-LE-LEB-3073
Direct Program/
Sheriff's Department/
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 95-CFWX4934

Total U.S. Department of Justice

10.555

10.558

14.228

14.235

16.575

16.588

16.592

16.710

$5,346

93,238

98,584

269,150

66,360

335,510

48,130

5,483

20,579

132,542

206,734



UNION COUNTY
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Federal Grantor/ Pass Through Federal
Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA

Program Title Number Number Disbursements
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION/
Direct Funding from Federal Aviation Administration/

Airport Improvement Program 316400087 20.106 93,077
Ohio Department of Transportation

Highway Planning and Construction Agreement 8964 PID #15595 20.205 832,525
Office of Governor's Highway Safety Rep.

County Engineer/

State and Community Highway Safety GR-1 #1068 20.600 14,248
Ohio Department of Public Safety/

County Sheriff/

State and Community Highway Safety 1103 20.600 5,240
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 945,090
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION/

Ohio Department of Education/
Adult Basic Literacy Education/
Adult Education - State Grant Program 114975-AB-51-99 84.002 42,112
Ohio Department of Education/
Board of Mental Retardation Developmentally Disabled/
Special Education Cluster
Special Education - Grants to States 07175-68-SF-98P 84.027 33,510
Special Education - Preschool Grants 07175PG-S198P 84.173 19,791
53,301
Total U.S. Department of Education 95,413
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES/
Ohio Department of Human Services/
Department of Human Services/

Child Abuse Challenging Grants 316400087 93.672 1,813

Independent Living 316400087 93.674 2,676
Ohio Department of Mental Retardation Developmentally Disabled/

Board of Mental Retardation Developmentally Disabled/

Social Services Block Grant 316400087 93.667 32,157

Ohio Department of Mental Retardation Developmentally Disabled/
Board of Mental Retardation Developmentally Disabled/

Social Services Block Grant MH-47-1 93.667 24,204

Medical Assistance Program 316400087 93.778 193,284

Alcohol and Drug Abuse and Mental Health Services Block Grant 316400087 93.992 103,091
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services/

Mental Health and Recovery Board/

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 316400087 93.959 129,380

Medical Assistance Program 316400087 93.778 25,540
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 512,145
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES $2,193,476

The accompanying notes to this schedule are an integral part of this schedule.



FINANCIAL CONDITION
UNION COUNTY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES

NOTE A -- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures (the Schedule) summarizes activity of the
County’s federal award programs. The schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

NOTE B- COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) REVOLVING LOAN PROGRAMS

The County has established a revolving loan program to provide low-interest loans to businesses to create
jobs for persons from low-moderate income households. The Federal Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) grants money for these loans to the County passed through the Ohio Department of
Development. The initial loan of this money is recorded as a disbursement on the accompanying Schedule.
Loans repaid, including interest, are used to make additional loans. Such subsequent loans are subject to
certain compliance requirements imposed by HUD, but are not included as disbursements on the Schedule.

These loans are secured by interests in equipment purchased with the proceeds. At December 31, 1999,
the gross amount of loans outstanding under this program was $10,074.

NOTE C - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS

Certain Federal programs require that the County contribute non-Federal funds (matching funds) to support

the Federally-funded programs. The County has complied with the matching requirements. The
expenditure of non-Federal matching funds is not included on the Schedule.
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35 North Fourth Street

STATE OF OHIO Columbus, Ohio 43215

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Telephone  614-466-3402
800-443-9275

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Facsimile ~ 614-728-7199

www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of County Commissioners
Union County

233 West 6" Street

Marysville, Ohio 43040

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of Union County, Ohio (the County) as of and
for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated June 16, 2000. We did
not audit the financial statements of Memorial Hospital of Union County and Subsidiary, which represents
86 percent and 97 percent respectively of the assets and revenues of the enterprise fund type. We also did
not audit the financial statements of U-Co Industries, Inc, a discretely presented component unit. Those
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and
our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for U-Co Industries, Inc. and Memorial Hospital of
Union County and Subsidiary, is based on the reports of other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The
financial statements of U-Co Industries, Inc., a discretely presented component unit, were not audited in
accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards and accordingly this report does not extend to that
component unit.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to
management of the County in a separate letter dated June 16, 2000.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial reporting
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted
a certain matter involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to
be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our
judgment, could adversely affect the County’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data
consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. A reportable condition is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings as item 1999-60680-001.
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A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that
are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe the reportable condition described
above is not a material weakness. We also noted other matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting that do not require inclusion in this report, that we have reported to management of the County
in a separate letter dated June 16, 2000.

This report is intended for the information and use of the management, Board of County Commissioners,

and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

JIM PETRO
Auditor of State

June 16, 2000



35 North Fourth Street

STATE OF OHIO Columbus, Ohio 43215

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Telephone  614-466-3402
800-443-9275

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Facsimile ~ 614-728-7199

www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM, INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND SCHEDULE
OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES

Board of County Commissioners
Union County

233 West 6" Street

Marysville, Ohio 43040

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Union County, Ohio, (the County) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1999. The
County’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to its major federal program is the responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance occurred with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program. An auditincludes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
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Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would
be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of the County as of and for the year ended
December 31,1999, and have issued our report thereon dated June 16, 2000. We did not audit the financial
statements of Memorial Hospital of Union County and Subsidiary, which represents 86 percent and 97
percent respectively of the assets and revenues of the enterprise fund type. We also did not audit the
financial statements of U-Co Industries, Inc., a discretely presented component unit. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Memorial Hospital of Union County and Subsidiary and U-Co
Industries, Inc. is based on the reports of other auditors. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming
an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of
federal awards expenditures is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular
A-133 and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements
taken as a whole.

This report is intended for the information and use of the management, Board of County Commissioners,

and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

JIM PETRO
Auditor of State

June 16, 2000



FINANCIAL CONDITION
UNION COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505

DECEMBER 31, 1999

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

(d)(D)(@) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material control No
weakness conditions reported at the
financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any other reportable Yes
control weakness conditions
reported at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material non- | No
compliance at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal No
control weakness conditions
reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any other reportable No
internal control weakness conditions
reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance | Unqualified
Opinion
(d)(L)(vi) Are there any reportable findings No
under § .510?
(d)(Q)(vii) | Major Programs (list): Highway Planning and Construction
(20.205)
(d)(@)(viii) | Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs | Type A: > $ 300,000
Type B: all others
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? Yes

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

Finding Number

1999-60680-001

During 1999, the County Child Support Enforcement Agency (CSEA) fully implemented the Support
Enforcement Tracking System (SETS). SETS is a federally mandated system established to record and
issue child support payments for each county. Since implementation, CSEA has experienced difficulties in
reconciling SETS to its bank accounts and has encountered various errors in relation to disbursements
made by SETS. The State of Ohio is responsible for SETS and has guaranteed funds to correct all errors

with the system.
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UNION COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FIN

DINGS

OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505

DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Continued)

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS (Continued)

Finding Number

1999-60680-001 (Continued)

The County CSEA receives payments for child support and enters the data into SETS. CSEA has various
monitoring controls in place to ensure that accurate data are input into SETS. At the time of payment, it
becomes the responsibility of the State to ensure that accurate payments are made to the guardian of the
child or children. However, many errors have come to the attention of CSEA that have been attributed to

SETS and not CSEA.

We recommend CSEA and the State continue to coordinate their efforts to eliminate the cause of errors and
correct the limitations imposed on the reconciliation process.

3. FINDINGS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None

10
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It is my pleasure to present Union County’'s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for year ended December 31,1999, This CAFR conforms to generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). This report contains basic and supplemental financial statements and
other financial and statistical information, which provide a complete and full disclosure
of all material financial aspects of Union County. The responsibility for both the
accuracy of the presented data and the complete, fair presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the County Auditor. This report reflects the financial data that will
enable the citizens of Union County to gain & true understanding of Union County’s
finances. '

The CAFR is presented in three sections: introductory, financial, and statistical. The
Introductory Section contains a fable of contents, this letter of transmittal, a list of
principal officials, an organization chart, and a chart of the County Auditor’s duties and
responsibilities. The Finaricial Section includes the independent auditor’s report, the
general purpose financial statements, and the combining and individual funds and =~
account group financial statements and schedules. The Statistical Section presents
historical financial, economic, and demographic information useful for compar:son and
analysis of the trends of Union County.

COUNTY ORGANIZATION AND SERVICES

Formed on April I, 1820, from portions of Delaware, Franklin, Madison, and Logan
Counties together with a part of the old Indian Territory, Union County contains 277,760
acres lying in a nearly central position in the State of Ohio. Through the efforts of
Colonel James Curry, then a member of the State legislature, an act was passed January
10, 1820, entitled, “An act 1o erect the county of Union”. The formation of fourteen
townships and the selection of Marysville as the County Seat followed on May 15, 1821.
A portion of the City of Dublin, which is now wholly in a fifteenth township, and five
other municipalities are within the 434 square miles of the County that contairied 31,969
people as of the 1990 census. The first census taken in 1830 revealed 3,192 settlers



The County provides for its citizens with the powers conferred upon it by Ohio statutes.
The elected three-member Board of County Comnmissionérs functions as hoth the
legislative and executive branches. Each Commissioner serves a term of four years.

Other officials elected by the voters of Union County that manage various segments of
the County’s operations are the Auditor, who serves as the chief fiscal officer, Treasurer,
Recorder, Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney, Sheriff, a Common
Pleas Court Judge, a Probate/Juvenile Court Judge, and a Municipal Court Judge.

REPORTING ENTITY . . _

The financial statements contained within this comprehensive annual financial report
includes all funds, account groups, agenmes boards, and commissions, which comprise
the County’s reporting entity.

The primary government consists of all funds and departments which provide the
County’s citizens with human and social services, health and community assistance, civil
and criminal justice, road and bridge maintenance, sanitary sewer and water serwccs and
other general and administrative support services.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the County is financially
accountable. The County is financially accountable for an organization if the County
appoints a voting majority of the organizations board and (1) the County is able to
significantly influence the programs or services perforrned or pr0v1ded by the
organization; or (2) the County is legally entitled or can otherwise access the
organization’s resources; (3) the County is legally obhgated or has otherwme assumed the
responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to the organization;
or (4) the County is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also
include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the County and the County approveés
the budget, the issuance of debt, or the levying of taxes. For 1_999 the County had three
component units, Union County Airport Authority and U-Co Industries, and Memorial
Hospital of Union Courty, which is treated as a blended unit in the enterprise fund.

The County serves as fiscal officer and custodian of funds but is not financially
accountable for the Union County General Health District, the Union County Soil and
Water Conservation District and the Five-Courity Joint Juvenile Detention Center. The
activities of these organizations are reflected as agency funds within the combmed
financial statements.

The County is associated with certain organizations that are defined as jointly govemed
organizations and a group purchasing pool. A further discussion of these organizations is °
provided in Notes 23 and 24, respectively, to the combined financial statements.



ECONOMIC CONDITION AND QUTLOOK

Union County is primarily an agricuitural community, with 250,577 acres of its 277, 760 '
total acreage being devoted to agricultural use. The County s remaining acreage is
experiencing rapid develppment. Through December 1999, Union County issued 497

new single-family home permits at an estimated construction value of $70,652,300 with
260 being in the City of Marysville and 237 in the outlying townships and villages. “Five
permits for eight multi-family units were issued for the City of Marysville. There were -
100 new commercial building permits issued at an estimated construction value of
$21,917,800. Of these 100 permits, 23 are located inside the city and 77 in the remainder
of the county.

The new 90-bed West Central Community Correctional Facility, which will serve eight
counties, opened in 1999. Also, bids were opened for a tri-county jail to be Iocated in
Champaign County. The Union County Commissionérs entéred a consortium in 1996
with Champaign and Madison County, and a grant for $6,720,000 from the State of Ohio
was secured for this purpose. The tri-county Jjail should be opened by December 31,

2000. ' S

New facilities to house the Union County Engineer’s highway maintenance department
were opened during 1999. In addition, Marysville’s 21,500 square foot Public Service
Center is under construction to house their street, water and parks departments.

Several area churches have undergone building expansions within the last two years; this
year ground has been broken for the I__.ady of Lords Catholic Church.

Memorial Hospital of Union County has completed its 31,000 square foot emergency
room addition that was primarily funded from fund-raisers and pledges, and the Hospital
has broken ground for Green Gables Nursing Home, a new nursing home located in
Green Pastures Subdivision, replacing Union Manor an older structure that does not meet
the standards for Medicare recipients.

Marysville Exempted Village School District voters approved an extended bond issue to
construct a new building for grades 5 and 6 on donated land in the Mill Valley
subdivision.

Ground was broken in Marysville last October for the $7 million Premier Printing of
Central Ohio, a company owned jointly between newspaper firms in Bellefontaine,
Kenton, Delaware and Marysville. The company will print the four daily newspapers as
well as the weekly Richwood Gazette and other products of the newspaper companies.

Goodyea: has made $40 million dollars worth of improvements in equipment and
expansion at their plant.

The Scott’s Company has 30 new jobs with the $30 million dollar investment of “System.
4”



Marcy’s Industries has invested $1.5 million in the old Wacsator bulldmg in the Vlllage
of Richwood, creating 25 jobs. .
The Transportation Research Center expanded its testing site for the vehicles by
investing $3.5 million in its facility.

UNION COUNTY MAJOR INITIATIVES .

Union County is now part of the World Wide Web and County informationcanbe =~~~
accessed at www.co.union.oh.us. In order to accomplish this feat, fiber optic was run from
the Court House into the Union County Office Complex and every office has Internet and
Intranet capabilities. Union County has developed several new internet programs
including a GIS query program and dog tag query program which can be accessed
through Union County’s Auditors web page. o ' '

In May of 1999, Union County Commissioners awarded bids for the renovation of the
Veterans Memorial Auditorium. The remodeling consists of new hghtmg sound heating
and air conditioning with the refurbishment of seating and stage. The Marysv;]le Arts
Council has been soliciting pledges for the partial repayment to the county. The
construction is now complete and this beautifully restored facility is being used.

The County purchased a merchandise facility, which sat vacant for many years. It has
been renamed the London Avenue Government Building. It has the potential to house
many of the satellite departments; thereby eliminating the paying of rent at their existing
accommodations. A feasibility and space study will be conducted.

With the completion expected for the new Green Gables Nursing Home at the end of the
year, the Union Manor nursing facility will be returned for the use of the County.

Ground has been broken for a criminal justice center. This will accomrnodate the Sheriff,
Prosecuting Attorney and staff, along with the Adult Probation emp]oyees The buxldmg
is to connect with the courthouse through the common pleas area.

Accounting System. Union County’s accounting system is maintainéd on a “fund” basis.
Each fund or account group is a distinct self-balancing entity. Records for general '
government operations are maintained on a modified accrual basis. Revenues are
recognized when measurable and available; expenditures are recogmzed when goods and
services are received. Accounting records for the County’s enterprise funds are recorded
on an accrual basis. Revenues are recognized when measurable and earned; expenses are
recognized when incurred. The basis of accounting and the various funds and account
groups utilized by Union County are fully described in Note 2 to the general purpose
financial statements.
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Internal Controls.. In developing the County’s accounting system, much consideration
was given o the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Intemal accounting controls
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding (1) the
safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthonzed use or disposition and (2) the
reliability of financial records for preparing financial statemenifs and maintaining
accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance is based on the
assumnption that the cost of internal accounting controls should not exceed the beneﬁts to
be derived from their implementation. ' : S

Budgetary Controls. According to the Ohio Revised Code, the County Commissioners
may adopt a temporary appropriation measure on or about January 1. A permanent’
annual budget must be passed by April 1. All disbursements and transfers of cash
between funds require appropriation authority. Budgets are controlled at the object level
within a department and fund. The County Auditor’s office is responsible for the
auditing and analysis of all purchase orders and vouchers of the County. As they are

received, they are encumbered to ensure the availability of funds. No cxpend:tures may N o

take place without the County Auditor certifying that funds are available or are in the
process of being collected. The County uses a fully automated accounting system to,
ensure that financial statements are both accurate and reliable. Further discussion of the
budgetary accounting system and its controls may be found in Note 2 of the generaI
purpose financial statements.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT PUNCTIONS |~

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue funds,
Debt Service funds, and Capital Project funds revenues for the year ended December 31,
1999, and the percentages of increases and decreases in relation to the prior year

Percent Percent
Revenues by Source 1698 1999 = of Total =~ Change = Change |
Taxes ) $9,756,273 $11,428,747  36.9% = $1,672,474 17.1%
Charges for Services 2,582,249 2,698,400 87% 116,151 4.5%.
Licenses and Permits 85261 113,732 7 4% 28471  334%
Fines and Forfeitures™ 160,341 147,522 . 5% (. 12,819) ( 8.0%)
Intergovernmental 10,189,867 12,459 328 . 402% - 2269461 22.3%
Special Assessments 33,154 = 34,610 1% 1,456 T 4.4%
Interest 1,290,064 1,311,588 = 42% 21,524  L7%
Other _ 1.445,181 2?76 321 _90% 1331140  92.1% L
Total $25.542,390 $30.970.248  100.0% ~ $3427.858

The increase in taxes is primarily from the triennial update and 1% permissive sales tax
collections. '



The change in governmental revenues was due to mcrease m govemmental grants and o
support from State of Ohio. _ : : o

The increase in “other” revenue tends to fluctuate each year because it includes revenue
accounts such as rental income, relmbursements ete. The i increase in 1999 was due to

the sale of various county assets and overall increases in the other miscellaneous revenue

accounts.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue funds,
Debt Service funds, and Capital Project funds expenditures for the year ended December
31, 1999 and the percentages of increases and decreases in relation to the prior year.

' Percent Percent

Expenditures by Function 1998  ~ 1999 = = ofTotal  Change ~ Change ===

Current:

General Government;-

Legislative & : ) o . R '
Executive . $5,608,806 $6837,983  200% $1,229,177 21.9%

Judicial 999,959 1,210, 768 35% . 210,809 21.1%
Public Safety © 3,178,073 3,171,988 0 93% (6,085 ( .2%)
Public Works 3,623,706 5,734,699' - 16.8% 2,110,993  58.3%
Health 2,407,204 2,733,691 8.0% . 326487  13.6%

- Human Services . 6,268,847 8,329,001  244% 2,060,154, 329%

Coniservation/ , _ ' T
Recreation 81,8727 . 171,029 . 5% . 89,157 2089%
Capital Qutlay 1,703,328~ 4,740,518 13.9%. 3,037,190 278.3%
Intergovernmental 79 - 5,085 0% .~ . 5006 6367% .

Other : 1,053,033 4?9 329 . 14% ( 573 704)  (54.5%)

‘Debt Service: - o o - o
Principal ST 302,927 ”'367,927 l 1% ' 65 000'_ " 2L5%.
Interest 546032 381988  _L1%  (_164040) (300%) =

Total Expenditures  $23.773,.860 * $34,164,006  100.0% $38300,140

The increase in public works expendltures was a result of more road and bndge
construction in 1999, '

The increase in human services expenditures for 1999 is primarily from the County’s
Mental Retardation and Development Disabilities (MRDD) and Human Services growth
from new programs that are being provided.

The increase in capital outlay expenditures was due to continued construcnon for
sheriff’s facxhty, Veteran’s Memorial Auditorium, and county garage construction, as
well as acquiring the London Avenue Government Bulldmg



The 1999 legislative and executive expenditures increased due to various factors, but the
primary increase was due to park grants and increased support to Union County enutles' )
such as Union County Humane Society and the two agricultural societies. ‘

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of December 31, 1999 Union County’s outstanding debt included bond anticipation
notes in the amount of $5,000,000; general obligation bonds in the amount of
$21,650,000; Ohio Public Works Cormnmission Loans in the amount of $1 16 946, and
sales tax receipt bonds in the amount of $2,770,000.

The bond anticipation notes consist of $3,500,000 for the constructlon of sanitary sewer
lines, and $1,500,000 for the construction of a water line.

The general obligation bonds consist of $860,00 for the construction of hangers and a
fuel farm at Union County Airport; and $395,000 for the expansion of the Five County
Joint Juvenile Detention Center. The remaining $3,810,000 is broken down by
$1,900,000 for re-issuance of the County Office Building renovation and $1,910,000 for
a new County Engineei’s highway department garage.

A Sales Tax Receipt Bond for Sheriff, Prosecuting Attorney, and Adult Probation
employees that will be known as the Justlce Center has outstandmg debt in the arnount of
$2,770,000. '

Outstanding general obligation bonds consists of $16,585,000, of Wthh $10, 945 000isa

new issue for the construction of a new nursing home.

The Ohio Public Works Commission Loans consist of non-interest bearing loans in the
amount of $116,946 for the renovation of Jerome Industrial Park and Kimberly Woods
wastewater treatment plants.

Other outstanding debt at the end of the year includes $251,597 due on a mortgage loan
for a building acquired to house the Mental Health Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County maintains general casualty insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 and
umbrella liability insurance in the amount of $ 5,000,000 with a $2,500 deductible.. In
addition, the County maintains property insurance which includes all buildings and
personal property at replacement cost with a $ 2,500 deductible.

Union County has insurance coverage in the following amounts for various items:
commercial fleet liability $1,000,000, physical damage insurance at actual cash value;
actual loss sustained on valuable papers; employees” benefits insurance $250,000; actual
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cash value for county engineer contractor equipment; replacement cost for electronic data
equipment; $1,000,000 each for law enforcement, public officials, employment practices,
and stop gap liability. All of the above coverages have a $2,500 deductible. The county
pays for all bonds on elected officials according to statute. '

The County also has in place a crime coverage policy encompassing employee
dishonesty, money and securities (in), money and securities (out), and depositors’
forgery. These also are in the amount of $1,000, 000 with $2, 500 deductlbles

Union County is a member in the County Commissioners Association of Ohio Service
Corporation’s workers’ compensation group rating plan, an insurance purchasing pool.
This plan is intended to achieve lower workers’ compensation rates. The workers’ ,
compensation expenence of the participating counties is calculated as one expenence and
a common premium to the State based on the rate for the Plan rather than its individual
rate. Participation in the Plan is limited to counties that can meet the Plan’s selection
criteria. The firm Comp Management, Inc. pr0v1des adrmmstratlve cost control, and

actuarial services to the Plan. Each year the Couaty pays an enrollment fee to the Plan o

cover the costs of administrating the prograrm.

CASH MANAGEMENT . = L
The County believes that appropriate cash management activities are central to the
County’s overall financial condition. Management is enhanced using electromc fund
transfers to accelerate the availability of investment balances.

The County Treasurer as custodian of all County monies is responsible for the investment
activities of the County. Investments purchased are subject to the following criteria:

e Safety of the invested principal.
e Liquidity needed to meet the County’s obhgatlons on a timely basis.
¢ Earning a market rate of return.

These activities are directed by and subject to the Investment Policy, a document
established by the Investment Adv1sory Board. Tms board, which meets quarterly,
comprises the County Treasurer, and two County Cornrmsmoners desxgnated by the
President of the Board of County Comrmssmners '

The County pools cash balances to achieve maximum investment efficiency and to
enhance accountability. Based on the expected cash requirements of the County, the
Treasurer invests available balances in gligible instruments. During the year ended
December 31, 1999, the County’s cash resources were divided among investments
allowable under the Ohio Revised Code . All of the investments are insured and
collateralized in accordance with Ohio Revised Code.

Union County earned interest income during 1999 of § 1,545,412. This interest earned is
allocated to the general fund, except as stipulated by State statute or the Union County
Prosecutor’s opinions. The general fund recorded $1,038,088 of interest revenue in 1999.

8



INDEPENDENT AUDIT

F N - few o

Included in this report is an unqualified opinion rendered on the County’s financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 1999, by the Auditor of the State of Ohio.
As part of the preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report, the County
subjects its financial statements to an annual audit. The annual audlt serves to strengthen
the County’s accounting, internal, and budgetary controls 7

In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was also
designed to meet requirements of the Federal Single Aadit Act of 1996 and the related
U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s Circular A-133, Revised. Generally accepted
auditing standards set forth in the General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing
Standards were used by the auditors in conducting the engagement. The auditor’s report
on the general-purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund '
statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report.

CERTIFICATE QFE ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Financial Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for EXcellence in Financial Repomno to
Union County for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1998. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national
award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of a state and
local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently orgamzed comprehensive annual financial report, whose
contents conform to program standards. The CAFR must sattsfy both generaily accepted
accounting prmmples and applicable legal requ:rements

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Union County has
received a Certificate of Achievement for the last four consecutive years (fiscal years
ended 1995-1998). We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate
of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to' GFOA.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS . .

The purpose of this report is to provide complete and reliable information as a basis for
making management decisions; as a-means for determining compliance with legal
provisions, and as a means to demonstrate responsible stewardship of Union County’s
assets. This report sxgmficantly increases the accountability of this government to its
taxpayers.



Preparation of this report would not have been possible without the cooperation of every
County department and agency. To the LUC Planning Commission, Mary Sampsel an
employee of the Union County Engineer and to the staff of the Uruon County Chamber of
Commerce, “thank you” for providing us with valuable 1nformat10n and statistical data

The assistance of my office staff was invaluable to the completxon of this CAFR, as was
the guidance given by the firm of Holbrook & Manter, LLP. I also want to acknowledge
Chuck Dersom and staff of the Auditor of State’s office who audited the report. ‘

Respectfully submitted,

oM M‘J /=

Mary H Snider
Union County Auditor
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35 Norh Fourth Street

STATE OF OHIO Columbus, Ohio 43215

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Telephone 614-466-3402
—. L . 800-443-9275

IIM PETRD, AUDITOR OF STATE ) Facsimile 514-728-7199

www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Board of County Commissioners
Union County

233 West 6™ Street

Marysville, OChio 43040

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of Unjon County, Ohio (the
County) as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, as listed in the table of contents. These general-
purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of Memorial Hospital of Union County and Subsidiary, which represents 86 percent and
97 percent of the assets and revenues respectively of the enterprise funds. We also did not audit the
financial statements of U-Co Industries, Inc., the discretely presented component unit. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for U-Co Industries, Inc. and Memonial Hospital of
Union County and Subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted suditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Govermnment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The
financial statements of U-Co Industries, Inc. were audited by the other auditors in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, rather than Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the general-purpose financial
statements referred to above present fairdy, in all material respects, the financial position of Union County,
Ohio, as of December 31, 1999, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund
types and discretely presented component unitfor the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 16, 2000
on our cansideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and qur tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.



Board of County Commissicners
Unlon County

Report of Independent Accountants
Page 2

Qur audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinicn on the general-purpose financial statements
of the County, taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statements
and schedules fisted in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjecied to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is
faidy presented, in all material respects in relation to the general-purpose financial statements {aken as a
whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and therefore
express no opinion thereon.

JIM PETRO
Auditor of State

June 16, 2000



GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS




JUBSWIGLDS S O 1A KNBHIUL LID 610 SUSLIGINS [DfUoLY esodind IDieued ey of seou syy

panuyuod
£10°2562518 SI0'906'ts 060 LEIS rItR OSL% AV BLOCHS  PREYSA TN  ¥eG I6L G  LGUEORS CFGLIeEly  LIDISSULS HQaQ B0 PUD HEAsY 0L
5O 5097 ¢ L RBIMOEY [USWLIUIBAGS IDHAUSS)
WO PEOIAOKE € O jUnoury
ng 1 Ng.ﬂ— L EESOLL e aﬁ&:ﬂo E_Q._H@CO._
IOIBUeS) O fUSlBNIBY 04 pUn]
80]A395 |46( L] ODNDAY purowry
, S JIHEO
eSS AL gyl TiZow'sxs 0 esseOO®RSOO e {uojinjaasieq peiIMUNOOY JO
‘spquogdkin sleum BN} sessy pexy
P0EIT Z88'c roL's0e ors'iz (17 oF - o} pIoded
059Lr°L 06'RLY'L SopeB MOIDSS PUD DI UM USOD)
Lo8'erL's LOERrLY geteCz e HUNOOJY penGeisg U usoD
ey DOIOISSY
ril'zzs pi'zes sxsriigea sy BOUONTE| PUGY PAZIIOUIORIN
reo'ee 008 yeo'ol 000 TR et st G EARRORY $UDO)
rE9'9ze'L yrr'ove 0sT'LL6 550'9% 9io'asz
o0s's7l 005'6r1 o09'srL
42918l H52'918'L 000'0L 66Z'99T oo0'oez’ L
0e9'¥e owKo're 0%L oee's 086'zL
®e'se oreee Ke's
gl0sIE'e oLe'TIC 0052 TS L 00Y'9L [T
crI'CHY LY crSCHYLr 09F'299'68 99092 OOE'PFLY BLSOLY'S
STLLETR &'ror 648" 0vELeL SeL88E"L 695'165' 6L're s60°8El's 209958
S50'950°1 0S2'15P4 S00'9L8 ez iy 1Z9'08 zorel
CIERELCLS 16R°¥LLE SIYEEFELS ¥R 18T 2% BES'CLZ'SS  GOI'MSS  eSURSISE  GAUROVIS
puy st pejood U Agnbl
B1ISSY
ST 83A10 W S1355Y
THIO WnpuDoWew)  sepsEnpU KGOy (ARIO GnpUDIOUISNT  SUORDOI0 Aouely §oefoud GOjAeS  enusABy [T
Ay oxn podity JUBLIUIBADS) U j$nig 1oydog) iaeq oioeds
Bupodoy AU
oL S ISLOTRIB0 $ENOL SONGIY JIncooy 8>Hh pung $60A] Putid IOIISIILISACS
oNDH



Juatueios sy 10 pod IDBe(UE L0 BID HUMLSIDES IoubLY escdmd ieusd sy Of sejou eyl

E10'£56251% SI00081% 060°2818 BreCe 0SLS Y0658 ZLLOILUGES oV 6L9'CYS  PACPEEOPS  YLSLELGE [S0'99Ct  EROLLETES  LL0'1594% OB 1IN0
puty Aynbg ‘seqco)] ¥oso]
$5CYZ609 SHREROL gEo el 9CH' 56965 ZILoLsE e9Re5T 6l OIFEYe’S €60l SEYOEE? ZIL6L9T HPBID 1Y puo Agnbl ojot
SE0SFEYl 08’591 tezoat’rl ISEFI0S 4601l 419DiR'S LLOPRITE e petadinapun peaeseny
ore'ss oPe'es os'(c 00E' L8 . “sjuelsAndely 103 poAletoy
TANT L'ee $60°92 0 Aojueut o4 perlesey
ore'eze aee'Rlg S05'608 A50'9PZS 181'29e8 GoT8s1E e SHOUGHILINDUS 104 POAIBSEY
1eoUnIog PUng
eq oIl S60°CYD 14 P ——— ‘pajopIBILn
sassy 12N
FAR v+ 41 1§l LiLEEeLL sesb Qousq) paaesern
sBupiog peuryey
P4l 2Es'L o126t weUZess e AR
AVAITRR 143 TiL'ol1eed zlloli'aeg ATy PO WIBUST) L JUSL]sBAU|
BLGIAD #3IHIO § ALNDS
N7 oB1ToR Zere Zzoeells o0 99w THYISTY  6206RL T FLI6ZS G00[S BOSATY AT seymanyl (4oL
TRy tri’iey i3] oy T T T e e joddD?D) 18pUN) HUONDEIKIO
000" 02Y¥E o0g'0eY'ee ooo'ste’L , 000'eR5°9L i aigpAng spUog uotpBRAQ 11eUss
3_.0: Q'Q.o_.— ﬂi&.ﬁ—_. R T T P % suna UEO
h%n—mﬂ g——mﬂ h%.—.ﬂﬂ ........................ %ggag Qgﬂaz
000'000's 0DO‘000's 000°000'S OIAD] $OION  *
psz'on 05z'001 0sz'ool BORA (58183U) PENIDIY
zor'4ee'tr TrsRTer L 5888y PANGUISIPUN
106'905"L 14354 go0'sSzTE  COL'YRL'Y GRLIGELE e BrLBABY POIISIG
31Z'sEL’l 39| ZR0%Z1Y 0os' 158 DT 9E5'508 - URABLIUIBAOE) A0 01, #nd
Eﬂd—m-_. &«.@—m.— §.Q —wy g.g ﬁg F-_. ......o.-.-:..o-...:....-..gwME—O 0-.@3
Sﬂ..h_. g.h— Q ...................... g scaKm Euus hE‘o
EET'ee0’L O£t'e20’L ZZ1rovs coR'zes Le0'sl 269t e pignAng secuesdy pejtsuediiiod
ity 201 a6 BELISE coceee erzasl i M PBIODY
Yo Yo 59251 O —.—~. SiqpADd HOOHUOD *
P2 (4] oeL'sYRy L'y oe0'Se cot'Lorld STLTRY4 wegy e S0AD UNOO0Y
SAurEYn
SIEEY SHIO UNY
AL STAYIT
TRUQ WNPUIGWER)  FeiHsnp] KHIGUNY  (UQ UXDUDIOWeP) SUOIDRRGO  4essy FOUBEY  eidmjuy | sjoojog | BOJARSg  BTAIOABY  IBUSD
Ayazy oo-n podny UOULIBADS) wira{-Buo] pexid PUD sruf {oucho) 90 pioads
Miypodey Alung ieuss ueuss
JD§0) T spupy jeswoamion oy N 1 Ty T SBOAL UG sedAj] pung $64£] DUnJ JOJUBULRIDAGS

Aoonpyy  Anjeydond




Revenues:

Charges For Services........eiceeee. J—
licenses and Pormits......
finas and Forellures............
Intergovemmental..........
Special Assessments

Interast,
Other.

Tolal Revenues.

Expenditures:
Cument:
General Govemment:
Legisialive and Executive.......... ——

Public Sciety.
Public Works.
Haallh
Humun Services.

Other.
Capital Qutlay
Inlergovemmental
Dabt Service:

PrAncipal Retirement.. ... . errersrerrere

Interast and Fiscad Charges. ...

Total Expenditures.

Excess of Revenues Over
{Under) Expandiflog.......rermcrmerereerees

Other Financing Sources (Usas):

Operaling Transfers ..o -
Operating Transfers Qut.......... .
Operaling Transfars Ouf to Camponeni Unit
Praceeds from sale of assets.

Total Other Finaneing Sources (Uses)............,

Excess of Revenuas and Olher Financing
Sources Over (Undet) Expendituros
and Qther Uses.

Exhibit 2

Fund Balances, January T....c.eceeemcemaees e

Resicual Equity Transfer In.. ..o ccceeerrrans

Increcase (Decrecse) In Raserve For Inventary..,

Fund Balances/Equity, December 31............

Totat
Govemmental Fund Types Pimary Component Total
- - Govemnment Unit Reporting Enfity
Special Debt Capital (Memorandum Aiport (Memorandum
Gonerat Revenue  Service Projecis _Only) _ Authority Oniy)

_ $5,891,030 $4,084,262 $453,455 $11,428,747 $11,428,747
. 1,477,847 1,220,553 2,698,400 $148,559 2,844,959
48,118 65,614 113,732 113,732
55,963 91,559 147,522 147,522
1,124,273 10,555,405 $779,450 12,459,328 50,000 12,509,328
27,073 7,537 34,610 34,610

1,038,088 58,026 215,474 1,311,588 1,311,588
184,205 _ 1 7{513@62 978 !74 __ 2,216732] 2,776,321
$10819,604 _ $17,716354 5453455 §1980835 $30,970.248 $198,559 $31,168,807
$4,999.573 $1,838,410 46,337,983 46,837,983
989,162 221,606 1,210,748 1,210,768
2,658,264 513,724 3,171,988 3,171,988
79,959 5,654,555 $1as 5,734,699 5,754,699
94,010 2,539,681 2,733,691 2,733,691
573,214 7,755,787 8,329,001 8,329,001
171,029 171,029 $76,948 247 977
426,444 52,885 479,329 479,329
4,740,518 4,740,518 4,740,518

5,085 5,085 5,085

$347.927 347,927 367,927

__ 375,526 6462 381988 27743 409,731

9,991,655 18,681,733 743,453 4747,165 34154006 104,691 34,268,697
827,949 (965,379} {269,998) (2,766,330} {3,193,758) 93,868 (3,099,890)
287,820 941,158 304,657 984,005 2,537,650 2,537,450
{145,536) {B05,4467) {1,5848,547) (2,537,650) (2,537,650}
(70,750} (70,750)

_T4713 _ _ T 74713
2]7,00? 1___5_5,6917 7_ §D_43657 {602,642) _7_4.713 (70,750} 3963
1,044,956 (809,688) 14,659 (3,368,972) (3,119,045) 23,118 (3,095,927)
2,376,450 7,090,900 96,333 8,631,382 18,195,065 161,520 18,356,585
231,396 231,396 231,396
2910 577y _ 22,333 22333
$3,675,712 $6,280,635 §$110,992 $5,262,410 $15,329,749 $184,538 $15,514,387

The notes 1o the general purpose financial staternents are an integral port of this statemen
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Proprietary Total Tolal
Fund Types (Memorandum __ Component Unit  (Memorandum
Only} Only)
Enterprise Intemal Primary u-co Repoerting
Funds Service Fund  Govemment Industries Entity
Operaling Reverues: T ) c :
Charges for servicas. $421,208 $421,208 $3,877,108 $4,298,316
Net patient services. 37,205,390 37,205,390 37,205,390
Topinfees.............. 230,440 230,440 230,440
Cther operating revenues..............c.-... S 3,428,286 3,428,285 14,104 3,442,390
Total operating revenues 41,285324 0 41,285,324 3,891,212 45,178,536
Operating expenses:
Personal services 22,549,152 22,549,162 284,522 22 835 584
Contract servicas 5,388,122 5,388,122 20,247 5,408,349
Mctesials and supplies............ JR— S— 7,570,468 7,570,468 3,897,612 11,468,080
Bad dabts... 2,304,701 2,304,701 2,304,701
Depreciation and amortizafion.....oovee e 1,871,872 1,871,872 3,493 1,875,365
Interast and fiscal charges...a e 419,695 419,695 ) 419,695
Other operaling oXpenses..c e . - 44,363 44,363 11,807 56,170
Total operafing expenses. e . . . 40,148,383 0_ _40, !4&},383 _ ___4,219,681 44,368,054
Operatling Income (oss) 1,135,941 0 1,136,941 (328,459} 808,472
MNon-operafing revenuas (@xpenses):
Interast income 233,824 233,824 33,602 267,426
Gifts, grants, and bequests............oeeeee 559,982 559,942 427,964 987,944
Payments on behalf of affiliate........... S (1,026,412 (1,026,412 (1,026,412
Reshicted expenses............. S (91,901) (?1,901) P1,901)
Interest and fiscal charges.........we- N (335,256) (335,256} (335,258)
Other non-operaling revenue (expense)... . 0 1,987 ] 1,987
Total non-operaling revenues/{expenses)........... {659,763} 0_ i (1_55?. _763) 483,553 (196,216}
Net Income/(loss) before operaling transtars 477,178 0 477,178 135,084 612,262
Operating Transters In S 334,622 334,632 334,632
Operating Transfers (Oub.....c.o.. e L @53,_883) — (263,882) {263,882)
Net income/{Loss) 547,928 o 547,928 135,084 483,012
Retdined eamings/fund balances
at Jenuary 1, 16,775,243 206,396 14,981,639 908,811 17,890,450
Residudl equity ransfer out...........oeeceneee — _ g_2_0§,32§) _ (206,396} ] (206,396)
Retained eamings/fund balances
ot Decernber 31 17,323,171 } 3] 17,323,171 1,043,895 18,367,056
Contribuled capitcl ot January T......veeeens 1,932,194 25,000 1,957,194 0 1,957,194
Residual equity ransfer out............oeeceeeceee - . {25,000y (25,000) {25,000)
Contibuted capital at December 31, 1,932,194 _ 0 1,932,194 0 1,932,194
Totdl fund equity af December 31......_... S $19,255,365 $0 $19,255,365 $1,043,895 $20,299,2560

The notes to the general purpose financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Total Tolat
Proprietary {Memorcndum (Mamorandum
Fund Types Only) Caly)
Enterprise Internai Service Primary u-Co Reporting
Funds Fund Fovemment Indusities Entity
Cash flows fram operating achvilies:
Cash recelvad from salas/sarvice charges...... $1,237,730 51,237,730 $4,205 579 $5,443,309
Cash raceived from palients and
Hhird-party POYGE....cuviemiresmtesmssserssssnsnesrriassens 34,863,132 34,843,132 34,863,132
Cash racelved flom other operations 2842204 2,842,204 35,589 2,877,793
Cash payments for personal services.... {22,703,418) (22,703,418) (141,335)  {22,864.753)
Cuash payments for confract services...., (344,738} (344,738) (34,382 (381,120)
Cash paymenls for supplies and materials...... (12.580,334) (12,580,834) (3,778,866)  (16,359,700)
Other cash (payments)/receipls.. OPTR—— ¥ P WP 1 (144,445) {144,445)
Cash paymenls for restricted expenses. (91,901} (91,901 {91,90D)
Cash payments for interast.....ooecmenin w  --——- (380,650} (380,650 {380,650
Nat cash provided by
operaiing ACHVIHoS... e eeeraaane — 2697079 Q 2,697,079 254,585 2,961.664
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Cash raceived from giits, grants, and baguasts 557 423 557,423 557,423
Residun! equily ransfor Qub.—......cccovveeeeeinane {231,396) (231,394) _(231,395)
Net cash provided by
non-copifol finoncing activities...........ceoe. 557,423 (231,398) 326,027 1) 326,027
Coish fiows from copilol and 1elaied
financing activilies:
Acquisition of capilal assets...... (6,292,505) {6,292,505) (6,292,505)
Proceeds of debt issues 14,000,000 16,000,000 14,000,000
Principal tatiroment. (6,984,088) {6,984,088) (6,984,088)
Interest and fiscal ChOrges. . . rimnenis (339,244} {339,266) {339.268)
Proceeds from sala of fixed assefs......._.. 2750 9,750 750
Net cash provided by capital and
related financing achivilies. .- 239387 a 2,393,891 o 2,393 891
Cash flows from investing aclivities:
Not (purchase)/disposition of investments.......... (194,669} (1956,669) 3,238 {205,903)
Invesiment in generct fixed asseis............ 0 (10,952 (10,952
Distribution to related pamy....cceeeeee (1,347.200) {1,347,200) (1,347,200)
inlarest income. 233,824 233,624 233,824
Net cash used in
investing activities. (1,310,045) 9 },310,045) (20,185) (,330,23T)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and
cash equivalants, 4,338,348 {231,394) 4,106,952 244,399 4,351,351
Cash and cash aguivalants at beginning of ysor.... 7,094,210 231,396 7,324,106 . 237,351 7.563 457
Cash and eash equivatents ot end of year........ 311,433,058 30 §11,433,058 481,750 $11,914,508
Operating iNcome (1088} meeesimeieeeeeens 51,136,941 40 51,135,941 {5328, 459) §808.472
Raconcilialion of operaling income (lcss)
o nat cash provided by (usad in}
operaling aclivilias:
Depraciation and amarizalion............eawe 1,871,872 1,871,872 3,493 1,875,345
Interast Income. e 33,402 602
Gifls, grants, and bequasts. 427 964 427 964
Other non-operaling revenue...............oee. 1.987 1,987
Transfers-in. 334,632 334,632 334,632
Transfars-Qut, {253,882) (263,882) (263,882}
Bod debts.. 2,304,701 2,304,701 2,304,701
Changes in assals and liabilities:
Supplies inventory and othar current cssels..... £348.271) ¢348.271) (9.658) (357,929)
Accounts 1SCevabie. e (2,400,111 (2,400,111} 323,627 (2,076,484)
Prepayments. - 1] s 314
Accounts payable, 429,400 429,400 (189,763 239,637
Accrued wages and benefits........... 5,054 6,054 5,054
Cormpensaled absences payable. 2,101 9,101 AL
Other acerad XPansa¥. . e .. (341,525) (341,535) 1,484 (340,039}
Due frorn/¢to) other funds. ..o eceremne. —- (50,000} {50,000} (50,00()
Due fromy/(ta) othat goverr it 3,187 8,167 8,167
Net cash provided by
operating aclivilies. $2,697,079 $0 52,497,079 $244,585 $2.961,664

Han-cash investing/financing achivities;-

During 1999, Memoral Hospital obtained fixed assels in the amount of $251,935 by antering inte capital lease obligations.

The noles to the general purpose financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE COUNTY:-

Union County, Ohio (the County), was created in 1820. The County is governed by a board of three
commissioners elected by the voters of the County. Other officials elected by the voters of the County that
are responsible for various aspects of the County’s government are the Auditor, Treasurer, Recorder, Clerk
of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney, Sheriff, 2 Common Pleas Court Judge, a Probate and
Juvenile Court Judge, and a Municipal Court Judge.

Although the elected officials manage the internal operations of their respective departments, the County
Commissioners authorize expenditures as well as serve as the budget and taxing authority, contracting body,
and the chief administrators of public services for the County, including each of these departments.

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that
are included to ensure that the financial statements of the County are not misleading.

Primary Government:

The primary government consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate
from the County. For Union County, this includes the Union County Board of Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities (MRDD); Mental Health and Recovery Board of Union county (MHRB); Union
County Memorial Hospital; Union County Children’s Services Board; and departments and activities that are
directly operated by the elected County officials.

Component Units:

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the County is financially accountable. The
County is financially accountable for an organization if the County appoints a voting majority of the
organization's governing board and (1) the County is able to significantly influence the programs or services
performed or provided by the organization; or (2) the County is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the
organization's resources; the County is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to
finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the County is obligated for the
debt of the organization. Component units may also incfude organizations that are fiscally dependent on the
County in that the County approves the budget, the issuance of debt, or the levying of taxes.

Discretely Presented Component Units:

The component unit columns in the combined financial staternents present the financial data of the County's
discretely presented component units, Union County Airport Authority and U-Co. Industries, Inc. They are
reported separately to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County.

-25-



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE COUNTY:- (CONTINUED)

Union County Airport Authority.

The Union County Airport Authority was established according to Section 308.03 of the Ohio Revised code.
The airport authority is governed by a seven member board of trustees appointed by the Union County
commissioners. The County Commissioners budget funds for airport operations and are responsible for the
debt and deficits of the Airport Authority. Due to the imposition of will exerted by the County
Comrmnissioners as well as the financial burden for the Airport Authority, the Airport Authority is presented
separately as a governmental fund type component unit of Union County. The airport Authority operates on a
. fiscal year ending December 31. The Airport Authority does not issue separate financial statements.

U-Co Industries, Inc.

U-Co Industries, Inc. is a legally separate, not-for-profit corporation, served by a board of trustees appointed
by the Union County board of MRDD. The Industries, under a contractual Agreement with the Union
County Board of MRDD, provides sheltered employment for mentally retarded or handicapped adults in
Union County. The Union County Board of MRDD provides the Industries with staff to administer and
supervise training programs, facilities, transportation, supplies, equipment and other funds as necessary for
operation of the Industries. Based on the significant services and resources provided by the County to the
Industries, the Industries is presented separately as an enterprise fund type component unit of Union County.
U-Co Industries operates on a fiscal year ending December 31. Separately issued financial statements can be
obtained from U-Co Industries, Inc., 835 E. Fifth Street, Marysville, Ohio 43040.

As custodian of public funds, the County Treasurer invests all public monies held on deposit in the County
treasury. In the case of the separate agencies and districts listed below, the County serves as fiscal agent but
the organizations are not considered part of Union County. Accordingly, the activity of the following
organizations is presented as agency funds within the combined financial statements:

Union County General Health District
Union County Soil and Water Conservation District

The County is associated with certain organizations which are defined as jointly governed organizations and a
group purchasing pool. These organizations are presented in Note 24 and Note 25 to the combined financial
statements. These organizations are:

Five County Joint Juvenile Detention and Rehabilitation Center
North Central Ohio Solid Waste Management District

LUC Regional Planning Commission

Marysville/Union County Joint Recreation District

County Commissioners Associationt of Ohio Service Corporation
Tri-County Corrections Board




UNION COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TG THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:-

The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized
below. These policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for local governmental
units as prescribed in the statements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and
other recognized authoritative sources. The County, except for Union County Memorial Hospital, also
applies Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations isseted on or before

November 30, 19889, to its proprietary activities provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

Union County Memorial Hospital applies the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 29, “The Use of Not-for-Profit Accounting and Financial Reporting Principles by
Governmental Entities”. This statement provides that governmental entities that use proprietary fund
accounting should apply only those Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations
issued after November 30, 1989, that are developed for business enterprises. These entities should not apply
Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations whose provisions are limited to not-for-
profit organizations or address issues concerning primarily such organizations.

A. Fund Accounting

The County (primary government) uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and the
results of its operations. The Airport Authority and U-Co Industries (component units) use funds and account
groups as well. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance, and to aid financial
management by segregating transactions related to certain County functions or activities.

A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a seli-balancing set of accounts recording cash and
other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes
therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives
in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. An account group is a financial reporting
device designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities not recorded in the funds because
they do not directly affect net available expendable resources.

For financial statement presentation purposes, the various funds of the County are grouped into the following
generic fund types under the broad fund categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Fund Types

Governmenta] funds are those through which most governmental functions of the County are financed. The
acquisition, use and balances of the County's expendable financial resources and the related current liabilities
{except those required to be accounted for in proprietary funds and trust funds) are accounted for through
governmental funds. The following are the County's governmental fund types:
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General Fund - This fund is used to account for all financial resources of the County except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund balance is available to the County
for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of Ohio.

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Debt Service Fund - These funds are used to account for the accumulation of financial resources for the
payment of general long-term obligations, principal, interest and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds - These funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).

Proprietary Fund Type

Proprietary funds are used to account for the County's ongoing activities which are similar to those
found in the private sector. The following proprietary fund type is utilized by the County.

Enterprise Funds - These funds are used to account for the operations that are financed and operated

in 2 manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that the costs (expenses,

including depreciation) of providing services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed

or recovered primarily through user charges. The enterprise funds are also used in situations where it
has been decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other
purposes.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. The County does not have any
trust funds, The County’s agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve
measurement of results of operations.
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Account Groups

To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to specific funds and those of general government,
and between long-term liabilities related to specific funds and those of a general nature, the following account

groups are used:

General Fixed Assets Account Group. The general fixed assets account group is used to account for all
fixed assets of the County, other than those fixed assets accounted for in the proprietary funds.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. The general long-term obligations account group is
used to account for all long-term obligations of the County, except those accounted for in the proprietary
funds.

B. Measurement Focus And Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.
All governmental fund types are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance
sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and
decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic rescurces measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on
the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained
earnings components. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases {e.g., revenues) and
decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets.

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed for the governmental fund types and agency funds.
Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting period when they become both measurable and
available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. The available period for the County is thirty-one days after year end.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources
are deemed both measurable and available; permissive sales and use tax (see Note 8), charges for current
services, fines and forfeitures, federal and state grants and entitlements, and earnings on investments. Major
revenue sources not susceptible to accrual include licenses and permits which are not considered measurable
until received.
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The County reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues also arise when a
potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current
period. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, the liability for deferred
revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized. Special assessments are
recorded as deferred revenue because they do not meet the availability criteria. Property taxes measurable as
of December 31, 1999, and delinquent property taxes, whose availability is indeterminable and which are
intended to finance 2000 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenue.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred.

Principai and interest on general long-termn obligations are recorded as fund liabilities when due, and the costs
of accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave are reported as fund liabilities in the period in which they will
be liquidated with current available financial resources rather than in the period earned by employees.
Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds.

The proprietary funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they are earned, and expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.
Unbilled service charges receivable are recognized as revenue.

The Airport Authority component unit uses the modified accrual basis of accounting as utilized by
governmental fund types. The U-Co Industries component unit applies the provisions of the AICPA non-
profit reporting model.

C. Budgetary Process

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails the preparation of
budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major documents prepared are the tax budget, the
certificate of estimated resources, and the appropriations resolution, all of which are prepared on the
budgetary basis of accounting. The certificate of estimated resources and the appropriations resolution are
subject to amendment throughout the year with the legal restriction that appropriations cannot exceed
estimated resources, as certified. All funds, other than agency funds, legally are required to be budgeted and
appropriated.

Budgetary information for the Children’s Trust special revenue fund, the Union County Memorial Hospital
enterprise fund and U-Co Industries (component unit) are not reported because they are not included in the
entity for which the “appropriated budget” is adopted and they do not maintain separate budgetary records.

-30-



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:- (CONTINUED)

Tax Budget

A budget of estimated revenues and expenditures is submitted to the County Auditor, as Secretary of the
County Budget Cominission, by July 20 of each year, for the period January I, to December 31 of the
following year. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing for all funds. The
expressed purpose of this budget document is to reflect the need for existing or increased tax rates.

Estimated Resources

The County Budget Commission reviews estimated revenues and determines if the budget substantiates a need
to levy all or part of previously authorized taxes. The Commission certifies its actions to the County by
September 1. As part of this certification, the County receives the official certificate of estimated resources,
which states the estimated beginning of year fund balance and projected revenue of each fund. Prior to
December 31, the County must revise its budget so the total contemplated expenditures from any fund during
the ensuing fiscal year will not exceed the amount available as stated in the certificate of estimated resources.
The revised budget then serves as the basis for the annual appropriations measure. On or about January 1,
the certificate of estimated resources is amended to include the actual unencumbered fund balances from the
preceding year. The certificate may be amended further during the year if the County Auditor determines,
and the Budget Commission agrees, that an estimate needs either to be increased or decreased. The amounts
reported on the budgetary statements reflect the amounts in the final amended official certificate of estimated
resources issued during 1999. B

Appropriations

A temporary appropriations resolution to control expenditures may be passed on or about January 1 of each
year for the period January 1, to March 31. An annual appropriations resolution must be passed by April 1
of each year for the period January 1, to December 31. The appropriations resolution may be amended
during the year as new information becomes available, provided that total fund appropriations do not exceed
current estimated resources, as certified.

The allocation of appropriations among departmerits and objects within a fund may be modified during the
year only by a resolution of the County Commissioners. Several supplemental appropriations resolutions
were legally enacted by the County Conmissioners during the year. The budget figures which appear in the
statements of budgetary comparisons represent the final appropriation amounts, including all amendments and
modifications.
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Budgeted Level of Expenditures

Administrative control is maintained through the establishment of detailed line-itern budgets. The legal level
of budgetary control is at the object level within each department. Expenditures pius encumbrances may not
legally exceed appropriations at the level of appropriation. Appropriations are made to fund, department and
object level (i.e., General Fund - Commissioners - salaries, supplies, equipment, contract repairs, travel
expenses, maintenance and other expenses). Advances-in and advances-out are not required to be budgeted
since they represent 2 short-term cash flow resource and are intended to be repaid.

Encumbrances

As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
monies are encumbered and recorded as the equivalent of expenditures on the non-GAAP budgetary basis in
order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation and to determine and maintain legal compliance.
On the GAAP basis, encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as a reservation of fund balances for
subsequent-year expenditures for governmental funds and reported in the notes to the financial statements for
proprietary funds.

Lapsing of Appropriations

At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each appropriation reverts fo the respective fund from
which it was appropriated and becomes subject to future appropriations. The encumbered appropriation
balance is carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year and is not reappropriated.

D. Cash and Investments

To improve cash management, most cash received by the County is pooled in a central bank account.
Monies for all funds, including proprietary funds, are maintained in this account or temporarily used to
purchase short-term investments. Individual fund integrity is maintained through the County’s records.

Each fund's interest in the pool is presented as "equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents" on the combined
balance sheet.

During 1999 the County’s investments included STAR Ohio, treasury notes, federal agency securities and
certificates of deposit. Except for nonparticipating investment contracts, investments are reported at fair
value which is based on quoted market prices. Nonparticipating investment contracts such as nonmegotiable
certificates of deposits are reported at cost.
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The County has invested funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROio) during 1999.
STAROChio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office which allows governments within
the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAROhio is not registered with the SEC as an
investment company, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act
of 1940. Investments in STAROhio are valued at STAROhio’s share price which is the price the investment
could be sold for on December 31, 1999.

Far purposes of the combined staternent of cash flows and for presentation on the combined balance sheet,
funds included within the Treasurer’s cash management pool and investments with an original maturity of
three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents that are held separately within departments of the County or held separately for the
County by fiscal agents and not held with the County Treasurer are recorded on the balance sheet as "Cash
and Cash In Segregated Accounts” or “Cash with Fiscal Agents”, respectively (including restricted amounts).

Cash and cash equivalents of the Airport Authority (component unit) are held by the County Treasurer and
are included in the County’s cash management pool. They are recorded on the balance sheet as "Equity in
Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents”.

Cash and cash equivalents of U-Co Industries (component unit) are held by the component unit and are
recorded on the balance sheet as "Cash and Casgh Equivalents in Segregated Accounis”.

Interest is distributed by the County Treasurer to the General Fund; the Motor Vehicle Gasoline Tax,
Revolving Loan, Treasurer Prepay Interest, Ohio Law Block Grant, and Memorial Fountain Trust, special
revenue funds; the Airport Construction, JDC Construction, Courthouse Renovation, Sheriff’s Construction
and County Garage Construction, capital projects funds; the Sanitary Sewer and Water District (enterprise
funds). Interest revenue earned by these funds during 1999 amounted to $1,311,588. Interest was received
directly by the Union County Memorial Hospital enterprise fund and U-Co Industries (component unit) in the
amount of $233,824 and $33,602, respectively.

E. Interfund Assets and Liabilities

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or
services rendered. These receivables and payables are ciassified as "due from other funds” and "due to other

funds" on the balance sheet. Short-term interfund loans or the short-term portion of advances are classified as
"interfund receivables/payables”.

Long-term interfund loans are reported as advances to/from other funds and are equally offset by a fund

balance reserve account which indicates that they do not constitute "available expendable resources” since
they are not a component of net current assets.
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The County did not have any short or long-term interfund Ioans in 1999.

F. Inventories of Supplies

Inventories of materials and supplies of governmental funds are stated at cost while inventories of proprietary
funds are stated at the lower of cost or market. For all funds, cost is determined on a first-in, first~out basis.
Inventory in governmental funds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost of inventory
items is recorded as an expenditure in the governmental fund types when purchased and as expenses in the
proprietary fund types when used. Reported supplies inventory is equally offset by a fund balance reserve in
the governmental funds which indicates that it does not constitute available expendable financial resources
even though it is a component of net current assets.

Inventory for Airport Authority (component unit) is recorded as stated above for governmental funds and
U-Co Industries (component unit) is recorded as stated above for proprietary funds.

G. Prepaids and Deferrals

Prepayments and deferrals for governmental funds represent cash disbursements which have occurred and are
therefore not current expendable resources. These items are reported as fund assets on the balance sheet
using the allocation method, which amortizes their cost over the periods benefiting from the advance
payment. At period end, because prepayment and deferrals are not available to finance future governmental
fund expenditures, the fund balance is reserved by an amount equal to the carrying value of the asset.

H. Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs

For governmental fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized during
the current period. Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources net of the applicable premium or
discount. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt
service expenditures. For proprietary fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs,
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges.

I. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets consist of invested funds designated by the Union County Memorial Hospital’s Board of
Trustees for insurance related activities, and the replacement, improvement, and expansion of the hospital’s
facilities as well as for invested funds restricted by Trustees in connection with the hospital’s general
obligation and revenue bonds. Restricted assets also include donor restricted assets whose use is limited to
the activities designated by the donor.




UNION COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:- (CONTINUED)

J. Fixed Assets

The fixed asset values were initially determined at December 31, 1990, assigning original acquisition costs
when such information was available. In cases where information supporting original costs was not available,
estimated historical costs were developed. Donated fixed assets are capitalized at fair market value on the
date donated. The County does not capitalize assets with an initial cost (or estimated historical cost) of less

than $500.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements which extend the useful life or increase the capacity or
operating efficiency of the asset are capitalized at cost.

General Fixed Assets

General fixed assets (fixed assets used in governmentzl fund type operations) are not capitalized in the funds
used to acquire or construct them. Imstead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures
in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the general fixed assets account group at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not
depreciated.

Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and
sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems are not capitalized or reported, as these assets are
immovable and of value only to the County.

Enterprise Fund Fixed Assets

Property, plant and equipment reflected in the enterprise funds are stated at historical cost (or estimated
historical cost) and are updated for the cost of additions and retirements during the year. Depreciation is
provided on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

PRIMARY COMPONENT

GOVERNMENT UNIT
DESCRIPTION ESTIMATED LIVES ESTIMATED LIVES
Land Improvements 10-20 years n/a
Buildings 10-50 years 27.5 years
Water and Sewer Lines 50 years n/a
Equipment 8-10 years 5 years
Furniture/Fixtures 7-15 years n/a
Vehicles 5-8 years n/a
Property under Capital Lease 5-15 years na
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Capitalization of Interest

Interest is capitalized on enterprise fund assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The County’s policy is to
capitalize net interest on construction projects until substantial completion of the project. The amount of
capitalized interest equals the difference between the interest cost associated with the tax-exempt borrowing
used to finance the project from the date of borrowing until completion of the project and the interest earned
from the temporary investment of the debt proceeds over the same period. Capitalized interest is amortized
on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. For 1999 there were no capitalized
interest costs incurred on enterprise fund construction projects.

K. Compensated Absences

The County follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16,
“Accounting for Compensated Absences”. Under these provisions, vacation benefits are accrued as a liability
as the benefits are earned if the employees' rights to receive compensation are attributable to services already
rendered and it is probable that the County will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time
off or some other means. Sick leave benefits for all County departments including Union County Memorial
Hospital, are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. In addition to the various retirement systems’
vesting criteria, the County also imposes a 10-year county service requirement. An accrual for sick leave is
made to the extent it includes those employees who are currently eligible to receive termination (severance)
payments, as well as those employees expected to become eligible in the future. The total liability (including
Union County Memorial Hospital) for vacation and sick leave payments has been calculated using pay rates in
effect at the balance sheet date, and reduced to the maximum payment allowed by labor contract and/or
statute, plus applicable additional salary related payments.

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount expected to be
paid using available expendable financial resources. These amounts are recorded in the account
"compensated absences payable” in the fund from which the employees who have accumulated unpaid leave
are paid. The remainder is reported in the general long-term debt obligations account group. In proprietary
funds, the entire amount of compensated absences is reported as a fund liability.

L. Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

In general, governmenta! fund payables and accrued liabilities are reported as obligations of the funds
regardless of whether they will be liquidated with current resources. However, compensated absences and
capital leases that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the general long-term
obligations account group to the extent that they will not be paid with current available expendable financial
resources. Bonds, capital leases, and long-term loans are reported as a liability of the general long-term
obligations account group until due. Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary funds are
reported as liabilities in the appropriate funds.
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Under Ohio law, a debt retirement fund must be created and used for the payment of all debt service
(principal and interest). Generally accepted accounting principles require the allocation of the debt liability
among the capital projects and enterprise funds, and the general long-term obligations account group, with
principal and interest payments on matured general obligation long-term debt being reported in the debt
service fund. To comply with GAAP reporting requirements, the County's debt retirement fund has been
split among the appropriate funds and account group. Debt service fund resources used to pay both principal
and interest have also been allocated accordingly.

M. Contributed Capital

Contributed capital represents resources from other funds, other governments and private sources provided to
proprietary funds that is not subject to repayment. These assets are recorded at their fair market value on the
date donated.

Because the County had not prepared financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles prior to 1991, the exact amount of contributed capital cannot be determined. Consequently, only
those amounts that have been specifically identified have been classified as contributed capital in the
accompanying combined financial statements. All other fund equity amounts pertaining to proprietary funds
have been classified as retained earnings. At December 31, 1999, the County had contributed capital of
$1,932,194.

N. Reserves of Fund Equity

The County records reservations for portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for specific future
use or which do not represent available expendable financial resources and, therefore, are not available for
expendifure. Undesignated fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity which is available for
appropriation in future periods. Fund balance reserves have been established for encumbrances, inventories,
supplies and prepaids.

0. Intergovernmental Revenues

For governmental funds, intergovernmental revenues, such as grants awarded on a non-reimbursement basis
shared revenues, and entitlements, are recorded as receivables and revenues when measurable and available.
Reimbursement type grants are recorded as receivables and revenues when the related expenditures are
incurred. Grants, entitlements, or shared revenues received for proprietary fund operating purposes are
recognized as non-operating revenues in the accounting period in which they are earned and become
measurable. Such resources restricted for the construction of capital assets are recorded as contributed
capital.

-37-



UNION COUNTY, OHIO )
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:- (CONTINUED)

P. Patient Service Revenues and Accounts Receivable

Union County Memorial Hospital serves patients who generally reside in the local area. These services
primarily are paid by third-party payors including Medicare, Medicaid, and commercial insurance carriers.
Charges to patients are recorded at established billing rates as services are rendered. Allowances are
currently provided for uncollectible accounts and for contractual adjustments, representing the difference
between established billing rates and reimbursement rates paid by third-party payors. Estimates for
contractual adjustments are recorded in the pericd in which services are provided and are based on
preliminary estimates with the final adjustment made in the period in which settlement is made.

The hospital maintains a policy whereby patients in need of medical services are treated without regard to
their ability to pay for such services (charity care). Because the hospital does not pursue collection of
amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net patient service revenue.

Q. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the County has numerous transactions between funds, most of which
are in the form of transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and service debt. The
accompanying general purpose financial statements generally reflect such transactions as operating transfers.
Operating subsidies are also recorded as operating transfers.

Nonrecurring and nonroutine transfers of equity between funds and the transfer of residual balances of
discontinued funds or projects to the general fund, capital projects funds, or debt service fund (when financed
with debt proceeds) are classified as residual equity transfers.

Transactions that constitute reimbursements for expenditures or expenses initially made from a fund that are
properly allocable to another fund are recorded as expenditures or expenses in the reimbursing fund and as
reductions of the expenditures and expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. Quasi-external transactions are
accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses.

R. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to mzke estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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S. Total Columns on General Purpose Financial Statements

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are capticned Total “(Memorandum Only)” to
indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present
financial position, results of operations or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in
the aggregation of this data. When the title of a statement indicates that a component unit is included, two
total columns are presented. The first is captioned “Primary government” to indicate that only those activities
that comprise the County’s legal entity have been included. The second is captioned “Reporting Entity” and
inciudes the activity and operations of the County’s legally separate discretely presented component units (see
Note 1). The total column on statements which do not include a component unit have no additional caption.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTABILITY:-

The following funds had a deficit fund balance/retained earnings as of December 31, 1999:

Deficit Fund Balance/

Fund Type/Fund Retained Earnings
Special Revenue Fund , _

Grant Mediation $ 8,203

Coordination Transportation 5,871
Capital Projects Fund 7

Airport Federal Fund 977
Enterprise Fund _ 7

Sanitary Sewer District 1,289,434

These deficits are the result of accumulated operating losses. The county is reviewing the operation of these
funds to determine how best to alleviate the deficits.
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NOTE 4- RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER:-

In January of 1999, the County eliminated its sole internal service fund by transferring the residual equity
balance in that fund to the general fund:

Internal Service

General Fund Fund
Balance at January 1, 1999 $ 2,376,450 $ 231,396
Residual equity transfer 231,396 { 231,396)
Adjusted balance at January 1, 1999 $ 2,607,846 $ 0

NOTE 5 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING:-

The County’s budgetary process is based upon accounting for transactions on a cash basis. The differences
between the cash basis (budget basis) and the modified accrueal basis (GAAP basis) are that revenues are
recorded when actually received (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP) and the
expenditures are recorded when paid (budget) as opposed to when incurred (GAAP). Additionally, the
County reflects outstanding encumbrances as expenditures on the budgetary basis of accounting. Adjustments
necessary to convert the results of operations at the end of the year on the budget basis to the GAAP basis are

as follows:

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Governmental Fund Types

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
Budget Basis $( 591,879 $( 130,435) $ 3,937 §( 3,492,722)
Net adjustment for
revenue accruals { 44,258) ( 36,874) 0 ( 14,998
Net adjustment for
expenditure accruals 836,380 223,883 10,722 133,229
Net adjustment for
sources/{uses) accruals 844,713 { 866,262) 0 ) 5,519
GAAP Basis 5 1,044 956 $(__809.688) $_. 14659 $(3,368,972)
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS;-

Primary Government

The County (which acts as fiscal agent for the Airport Component Unit) maintains a cash and investment pool
used by all funds. Each fund type’s portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as
“Equity with County Treasurer”.

A. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

Statutes requirs the classification of monies held by the county into two categories. The first category
consists of “active” monies, those monies required to be kept in a “cash” or “near-cash” status for current
demands upon the County Treasury. Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the County Treasury
or in depository accounts payable or withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal
(NOW) accounts.

The second category consists of “inactive” monies, those monies in excess of the amount determined to be
“active” monies. Inactive monies may be deposited or invested in the following securities:

1. United States treasury notes, bills, bonds or any other obligation or security issued by the United States
treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States;

2. Bonds, notes, debentures or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal government agency
or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the federal national mortgage association, federal home
loan bank, federal farm credit bank, federal home loan mortgage corporation, government national
mortgage association and student loan marketing association. All federal agency securities shall be direct
issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities.

3. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market value of the
securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the agreement by at
least two percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the agreement must not exceed
thirty days;

4. Bond and other obligations of the State of Ohio or its political subdivisions, provided that such political
subdivisions, provided that such political subdivisions are located wholly or partly within the County;

5. Time certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts, including, but not limited to, passbook
accounts;

6. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in division (1) or (2)
and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that investments in securities described
in this division are made only through eligible institutions;

7. The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAR Ohio);
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8. Securities lending agreements in which the County lends securities and the eligible institution agrees to
exchange either securities described in division (1) or (2) or cash or both securities and cash, equal value
for equal value;

9. High grade commercial paper in an amount not to exceed five percent of the County’s total average
portfolio;

10. Bankers acceptances for a period not exceed 270 days and in an amount not to exceed ten percent of the
County’s total average portfolio;

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and derivatives are
prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short selling
are also prohibited.

An investment must mature within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation
or debt of the County, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be held to maturity. Protection
of the County’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, by eligible securities
pledged by the financial institution as security for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the
treasurer by the financial institution or by a single collateral pool established by the financial instittion to
secure the repayment of all public moneys deposited with the institution.

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for investments may be
made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the treasurer or qualified trustee, or
if the securities are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the
custodian.

B. DEPOSITS

{. Primary Government

At year-end, the carrying amount of the County’s (including the Airport Authority component unit) deposits,
including non-negotiable certificates of deposit and the amount of deposits representing custodial funds
described in Note 1, was $19,111,194 and the bank balance, including non-negotiable certificates of deposit

and the amount of deposits representing custodial funds described in Note 1 was $21,275,933. Of the bank
balance:

1. 81,035,160 was covered by federal depository insurance; and
2. $20,240,773 was covered by collateral held by a third party trustee pursuant to Section 135.181,

Revised Code, in collateralized or pledged pools securing all public funds on deposits with specific
depository institutions.
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2. Component Unit

At year-end, the carrying amount of the U-Co Industries component unit’s deposits, including non-negotiable
certificates of deposit and the amount of deposits representing custodial funds described in Note 1, was
$886,119 and the bank balance, including non-negotiable certificates of deposit and the amount of deposits
representing custodial funds described in note 1 was $886,119. Of the bank balance:

1. $200,000 was covered by federal depository insurance; and

2. $686,119 was covered by collateral held by a third party trustee pursuant to Section 135.181,
Revised Code, in collateralized pools securing all public funds on deposits with specific
depository institutions.

C. INVESTMENTS

Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the
County. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
broker’s or dealer’s trust department or agent in the County’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer but not in the County’s
name. STAR Ohio is an unclassified investment since it is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or
book entry form.

GASB Statement No. 3 “Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments and Reverse Repurchase
Agreements: requires the County to categorize investments to give an indication of the level of risk assumed
by the County at year end.

As of December 31, 1999, the County’s (including the component units) investments were as follows, market
value approximates fair value:

Reported Fair
1 2 3 Amount Value
U.S. Government Securities 3 0 58,387,728 $ 0 58,387,728 $ 8,465,644
Investments not subject to
categorization:
Investment in State

Treasurer’s Investment Pool 0 0 0 5,913,042 5.913.042

Total investments $ 0 $8,387.728 $ 0 $14,300,770 $14,378,686

The classification of cash and cash eguivalents and investments on the combined financial statements is based
on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9. Funds included within the Treasurer’s county-wide cash
management pool, which are used essentially as demand deposit accounts for the various County funds, and
investments with an original maturity of three months or less are treated as cash and cash equivalents. The
classification of cash and cash equivalents (deposits) for purposes of the note above is based on criteria set
forth in GASB Statement No. 3. o
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A reconciliation between the classifications of pooled cash and cash equivalents and investments on the
Combined Balance sheet and the Classifications of deposits and investments presented above per GASB
Statement No. 3 is as follows:

Equity with
County Treasurer Investmenis

Per Combined Balance Sheet $13,738,310 $ 8,387,728
Reclassifications;

State Treasurer’s Investment Pool { 5,913,042y 5,913,042

Cash int Segregated Accounts 1,058,055
Restricted Assets:

Cash in Segregated Accounts 8,748,963

Cash with Fiscal & Escrow Agents 1,478,908
Per GASE 3 $19! 111,194 $I4!3003770

Ohio Revised Code Chapter 135, Uniform Depository Act, authorizes pledging of pooled securities in lieu of
pledging specific securities. Specifically, a designated public depository may pledge a single pool of eligible
securities to secure the repayment of all public monies deposited in the financial institution, provided that at
all times the total value of the securities so pledged is at least equal to 110% of the total amount of all public
deposits secured by the pool, including the portion of such deposits covered by any federal deposit insurance.

NOTE 7 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS:-

A. Interfund balances at December 31, 1999, consist of the following individual fund receivables and
payables:

Due From Due (To)
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund 3 1,220,000 5 0
Special Revenue Funds
MVGT a ¢ 1,086,269)
Grant Mediation 0 ( 20,000
Capital Projects Funds
DOD Road Construction 236,299 0
Enterprise Funds
Memorial Hospital 0 { 400,000)
Agency Funds
Soil & Water Conservation 0 { 10,000%
CFHS Grant 10,000 0
Total Interfund Receivables/Payables 5 1,516,299 $ (1,516,299
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B. The following is a summarized breakdown of the County’s operating transfers for 1999:

Fund ) Transfers (Out) Transfers In
General Fund
General $(__145,536) ~ $ 287,830
Special Revenue Funds

Motor Vehicle Gas Tax $( 166,910) $ 587,394
Public Assistance ( 19,574) 258,570
Dog and Kennel ( 142) 0
ADAMH ( 100,698) 42,610
MRDD { 265,466) 325
Coordination Transportation 0 19,574
CSEA ( 134,202) 0
Delinquent Real Estate Tax ( T21) 0
Children Services ( 49,435) 656
Treasurer Prepay Interest ( 4,039 0
Supporting Housing 0 20,000
Community Support Services 0 31,029
Certificate Title Administration { 46,801 0
Ohio Law Block Grant { 16,194) 1,600
Family & Children First ( 1,285) 0

Total Special Revenue Funds $(_805,467) $ 961,158
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Fund

Debt Service Fund
Bond Retirement Fund

Capital Project Funds
Federal Fund
Airport Federal
London Avenue Building
Capital Improvements
County Garage Construction
MRDD Capital Fund

Total Capital Project Funds
Enterprise Funds
Water District
Sanitary Sewer
Total Enterprise Funds

Component Units
Airport Hanger Fund

Total Component Units

Total Transfers, All Funds
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Transfers (Out) Transfers In
3 0 $ 304,657
$( 36,127) $ 0

0 3,957
0 634,582
(1,550,520) 0
0 80,000
0 265,466
$(1,586,647) $_984.005

$C 70,955 § 70,955
{ 192.927) 263,677
$( 263,882) §$§ 334632
$C 70,750y $ 0
§_ 70,750y $ 0
$(2,872,282) $ 2,872,282
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NOTE 8 - PROPERTY TAXES:-

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility and tangible personal property located in
the County. Taxes collected on real property (other than public utility property) in one calendar year are
levied in the preceding calendar year on assessed values as of Jannary 1 of that preceding vear, the lien date.
Assessed values are established by the County Auditor at thirty-five percent of appraised market value. All
property is required to be revalued every six years. The last reappraisal was completed in 1998. Real
property taxes are payable annually or semiannuaily. The first payment is due December 31, with the
remainder payable by June 20, unless extended.

Taxes collected on tangible personal property (cther than public utility property) in one calendar year are
levied in the prior calendar year on assessed values during and at the close of the most recent fiscal year of
the taxpayer that ended on or before March 31 of that calendar year, and at the tax rates determined in the
preceding year. Tangible personal property used in business (except for public utilities) is currently assessed
for ad valorem taxation purposes at twenty-five percent of its true value. Amounts paid by multi-county
taxpayers are due September 20. Single-county taxpayers may pay annually or semiannually. If paid
annually, payment is due April 30; if paid semiannually, the first payment is due April 30, with the remainder
payable by September 20.

The County Treasurer collects property taxes on behaif of all taxing districts within the County. The County
Auditor periodically remits to the taxing districts their portions of taxes collected. Collections of the taxes
and remittance of them to the taxing districts are accounted for in various agency funds of the County.

Public utility real and tangible personal property taxes collected in one calendar year are levied in the
preceding calendar year on assessed values determined as of December 31 of the year preceding the tax
collection year, the lien date. Certain public utility tangible personal property is currently assessed at eighty-
eight percent of its true value. Public utility property taxes are payable on the same dates as real property
taxes described previously.

Taxes receivable which are subsequently due to other subdivisions are reported in an agency fund. The
County’s tax receivable is reported in the governmental fund which will receive the distribution. Both
amounts are offset by a credit to deferred revenue. Accrued property taxes receivable represents delinquent
taxes outstanding and real, tangible personal, and public utility property taxes which were measurable and
unpaid as of December 31, 1995. Although total property tax collections for the next fiscal year are
measurable, amounts to be received during the available period are not subject to reasonable estimation at
December 31 and are not intended to finance 1999 operations.
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NOTE 8 - PROPERTY TAX:- (CONTINUED)

The full tax rate for all County operations for the year ended December 31, 1999, was $9.90 per $1,000 of
assessed value. The assessed values of real and tangible personal property upon which 1999 property tax
receipts were based are as follows:

Real Property
Agricultural $112,901,860
Residential 337,689,460
Commercial/Industrial/Mineral 123,771,380
Tangible Personal Property 183,927,680
Public Utitity
Real 170,600
Personal 69,188,050
Total Assessed Value $827,649,030

NOTE 9 - PERMISSIVE SALES AND USE TAX:-

The County Commissioners by resolution imposed a one percent tax on all retail sales made in the County,
except sales of motor vehicles, and on the storage, use, or consumption of tangible personal property in the
County, including motor vehicles not subject to the sales tax. Vendor collections of the tax are paid to the
State Treasurer by the twenty-third day of the month following collection. The State Tax Commissioner
certifies to the State Auditor the amount of the tax to be returned to the County. The Tax Commissioner’s
certification must be made within forty-five days after the end of each month. The State Auditor then has five
days in which to draw the warrant payable to the County.

Proceeds of the tax are credited to the General Fund and Debt Service Fund (Sales Tax Debt Fund).

Amounts that are measurable and available at year-end are accrued as revenue. Sales and Use tax revenue
for 1999 amounted to $ 4,337,710 and $228,000 for the General and Debt Service Funds, respectively.
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NOTE 10 - RECEIVABLES:-

Receivables at December 31, 1999, consisted of taxes, accounts (e.g., billings for user charged services,
including unbilled utility services), special assessments, inierest, intergovernmental receivables arising from
grants, entitlements, and shared revenues, and notes receivable. All receivables are considered fully
collectibie except for patient accounts receivable at Union County Memorial Hospital and receivables related
to child supportt as reflected in the Alimony and Child support agency fund. These receivables are presented
net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Delinquent utility accounts receivable are certified and
collected as a special assessment, subject to foreclosure for nonpayment.

Enterprise
Gross Patient Accounts Receivable $10,834,779
Less Allowance for:
Uncollectible Accounts {1,605,313)
Contractual Adjustments (3,179,000)
Other accounts receivable 1,630,176
Net Total Accounts Receivable $ 7,680,642
NOTE 11 - LOANS RECEIVABLE:-
A summary of the changes in loans receivable during 1999 follows:
Interest Quistanding New Qutstanding
Rate 12/31/98 Loans _ Repayments : 12/31/99
General Fund :
Union County Agricultural Society 0.00% $ 25,000 hY ] $ 5,000 $ 20,000
Richwood Agricultural Seciety 0.00% 20,000 0 0 20,000
Total General Fund $_ 45000 $ 0 $§_5.000 $_40,000
Special Revenue Fund:
Revolving Loan Fund
Northern Lights Neon 5.90% 0 10,000 2,077 7,923
Northern Lights Neon 5.90% 0 2,500 349 _ 2,151
Total Special Revenue Fund 0 12,500 2,426 10,074
Total ail funds $ 45000 $ 12,500 § 7.426 hy 501074
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NOTE 12 - FIXED ASSETS:-

A summary of the enterprise funds’ and U-Co Industries {component unit) fixed assets at December 31,

1999, follows:

Land and Improvements
Buildings

Water and Sewer Lines
Equipment
Fumiture/Fixtures
Vehicles

Construction in Progress

Less Accumuiated Depreciation

A summary of the changes in general fixed assets during 1999 foilows:

Land

Improvemenis

Buildings

Equipment
Furniture/Fixtures
Vehicles

Construction In Progress

Total

Total Total
Primary Reporting
Sanitary Water Memorial Government U-Co Entity
Sewer District Hospital Enterprise Industries  Enterprise
3 740,313 5 0 $1,512,306 $2,252,619 $ 40,115 § 2,292,734
132,670 0 23,175,951 23,308,621 254,273 23,562,894
3,422,816 1,790,608 11,630,073 16,843,497 0 6,843,497
165,519 653 4,496,903 4,663,075 68,139 4,731,214
8,223 0 0 8,223 0 8,223
24,307 0 0 24,307 0 24,307
0 0 _2364017 2,364,017 0 _2364,017
4,493,848 1,791,261 43,179,250 49,464,359 362,527 49,826,886
( 1,020,691)  (__59.536) (22,380,566)  (23.460,793)  ( 68.273) (23,529,066)
$ 3,473,157 $1,731,725 $20,798,684 $26.003,566 $ 294254  $26,297,820
Balance Balance
12/31/98 Additions Reductions 12/31/99
$ 1,236,144 $ 81,702 $ 0 $ 1,317,846
258,628 0 0 258,628
11,745,325 2,967,197 236,878 14,475,644
2,936,332 318,692 25,136 3,229 888
799,823 43,768 0 843,591
3,399,975 164,074 25,332 3,538,717
0 1,446,398 0 1,446,398
$20,376,227 B $ 5,021,831 $ 287,346 $25=110,712
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NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT:~

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft or damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. During 1999, the County contracted with
the County Risk Sharing Authority (CORSA) for property, general liability, commercial fleet, liability
employee’s benefit, data processing equipment, 911 equipment, County Engineer contractor equipment,
valuable paper’s additional, theft/disappearance/destruction for inside and outside, crime coverage, forgery
and alteration of checks, and umbrella liability insurance.

Type Coverage , Deductible
General Casualty $ 1,000,000 ' $ 2,500
Property Liability Replacement Cost 2,500
Commercial Fleet

- Liability 1,000,000 2,500

- Physical Damage Actual Cash Value 2,500
Umbrella Liability 5,000,000 2,500
Valuable Papers Actual Loss Sustained 2,500
911 Equipment Replacement Cost 2,500
Public Officials 1,000,000 2,500
Liability Employees” Benefit Limits 250,000 2,500
County Engineer Contractor Equipment Actual Cash Value 2,500
All Other Policies 1,000,000 © 2,500

The Mental Health and Recovery Board has property and liability insurance with Cincinnati Insurance
Company for three complexes. Building and personal property coverage ranges from $40,000 to $790,000
with $100/250 deductibles. Each complex has a $1,000,000 general liability policy.

The Board of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities has a professional liability insurance policy
with coverage of $2,000,000 per occurrence, and $5,000,000 in the aggregate.

The Union County Airport Authority has a property insurance policy with United States Aviation
Underwriters. The airport premises has a $5,000,000 limit. Airport hangars have a $1,000,000 limit.
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The Union County Sheriff has a Firing Range liability policy with the National Rifle Association with a
$1,000,000 limit, and a Law Enforcement liability policy with National Casualty Company for $1,000,000
with a $10,000 deductible.

Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in the last three
years. '

For 1999, the County participated in the County Commissioners Association of Ohic Service Corporation, a
worker’s compensation group rating plan (the Plan), an insurance purchasing pool (see Note 24). The Plan
is intended to achieve lower workers’ compensation rates while establishing safer working conditions and
environments for the participants. The workers’ compensation experience of the participating counties is
calculated as one experience and a common premium rate is applied to all counties in the Plan. Each county
pays its workers’ compensation premium to the State based on the rate for the Plan rather than the County’s
individual rate. In order to allocate the savings derived by the formation of the Plan, and to maximize the
number of participants in the Plan, the Plan’s executive committee annually calculates the total savings which
accrued to the Plan through its formation. This savings is then compared to the overall savings percentage of
the Plan. The Plan’s executive committee then collects rate contributions from or pays rate equalization
rebates to the various participants. Participation in the Plan is limited to counties that can meet the Plan’s
selection criteria. The firm of Comp Management, Inc., provides administrative, cost control, and actuarial
services to the Plan. Each year, the County pays an enrollment fee to the Plan to cover the costs of
administering the program.

The County may withdraw from the Plan if written notice is provided sixty days prior to the prescribed
application deadline of the Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation. However, the County is not relieved of
the obligation to pay any amounts owed to the Plan prior to withdrawal, and any County leaving the Plan
allows the representative of the Plan to access loss experience for three years following the last year of
participation.

The Union County Memorial Hospital purchases professional liability insurance on a claims-made basis up to
specified policy limits of $1,000,000 per claim, $3,000,000 in annual aggregate, and total excess coverage of
$5,000,000.

Union County Memorial Hospital has a self-insured program for employee health benefits. Under this
program the Hospital provides coverage up to a maximum of $60,000 for each individual with an aggregate
of $1,500,000 per lifetime for each individual. The Hospital has purchased commercial insurance for claims
in excess of coverage provided under the self-insured program.

In August, 1995, the Hospital became self-insured for worker’s compensation coverage. The Hospital is

responsible for $400,000 per claim under the self-insured program. The Hospital has purchased commercial
insurance for claims in excess of $400,000.
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The liability for unpaid claims costs is determined by actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior-
and current-year claims. The $509,639 claims liability reported in the Memorial Hospital enterprise fund at
December 31, 1999, is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to issuance of the financial
staternents indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the Hospital’s claims liability amount in
1999 and the prior two years are as follows:

Current Year
Claims and
Beginning Changes in Claims Ending
Balance Estimate Payment Balance
1999 $ 424,639 $ 1,589,807 $ 1,504,807 $ 509,639
1998 510,185 1,464,154 1,549,700 424 639
1997 441,000 ...~ 1,403,193 1,334,008 510,185

NOTE 14 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS:-

A. Public Employees Retirement System

The County contributes to the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement Board. PERS
provides basic retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter
145 of the Ohio Revised Code. The Public Employees Retirement System issues a stand-alone financial
report. Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written request to 277 East Town Street, Columbus,
Ohio 43215-4642.

Plan members, other than those engaged in law enforcement, are required to contribute 8.5 percent of their
annual covered salary to fund pension obligations and the County is required to contribute 13.55 percent;
8.44 percent was the portion used to fund pension obligations. For law enforcement employees, the
employee contribution is 9.0 percent and the employer contribution is 12.5 percent. Contributions are
authorized by state statute, and the contribution rates are determined actuarially. The county’s contribution to
PERS for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 were, $3,731,842, $3,509,032 and
$3,195,104, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.
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B. State Teachers Retirement System

The County contributes to the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS), a cost-sharing muitiple
employer public employee retirement system administered by the State Teachers Retirement Board. STRS
provides basic retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care benefits based on eligible service
credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code.
STRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for STRS. The report may be obtained by writing to the State Teachers Retirement System, 275
East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771.

Plan members are required to contribute 9.3 percent of their annual covered salary and the County is required
to contribute 14 percent. Contribution rates are established by STRS, upon recommendation of its consulting
actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates of 10 percent for members and 14 percent for employers.
The county’s contributions to STRS for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $57,205,
$52,166 and $51,539, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

NOTE 15 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:-

A. Public Emplovees Retirement System

The Public Employees Retirement System of Chio (PERS) provides postretirement health care coverage to
age and service retirants with ten or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for
disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is available. The health care coverage provided by the
retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement
No. 12. A portion of each employer’s contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of post retirement
health care based on the authority granted by State statute. The 1999 employer contribution rate was 13.55
percent of covered payroll; 4.2 percent was the portion that was used to fund health care in 1999. The law
enforcement employer rate for 1999 was 16.70 percent and 4.2 percent was used to fund health care.

The Ohio Revised code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to fund postretirement
health care through their contributions to PERS.

OPEB are financed through employer contributions and investment earnings there on. The contributions
allocated to retiree health care, along with investment income on allocated assets and pericdic adjustients in
health care provisions are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely.

The number of benefit recipients eligible for OPEB was 118,062. The County’s actual contributions for 1999
which were used to fund postemployment benefits were $1,156,733. The actual contribution and the
actuarially required contribution amounts are the same. PERS’s unaudited amount of estimated net assets
available for payment of benefits at December 31, 1999 was $9,870,285,641.
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B. State Teachers Retirement System

Comprehensive health care benefits are provided to retired teachers and their dependents through the State
Teachers Retirement System (STRS). Benefits include hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription drugs,
and reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. All benefit recipients and sponsored dependents are
eligible for health care coverage. The State Teachers Retirement Board has statutory authority over how
much, if any, of the health care costs will be absorbed by STRS.

Benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. All benefit recipients are required to pay a portion of their
health care cost in the form of a monthly premium. Under Ohio law, the cost of coverage paid from STRS
funds shall be included in the employer contribution rate, currently 14 percent of covered payroll. The board
currently allocates employer contributions equal to eight percent of covered payroll to the Health Care
Reserve Fund. For the County, this amount equaled $8,172 during 1999. The balance in the Fund was
$2,783 million at June 30, 1999. Eligible benefit recipients totaled 95,796. For the year ended June 30,
1999, net health care costs paid by STRS were $249,929,000. _

NOTE 16 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS;-

A. Compensated Absences

County employees earn vacation and sick leave at varying rates depending on length of service, standard
work week, and department policy. All accumulated, unused vacation time is paid upon separation from the
County. County employees who have ten or more years of service are paid upon eligible retirement (under
PERS guidelines) for one-fourth of the value of their accumulated, unused sick leave up to a maximum of

thirty days.
B. Emplovee Health Insurance

The County provides employee co-pay medical/surgical benefits through a health maintenance organization.
United Healthcare, Inc. rates were tiered for single, two party, and family households. The County’s portion
is paid from the fund from which the employee’s salaries are paid. Under the fully insured program, there is
no deductible for HMO network providers, and a $300/500 per year single/family deductible for non-network
providers.

Union County Memorial Hospital provides medical, surgical, dental, and vision benefits through a self
insurance program. Under the program, Hospital employees share in the cost of their insurance coverage.
Their portion of the cost is determined by the plan selected, single or family, and the co-pay associated with
that plan. Claims under the plan are administered by the Hospital’s third-party administrator.
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NOTE 17 - SHORT-TERM OBLIGATIONS;-

The changes in the county’s short-term obligations during 1999 consisted of the following

Outstanding Outstanding
12/31/98 Issued Retired 12/31/99
Enterprise Funds:
Sanitary Sewer
Sanitary Sewer Notes 3.61% 30 $3,500,000 $0 $3,500,000
Sanitary Sewer Notes 4.01% 3,700,000 . D 3,700,000 0
Water District
Water District Notes 3.61 % 0 1,500,000 o 1,500,000
Water District Notes 4.01% 1,500 0 1,500,000 ¢
Total Enterprise Funds 5,200,000 5,000,000 5,200,000 5,000,000
Total short-term obligations $.5,200,000 $.5,000,000 $ 5,200,000 $ 5,000,000

The retired notes in the enterprise funds were bond anticipation notes. Bond anticipation notes are backed by
the full faith and credit of Union County and are payable from governmental revenues. The note liability was
reflected in the fund which received the proceeds. Bond anticipation notes issued during 1999 have a
maturity of one year.

NOTE 18 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS:-

The changes in the County’s long-term obligations during 1999 consisted of the following:

Quistanding Qutstanding
12/31/98 Additions Reductions 12/31/99
General Long-term Obligations: ’
General Obligation Bonds: _ _
1986 Airport - 8.00% $ 50,000 - h] 0 $ 10,000 $ 80,000
1992 Airport - 5.50% 280,000 o 15,000 265,000
1996 JDC Construction - 4.20%-5.60% 440,000 0 45,000 395,000
1997 Airport - 4.20% - 5.40% 530,000 0 15,000 515,000
1998 Sheriff Facility - 3.9% - 4.9% 2,860,000 1] 90,000 2,770,000
1998 Building Renovation - 3.60% -~ .
4.85% (Refunding Bonds) 3,995,000 0 185,000 3,810,600
Total General Obligation Bonds 8,195,000 1] 360,000 7,835,000
Other Long-Term Obligations: o
1993 Mortgage loan - 7.50% 257,914 0 6,317 251,597
Compensated absences 429,981 34,141 0 464,122
Capital leases 13,159 0 6,829 6,330
Total other long-term obligations 701,054 34,141 13,146 722,049
Total General Long-term Obligations Y 8§896!054 $ 34,141 3 373,146 5 8,557,049
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NOTE 18 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS:- (CONTINUED)

OQuistanding Qutstanding
12/31/98 ~ Additions Reductions 12/31/99
Enterprise Fund Obligations:
1989 Ohio Variable Rate Demand
Hospital Revenue Bonds $ 360,000 5 0 $ 360,000 $ 0
1990 Memonial Hospital - 6.55%
General Obligations Bonds 795,000 0 795,000 0
1993 Memorial Hospital - 3.00%
Refunding General Obligations Bonds 3,615,000 0 310,000 3,305,000
1996 Memorial Hospital - 3.75% to 5.50% '
General Obligations Bonds 2,425,000 0 90,000 2,335,000
1999 Memorial Hospital - 2.50% to 5.55%
General Cbligations Bonds 0 11,000,000 55,000 10,945,000
OPWC Loans Payable - 0.00% 124,873 0 7,927 116,946
Compensated Absences 532,848 35 0 532,883
Capital Leases 311,214 251,935 148,336 414 813
Total Enterprise Fund Obligations 8,163,935 11,251,970 1,766,263 17.649.642
Total Long-Term Obligations 17,059 989 31 15286!1 11 by 2!139!409 $26!206!691

All general obligation bonds are supported by the full faith and credit of Union County. General obligation
airport bonds and building renovation bonds are presented as a liability in the general Iong-term obligations
account group and are payable from unvoted property tax revenues to the extent that other resources are not
available to meet annual principal and interest expenditures. General obligation hospital bonds are presented
as a liability in the enterprise fund and are payable from unvoted property tax revenues to the extent that
operating resources of the Hospital are not available to meet annual principal and interest expenditures.

1992 Building Renovation Bonds

The Building Renovation general obligation bonds include serial and term bonds. The term bonds have
annual mandatory sipking fund redemption requirements and there are optional redemption provisions for the
serial bonds. The term bonds mature on December 1, 2011, in the amount of $1,305,000, at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal plus accrued interest to the redemption date. The serial bonds maturing
on or after December 1, 2003, are subject to early redemption, at the sole option of the County, either in
whole on any date or in part on any interest payment date, on or after December 1, 2002, in multiples of
$5,000, at the following redemption prices, plus accrued interest:

Redemption Dates - Redemption Prices
December 1, 2002 through November 30, 2003 101 percent
December 1, 2003 and thereafter 100 percent
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NOTE 18 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS:- (CONTINUED)

1990 Memorial Hospital Bonds

The Memorial Hospital general obligation bonds include serial and term bonds. The term bonds have annual
mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements and there are optional redemption provisions for the serial
bonds. The term bonds mature on December 1, 2010, in the amount of $705,000, at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal plus accrued interest to the redemption date. The serial bonds maturing on or
after December 1, 2001, are subject to early redemption, at the sole option of the County, either in whole on
any date or in part on any interest payment date, on or after December 1, 2000, in multiples of $5,000, at the
following redemption prices, plus accrued interest:

Redemption Dates Redemption Prices
December 1, 2000 through November 30, 2001 102 percent
December 1, 2001 through November 30, 2002 o 101 percent
December 1, 2002 and thereafter 100 percent

1993 Memorial Hospital Refunding Bonds

The Union County Memorial Hospital Refunding Bonds, with an original issue of $5,170,000, were issued to
advance refund the hospital’s 1987 general obligation bonds as well as to provide the Hospital additional
funds for improvements. The bonds are presented as a liability in the enterprise fund and are payable from
unvoted property tax revenues to the extent that operating resources of the Hospital are not available to meet
annual principal and interest expenditures. The refunding bonds defeased in-substance $2,700,000 in general
obligation bonds. At December 31, 1999, $1,750,000 of this debt was still outstanding.

The Memorial Hospital Refund general obligation bonds include serial and term bonds. The term bonds have
annual mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements and there are optional redemption provisions for the
serial bonds. The term bonds mature on December 1, 2008, in the amount of $1,085,000, at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal plus accrued interest to the redemption date. The serial bonds maturing
on or after December 1, 2004, are subject to early redemption, at the sole option of the County, either in
whole on any date or in part on any interest payment date, on or after December 1, 2003, in multiples of
$5,000, at the following redemption prices, plus accrued interest:

Redemption Dates Redemption Prices
December 1, 2003 through November 30, 2004 101 percent
December 1, 2004 and thereafter 100 percent
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1996 Memorial Hospital Bonds

The Memorial Hospital general obligation bonds inciude serial and term bonds. The term bonds have annual
mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements and there are optional redemption provisions for the serial
bonds. The term bonds mature on December 1, 2016, in the amount of $1,200,000, at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal plus accrued interest to the redemption date. The serial bonds maturing on or
after December 1, 2006, are subject to early redemption, at the sole option of the County, either in whole on
any date or in part on any interest payment date, on or after December 1, 2006, in multiples of $5,000, at
the following redemption prices, plus accrued interest:

Redemption Dates Redemption Prices
December 1, 2006 through November 30, 2007 101 percent
December 1, 2007 and thereafter 100 percent

1998 Building Renovation Bonds

The Building Renovation Refunding Bonds, with an original issue of $4,110,000, were issued to advance refund
the County’s 1992 general obligation bonds as well as to provide the County additional funds for improvements.
The refunding Bonds defeased in-substance $1,955,000 in general obligation bonds. At December 31, 1999,
$1,760,000 of this debt was still outstanding,

The General Obligation Bonds include serial and term bonds. The term bonds have annual mandatory sinking
fund redemption requirements and there are optional redemption provisions for the serial bonds. The term
bonds mature on December 1, 2018, in the amount of $670,000, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal plus accrued interest to the redemption date. The serial bonds, maturing on or after December 1, 2013,
are subject to early redemption, at the sole option of the County, either in whole on any date, or in part on any
interest date, on or after December 1, 2008, in multiples of $5,000, at the following redemption prices, plus
accrued interest:

Redemption Dates Redemption Prices
December 1, 2008 through November 30, 2009 101 percent
December 1, 2009 and thereafter 100 percent
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1998 Sheriff Facility Bonds

The Sheriff Facility Bonds include serial and term bonds. The term bonds have annual mandatory sinking
fund redemption requirements and there are optional redemption provisions for the serial bonds. The term
bonds mature on December 1, 2018, in the amount of $1,145,000, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal plus accrued interest to the redemption date. The serial bonds, maturing on or after December 1, 2012,
are subject to early redemption, at the sole option of the County, either in whole on any date, or in part on any
interest date, on or after December 1, 2008, in multiples of $5,000, at the following redemption prices, plus
accrued interest:

Redemption Dates Redemption Prices
December 1, 2008 through November 30, 2009 101 percent
December 1, 2009 and thereafter 100 percent

1999 Memorial Hospital Bonds

The Union County Memorial Hospital Refunding Bonds, with an original issue of $11,000,000, were issued
to advance refund the hospital’s 1990 general obligation bonds as well as to provide for the construction of a
long-term care facility and construction of emergency room improvements. The bonds are presented as a
liability in the enterprise fund and are payable from unvoted property tax revenues to the extent that operating
resources of the Hospital are not available to meet annua!l principal and interest expenditures. The refunding
bonds defeased in-substance $865,000 in general obligation bonds. At December 31, 1999, $865,000 of this
debt was still outstanding.

The Memorial Hospital general obligation bonds include serial and term bonds. The term bonds have annual
mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements and there are optional redemption provisions for the serial
bonds. The term bonds mature on December 1, 2014 ($1,850,000), 2019 ($2,420,000), and 2024
($3,135,000) at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal plus accrued interest to the redemption
date. The serial bonds maturing on or after December 1, 2009, are subject to early redemption, at the sole
option of the County, either in whole on any date or in part on any interest payment date, on or after
December 1, 2009, in multiples of $5,000, at the following redemption prices, plus accrued interest:

Redemption Dates Redemption Prices
December 1, 2009 through November 30, 2010 , 101 percent
December 1, 2010 and thereafter 100 percent

The Mental Health and Recovery Board of Union County (ADAMH) entered into a mortgage loan agreement
for the acquisition of housing for homeless and at risk of being homeless persons. The twenty-year mortgage
loan is presented as 2 liability in the general long-term obligations account group and is payable from unvoted
property tax revenues to the extent that other resources, in the form of grants and rent charges, are not
available to meet principal and interest expenditures.

Principal and interest payments are reflected as health expenditures in the ADAMH special revenue fund.
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Compensated Absences are presented at net because it is not practical to determine actual increases and
decreases. The compensated absences liability will be paid from the fund from which the employees’ salaries
are paid. Capital lease obligations will be paid from the fund that maintains custody of the related assets.

The Ohio Variable Rate Demand Hospital Revenue Bonds were issued by Marion County, Ohio (Marion
County) to finance certain construction projects and major equipment purchases at various hospitals. The
Hospital leases the facilities and equipment from Marion County and receives title to the property at
retirement of the respective bonds. The facilities and equipment are included in the hospital’s fixed assets.
The Hospital’s liability represents future lease payments to Marion County in amounts equal to the Hospital’s
prorata portion of the total debt service payments required under the bond issue. The bonds are payable from
the operating revenues of the hospital and are not a general obligation of Union County.

The OPWC Loans represent money owed to the Ohio Public Works Commission for improvements made to
Jerome Industrial Park Sanitary Sewer Treatment Facility and Kimberly Woods Wastewater Treatment Plant.
The OPWC Loans are payable solely from the gross revenues of the Sanitary Sewer enterprise fund.

The Ohio Revised Code provides that the net general obligation debt of the County, exclusive of certain
exempt debt, issued without a vote of the electors should not exceed one percent of the total assessed
valuation of the County. The code further provides that the total voted and unvoted net debt of the County
less the same exempt debt should not exceed a sum equal to three percent of the first $100,000,000 of the
assessed valuation, plus one and one-half percent of such valuation in excess of $100,000,000 and not in
excess of $300,000,000, plus two and one-half percent of such valuation in excess of $300,000,000.

The effects of the debt limitations described above at December 31, 1999 are an overall debt margin of
$14,008,833 and an unvoted debt margin of $3,385,367.

The following is a summary of the County’s future annual debt service requirements for long-term
obligations, including interest of $12,015,543:

Memorial
Hospital
General General
Obligation Mortgage OPWC Obligation
Xear Bonds Loan Loans Bonds Total
2600 $750,480 $25,411 $7,927 $1,536,690 $2,320,508
2001 749,363 25,411 7,927 1,531,650 2,314,351
2002 752,330 25,411 7,927 1,534,708 2,320,376
2003 748,698 25,411 1,927 1,535,268 2,317,304
2004 749,818 25411 7,927 1,533,433 2,316,589
Thereafter 1.713.519 124.542 77,311 19,360,973 21,336,347

5$11,524208 $251.5097 $116.946 $27.032.724 $38.925.475
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NOTE 19 - CAPITAL LEASES - LESSEE DISCLOSURE:-

The County has entered into capitalized leases for land, building, equipment, and furniture and fixtures.
Each lease meets the criteria of a capital lease as defined by Statement of financial Accounting Standards
No. 13, “Accounting for Leases”, which defines a capital lease generally as one which transfers benefits and
risks of ownership to the lessee. For governmental funds, new capital leases are reflected in the accounts
“capital outlay” and “inception of capital lease™ in the funds which will be making the lease payments.
Capital lease payments are reflected as debt service expenditures in the combined financial statements for the
governmental funds and as a reduction of the liability in the enterprise funds. General fixed assets consisting
of equipment have been capitalized in the general fixed assets account group in the amount of $46,108 and
enterprise fund fixed assets consisting of land, buildings, equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized in the funds in the amount of $4,496,903. These amounts represent the present value of the
minimum l[ease payments at the time of acquisition. A corresponding liability was recorded in the general
long-term obligations account group and in the enterprise funds. Principal payments in 1999 totaled $148,336
in the enterprise funds.

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
Property under Capital lease - $ 4,496,903
Less accumulated depreciation (4,033,419)
Total $ 463,484

The following is a schedule of the future long-term minimurm lease payments required under the capital leases
and the present value of the minimum lease payments as of December 31, 1999.

YEAR GLTDAG ENTERPRISE
2000 $ 4,128 $ 127,521
2001 3,785 119,765
2002 _ 0 114,225
2003 ) 0 99,545
2004 0 10,068
Thereafter 0 0
Total 7,913 471,124
Less: amount representing interest (1,583 { 56,311)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $__6,330 $_414,813
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NOTE 20 - FEDERAL FOGD STAMP PROGRAM:-

The County's Department of Human Services distributes federal food stamps through the department as well
as through contracting issuance centers to entitled recipients within Union County. The receipt and issuance
of these stamps have the characteristics of federal "grants", however, the Department of Human Services
merely acts in an intermediary capacity.

The inventory value of these stamps is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements as the only
economic interest related to these stamps rests with the ultimate recipient. Federal food stamp activity for the

year is as follows:

Balance at beginning of year ) : $ 109,280
Amount received for distribution 613,115
Amount distributed to entitled recipients ( 719,716)

Balance at end of year 3 2,679

NOTE 21 - NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE:-

Union County Memorial Hospital provides to certain patients covered by various third party payor
arrangements that provide for payments to the Hospital at amounts different than its established rates. Gross
patient service revenue and the allowances to reconcile to net patient service revenue for the year ended

December 31, 1999, are as follows:

Gross patient service revenue $56,109,956
Less third party allowances;-
Medicare (8,107,611)
Medicaid (1,772,606)
Other (9,024,349}
Total allowances 18,504,566
Net patient service revenue $37,205,390
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NOTE 22 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS:-

3

The County maintains four enterprise funds which are intended to be self-supporting through user fees
charged for services provided to consumers for sewer services, water services, building permits, and medical
services. The component unit, U-Co Industries, provides various services for the mentally
retarded/developmentally disabled. Financial segment information as of and for the year ended December 31,
1999, is as follows:

UCo
Sewer Water Building & Memorial Total Primary (Component Total Reporting
Disrict District Devel Hospital G Unith Exti
Operating Revenue $431,688 3291979 $514,063 340,047,594 $41,285324 53,891,212 $45,176,536
Cperating Expenses

Before Depreciation 359,050 184,280 477,038 37,406,129 38,426,497 4216,188 42,642 685
Pepreciation Fxpense 100,001 14,486 0 1,757,385 1,371,872 3,493 1,875365
Operating Income (Loss) 122,623 93,213 37,m5 $84,080 1,136941 (328,469) 808,472
Net Income (Loss) {136,080) 87987 37,025 558,996 547,928 135,084 683012
Currert Contributed Capital 1,893,294 38,900 ¢ 0 1,932,194 5 1,932,154
Property, Plart,

& Equipement (Net) 3473157 1,731,725 0 20,798,684 26,003,566 254,254 26,297,820
Net Working Capital 747,649 230,829 91,386 13,775,980 14,845,844 749,641 15,595,485
Total Assets 4,329,846 2,038,613 178,121 40,447,814 46,994394 1,906,075 48,900,469
Notes Payable 3,506,000 1,500,000 ] 0 5,000,000 0 5,000,000
General Chligation

Bonds Payable 0 0 0 16,585,000 16,585,000 ) 16,585,000
Total Liabilities 3,725986 1,576,059 86,735 22,350,249 27,739,029 862,180 28,601,209
Total Equity 603,860 462,554 91,386 " 18,087,565 19,255,365 1,043,895 20,209260
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NOTE 23 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS:-

A. Five County Joint Juvenile Detention and Rehabilitation Center

The Five County Joint Juvenile Detention and Rehabilitation Center is 3 jointly governed organization
involving Unicn, Champaign, Delaware, Logan and Madison Counties. The Center provides facilities for the
training, treatment and rehabilitation of delinquent, dependent, abused or neglected children and was
established under Section 2151.34 of the Ohio Revised Code. The operation of the Center is controlled

by a joint board of trustees whose membership consists of two appointees of the Union County
Commissioners, two appointees of the Delaware County Commissioners and one appointee from Champagne,
Logan and Madison Counties. Each county’s ability to influence the operations of the Center is limited to
their representation on the board of trustees. Appropriations are adopted by the joint board of trustees who
exercise control over the operation, maintenance and construction of the Center. Union County serves as the
fiscal agent. Each county is charged for their share of the operating costs of the Center based on the number
of individuals from their County in attendance. In 1999, Union County contributed $154,258 for the Center’s
operations which represents 23.41 percent of total contributions.

B. North Central Ohio Solid Waste Management District

Union County participates in a jointly governed solid waste management district, along with Allen,
Champaign, Hardin, Madison and Shelby Counties. The District was established following the requirements
of House Bill 592. The board of directors consists of County Commissioners from each County. Each
county’s ability to influence the operations of the District is limited to their representation on the board of
directors. The original funding for the District was contributed by each county based on its population
compared to the total population of all participating counties. For Union County, this represented 10 percent
of total contributions. It is the intent of the District to be totally self-supporting and not require any funding
from the participating counties. In 1999, no contribution was required of Union County. Allen County,
being the largest of the six counties, is the fiscal agent of the District.

C. LUC Regional Planning Commission

Union County participates in the LUC Regional Planning Commission which is a statutorily created political
subdivision of the State. The Commission is jointly governed among Logan, Union and Champaign Counties,
and the cities of Bellefontaine, Marysville, and Urbana. Each member’s control over the operation of the
Comumission is limited to its representation on the board. The Commission makes studies, maps, plans,
recommendations and reports concerning the physical, environmental, social, economic and governmental
characteristics, functions and services of the entities involved. In 1999, Union County contributed $18,118,
which represents 20 percent of the total contributions.
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NOTE 23 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS:- (CONTINUED)

D. Marysville/Union County Joint Recreation District

The Marysville/Union County Joint Recreation District is a jointly governed organization involving Union
County, the City of Marysville and Paris Township. The District was established for the purpose of
acquiring, developing, operating and maintaining a sports complex and bicycle/walking trail in Union
County. The district’s board of trustees consists of seven members, three appointed by the County
Commissioners, three appointed by the Mayor of Marysville, and one appointed by the Paris Township
Trustees. Each entity’s ability to influence the operations of the District is limited to their representation on
the board of trustees. In 1999, Union County did not contribute to the District’s operations.

E. Tri-County Corrections Board

The Tri-County Corrections Board is a joint venture for the establishrent of a central jail facility for the use
of Champaign, Madison, and Union Counties. The operation of the jail is controlled by a joint board whose
membership consists of the sheriff, one judge, and one commissioner from each of the participating counties.
Each county’s ability to influence the operations of the jail is limited to their representation on the board.
Champaign County has been appointed the fiscal agent for the joint venture.

NOTE 24 - INSURANCE PURCHASING POOL.:-

The County is participating in a group rating plan for workers’ compensation as established under Section
4123.29 of the Ohio Revised Code. The County Commissioners Association Service Corporation (CCAOSC)
was established through the County Commissioners Association of Ohioc (CCAO) as a group purchasing pool.
A group executive cormmittee is responsible for calculating annual rate contributions and rebates, approving
the selection of a third party administrator, reviewing and approving proposed third party fees, fees for risk
management services and general management fees, determining engoing eligibility of each participant, and
performing any other acts and functions which may be delegated to it by the participating employers. The
group executive committee consists of seven members. Two members are the president and treasurer of
CCAOSC; the remaining five members are representatives of the participants. These five members are
elected for the ensuing year by the participants at a meeting held in the month of December each year. No
participant can have more than one member of the group executive committee in any year, and each elected
member shall be a County Cormnmissioner.

NOTES 25 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:-

During 1999, Union County provided facilities, certain equipment, transportation and salaries for
administration, implementation and supervision of programs to U-Co Industries, Inc. U-Co Industries, Inc., a
discretely presented component unit of Union County reported $428,000 for such contributions. U-Co
Industries, Inc. recorded non-operating revenues at cost or fair market value as applicable, to the extent the
contribution 1s related to the vocational purpose of the workshop.
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NOTES 26 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:- (CONTINUED)

During 1999, the County provided the Union County YMCA with use of a County-owned gymnasium free of
charge. The estimated value of rent is less than $1,000 annually.

During 1999, the County provided rent-free office space to Children, Inc. Children, Inc. constructed a
building on County-owned land, adjacent to the Union County MRDD Board. The value of annual rent is
estimated at $85,000.

In 1995, the Board of Trustees of the Union County Hospital formed a related entity, Memorial Physicians,
Inc. (MPI). This entity is a professional for-profit corporation organized to bring primary care physicians
together from multiple sites. Their goals include increasing efficiency, sharing information and resources and
managing the care of their patients throughout the integrated system of care. The Hospital funds MPI's basic
operating needs, which include employee services and various purchases of goods and services. As of
December 31, 1999, a $1,101,406 receivable from MPI has been reflected in the County’s financial
statements for the hospital fund. Fees charged to MPI in 1999 were approximately $482,152.

NOTE 27 - CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS:-

During 1996, the County served as the issuer of $7,000,000 in industrial revenue bonds. The proceeds were
used by private corporations to fund the construction of manufacturing facilities. These bonds do not
constitute a general obligation, debt or bonded indebtedness of the County. Neither is the full faith and credit
to taxing power of the County pledged to make repayment.

NOTE 28 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:-

The County has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by
the grantor agencies or their designee. These audits could lead to a request for reimbursement to the grantor
agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. Based on prior experience, the County
Commissioners believe such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial. Several other claims and lawsuits are
pending against the County. In the opinion of the County Prosecuting Attorney, any potential liability would
not have a material effect on the financial statements.

Union County Memorial Hospital is involved in various lawsuits and claims that arise in the normal course of
business. In the opinion of management, these claims, individually and in aggregate, are not expected to
result in a material adverse effect on the Hospital’s financial position or results of operations.

Reimbursement for Medicare or Medicaid patients is subject to audit and final settlements by the respective
intermediaries. Final settlements have been reached with Medicare through 1996 and with Medicaid through
1993. The amounts reported in the financial statements represent the estimated settlements outstanding at
December 31, 1999, which Hospital management believes will approximate final settlements after audit by
the respective agencies.
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NOTE 28 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT:-

In May 2000, the County Commissioners approved the issuance of $4,700,000 in notes for improvement of
the water supply and the distribution system.
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
DECEMBER 31, 1999

GENERAL FUND

The general fund is the operating fund of the County. The general fund is used to account for resources
traditionally associated with the general government operations of the County which are not required to be
accounted for in other specific funds.

The following Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) is presented to
demonstrate budgetary compliance at the County’s legal level of control.
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EXPENDITURES;
Cutrent Cpergtions:

UNION COUNTY, CHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Budget

General Govemment-Legisiative and Executive

Commissionsrs
Personal Services
Supplies
Coniractuat Services
Cther

Total Commissioners

Environmenital Engines:
Parsonal Services
Totdd Enginear

Auditor
Personal Services
Supplies
Confractual Services
QOther

Total Audifor

Traasures
Personal Services
Supplies
Confractuai Services
Other

Totol Treasure!

$151,70%
3160
145,975
746,961

T

34,090
34,005

174,491
19.737
42,871

6,212

C TTER%aN

86,061
26,011
7.400
4,309
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FOR THE YEAR ENDEC DECEMBER 31, 1999

Vardance:
Favorable
Actugl {Unfavorabla)
$151.626 375
2,544 556
105,845 39,130
54,802 22,159
’ 315,817 ) 61,520
33,088 1.002
1000
173,467 1.024
17,904 1.837
46,824 3.047
6.012 200
2 ’ 6.1705
85,501 140
21,745 4,266
6.797 603
2,812 1,497
—_117.285° X
CONTINUED



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Current Operctions:

Genaral Govemnment-Legisiafive and Execulive

(Confinued)

Prosecufor
Personal Services
Supplies
Contractual Senvices
Ciher

Tolal Frosecuior

Risk Monocgemeani
Personal Senvices
Supplies
Contractual Services
Cther
Capitat Outlay

Total Risk Monggemeni

Daota Processing
Contractual Services
Other

Total Data Processing

FCR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Budget Achin]

256,853 254,867
2,000 8.386
24,000 21,666
71,958 71,958
361,811 358,877
46,271 38,187
1.366 533
6134 4,739
6,000 1,300
6,618 2413
56,380 FrAbi)
182,300 177,175
2,400 1.372
184, 700 ) 178,547

-73-

Varance:
Favorable
{Unfavarable)

1.98¢
4614
2334

4,934

8.084

833
1395
4,700
4,207

58125
1,028
6,153

CONTINUED



UNION COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

EXPENDITUBES:
Current Operaticns;
(Confinued)

Budget

General Govemment-Legisiative and Executive

Boord of Blecions
Parsonal Services
Supplies
Contractual Servicas
Other

Tokal Beard of Elections

Recordar
Parsanal Services
Supolies
Confractual Sendces
Fringe Benefils
Ofher

Total Recorder

Maintenanoa & Coeraiions
Personal Services
Supplies
Confractual Services
Cther
Total Maintenance & Opsrations

Socrd of Revisions
Other
Totad Board of Revisions

123,812
15,302
18.449

2,249

150,612

111,306
217
2,550
1.500
1.577

13&,704

166,123
64,755
1,138,395
2000

__LIE

240
4

-74-

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

120,370
14,447
8,287

2,226

155,350

110,927
7.961
2,405

186

1,551

1230

185,372
62,216
©58.874

. 212
11764674

40

]

Varance:
Favorable

Ainfavorable)

3,242
855
162

23

4388

79
L210
145
1.314
26
357

10,751
2539
179.521
1,798
154,555

200
—__T®

CONTINUED



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 199¢

Varionce:
Faverable
EXPENDITURES: Budget Achual {Unfavorable)}
Current Operctions:
{Confinued)
General Govemment-Legisiative and Executive
Capital improvemaents
Coniract Service Q02,666 717.930 184,736
Total Copifal Improvements 902,666 717,930 1 84,736
Assessing Properly Taxes
Personat Services 29.500 14,917 12,583
Supplies 300 240 40
Other ) 300 47 253
Total Assessments of Paersonal Property Taxe: 30,1065 17,204 12,8956
Insurance & Bonds -
Contractual Services _ 118077 117.035 1,042
Other 5000 a7 4,573
Tokal lnsurance & Bonds 123.077_ ASS 5515
Bureau of Ingoection
Contractual Services 53,280 52,998 282
Tofal Bureau of Inspection - 53,280 52998 52
Fringe Beneiils
Graup LUability insurance 348,000._ 333,872 14,728
Public Employees Retirement 478,717 469,352 &365
Medicare . - 50,664 3287 17.793
Workers Compensation 76,508 55,143 21,365
Totar Finge Beneffs 950,860 81,238 55,857
Equipment
Caphtal Qutiay 1,012,145 905,195 106,950
Tolol Equipmernt 1,012,145 105050
Total General Govamment-
Legislative and Executive 6,128, 5 5450084 5 o
CONTINUED



UNION COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

EXPENDITLHRES:

Current Operations:

General Government-Judicial

Common Pleas Court
Personal Services
Supplies
Contractual Services
Grant
Other
Capital Outlay

Total Common Pleas

Juvenile Court
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Other

Total Juvenilte Court

Probate Court
Personal Services
Supplies
Contractual Services
Other

Total Probate Court

Budget

$107,393
14,149
24,098
64,992
7.310
2,140
220,082

141,398
22,600
17,371
181,364

94,774
13,100
8,300
1,500
117,674

-76-

$107,015
12,353
23,744
46,584
6,351

g

196,047

138,302
18,862
7,037

184,201

94,601
12,164
5,414
1,362

T 113541

Variance:
Favorable

{tInfavorabie}

$378
1,796
354
18,408
059
2,140
24,035

————t e

3,091
3,738
10,334

~ 17,163

173
836
2,888
138

' 4133

CONTINUED



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

EXPENDITURES:

Current Operations:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1599

General Government-Judicial {Continued)

Clerk of Courts
Personal Services
Supplies
Contractual Services
Cther

Total Clerk of Courts

Public Defender
Contractual Services
Total Public Defender

Law Library
Personal Services
Total Law Library

District Court of Appeals
Contractual Services
Cther

Total Appellate Court

Jury Comrmission
Personal Services
Supplies

Total Jury Commission

Eludgg; ) _ Actual
113,791 112,006
28,926 27,851
4,958 ) 3,443
2,042 1,972
149717 145,372
209,500 209,481
209,500 209,481
500 . 500
500 500
1,700 0
8,803 8,455
10,503 8,455
- 600 600
100 , 28
700 828

77-

Variance:
Favorable

{(Untfavorable)

1,785
975
1,515

4,345

19
18

1,700
348
2,048

CONTINUED



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FCR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 199%

Variance:
Favorable

EXPENDITURES: Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Current Operaltions: )
General Government-Judicial {Continued)
Counly Court

Personal Services 68,062 o 69,062 0

Other 4] 0 0

Coniractual Services 2,500 8,505 905
Total County Court 78,562 77567 945
Data Processing

Supplies 200 0 200
Total Data Processing $00 0 900
Juvenile Probation

Personal Services 42,900 42,808 az

Other 5,000 . 4,370 630
Total Juvenile Probation 47,900 47,178 _ 722
Total General Government-
Judicial $ 1.017,402 $ 962!970 $ 54,432

CONTINUED



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

PE ES:
Current Operations:

Public Safety

Coroner
Personal Services
Supplies
Contractual Services
Other

Total Coroner

Sheriff
Personal Services
Supplles
Contractual Services
Fringe Benefiis
Other
Capital Outlay

Total Sheriff

Building Regulation
Personal Services
Supplies
Contractual Services
Other
Capital Qutlay

Totaf Building Regufation

Detention Home
Other
Total Detention Home

Risk Manager

Supplies

Contractual Services
Total Risk Manager

Maintenance & Operations
Contractual Services
Total Maintenance & Cperalions

Totai Public Safety

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Budget Actual
$23,660 $22,860
50 0
13,000 10,810
1,762 1,289
38,472 34,959
1,661,316 1,561,901
187,782 150,234
713,335 582,328
10,725 8,094
30,310 22,430
0 0
2,603,468 2,324,987
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 i)
154,258 154,258
154,258 154 258
2,567 2,318
5,433 5,105
8,000 7.423
630,000 576,747
630,000 , 576,747
$ 3,434,198 $ 3,098,374

-7%-

Variance:
Favorable

{Unfavorable)

$800
50
2,190
473
3,513

99,415
37,548
131,007
2,631
7,880

0
278,481

OIS C OO o

o|o

249
328
577

53,253
53,253

$ 335,824

CONTINUVEDR



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Current Operations:
Public Works

Enginesr
Parsonal Services
Confraciual Services
Cther

Total Englnesr

Total Public Works

Health

T8 Hospltal
Contractual Services
Total T8 Hospital

Vital Statistics
Contractual Services
Total Vital Slatistics

Other Health
Crippled Children Contractual Service
Senior Quireach contractual service
Other

Total Other Heallh

HMumang Soclety
Cther
Tetal Humane Soclely

Agriculture
Contractual Services
Cther

Tatal Agricultura

Total Health

Variznce:
Favorable

Budge: Actugl {Uniavorahis)
$74,500 74,159 5341
4923 3,593 1,330
__0 . 0
78,423 77,752 1671
79,423 77,752 1,671
750 _120 630
750 120 630
761 756 5
761 756 5.
66,973 30,541 36,432
55,585 55,585 0
1,750 0 1,750
124,308 _ 86,126 38,182
19,000 19,000 o]
10,000 16,000 0
1,200 1,200 ]
540 -0 540
1,740 1,200 540
137,559 58,202 39,357
CONTINUED



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

RES:
Current Operations:

Human Servicss

Sordlars Relief
Personal Services
Supplles
Contractual Services
Fringe Benelfits
Qther
Capital Outlay

Total Soldiers Relief

Vatarans Services
Other .
Total Veterans Services

Children’s Services
Contracttia) Services
Othes

Total Children's Services

Victims of Crimes
Other
Tolal Victims of Crimes

Total Human Services

Variance:
Favorable
Budaet Actua) _ [Unfavorable}

$82,700 $82,514 $186
6,521 4,742 1,779
48,810 34,075 14,735
13,519 ) 13,519
166,021 112,127 53,804
25,343 9,469 15,871
342,914 242,927 95 987
10,750 6,178 4572
18,750 6,178 4,572
368,000 241,406 126,594
61,072 46,072 15,000
429,072 287,478 141,594
9,412 9,200 212
9,412 ~ 9200 212
792,148 545 783 246,365
CONTINUED
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

IT! H
Current Operations:

Conservation X Recroation

Canservation & Recreation
Gther
Totat Conservation & Recreation

Tots! Conservation & Recreation

Other

Econamic Developmart
Contractual Services-CIC
Contractua! Services-Airport
Total Economic Development/Alrport

Agricutiure
Other
Total Agrfcuffure

Misceilaneous
Other
Total Miscellaneous

Education

Other
Tolal Edvcation
Histarical Soctaly

Other
Total Historleal Socksty

Total Gther

Other Financing Uses

Operaling Transfers - Out

Advances Out

Total Other Financing Uses

Total Expenditures and Qther
Financing Uses

Excess (deficlency) of revenuas and

other financings sourcas over (under)

expendilures and other (uses}

Fund Balance, January 1
Residual equity transfer in

Prior year encumbrances appropriatad

Fund Balance, December 31

UNION COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

Variance:

Favorable

Budget Agtual [Unfavorabla)
$167.768 $167.766 $0
167,766 -~ 167,766 3

$ 766 167,766 E3 -
192,000 82,000 $100,000

g 0 0

192,000 92,000 100,000

70,975 62,051 8,924

578 82,051 8,824
26,951 76,673 (49.722)
26,951 78678 (49,728}
162,900 177.900 15,000
- 777500 15.:000
18,500 18,500 0

18,500 B500_ 3

3 501,326 427,124 § 74,202
419,545 145,536 $274,009
0 520,000 (820,000
43 9,545 965,536 [545,991)

12,677 542 11,783,571 BR3,971
($2,588,981) (5591,879% $1,997,102
2,060,326 2,060,326 0
231,396 231,396 o
565,408 565,408 0

5 268,149 2265251 % - 1597102
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UNION COUNTY, OHIQ
DECEMBER 31, 1999

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:-

Real Estate Assessment Fund ]
To account for state mandated county-wide real estate reappraisals that are funded by charges to the
County’s political subdivisions.

Alcohol, Drug and Mental Health (ADAMH)

To account for a county-wide property tax levy and federal and state grants used to fund the costs of
various services related to alcohol and drug dependencies and mental health consultation and support.

of a school and the costs of administering a workshop for the mentally retarded and developmentally
disabled.

Motor Vehicle and Gasoline Tax Fund L
To account for revenues derived from the sale of motor vehicle licenses, gasoline taxes, and interest.
Expenditures are restricted by state law to county road and bridge repair/improvement programs.

Public Assistance Fund o .
To account for varioys federal and state grants as well as transfers from the General fund used to
provide public assistance to general relief recipients and for certain public social services.

Dog and Kennel Fund ,
To account for the dog warden’s operations that are financed by sales of dog tags and kennel permits,
and fine collections.

Probate Court Conduct of Business Fund
To account for the fees assessed on marriage licenses pursuant to Section 2101.19(A) of the Ohio
Revised Code. This fund is used by the Probate court to pay for costs incurred by the court.

Sheriff Commissary Fund '
To account for revenues generated from sales of commissary items to prisoners and charges for
telephone usage.

Road and Bridee Fund
To account for revenues derived from court fines. Monies are used for a law enforcement officer’s
salary, scales, fleet insurance, and traffic control signs.

Youth Services Subsidy Fund )
To account for state grant monies received from the Ohio Department of Youth Services and used for
placement of children, diversion program-juvenile delinquency prevention, and other related activities.
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
DECEMBER 31, 1999

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:- (continued)

Child Support Enforcement Agency Fund (CSEA) ) 7
To account for poundage fees on child support payments and other local, state, and federal revenues
used to administer the County Child Support Enforcement Agency.

Court Security Grant L
To account for funds used to strengthen and enhance security in the courthouse,

Drug Law Enforcement Fund =~ 7
To account for fines imposed under Section 2925.03(j)(1) of the Ohio Revised Code. This fund is used
by the County Prosecutor and sheriff to subsidize law enforcement efforts pertaining to drug offenses.

QOhio Children’s Trust Fund
To account for state resources used for administrativé activities of the local board in conjunction with
public hearings, grant selection, and meeting and training needs.

Children Services Fund -
To account for various monies received from federal, state, and ]ocal grants and a county-wide property
tax levy used for children’s support programs, including: emergency care, medical costs, counseling,
foster care, parental counseling and training and education costs.

Revolving Loan Fund
To account for loans made by the County to local business and subsequent repayment of these loans.

9-1-1 Emergency Fund
To account for the 9-1-1 emergency phone system for the County, funded by a county-wide property
tax. )

Union Recycling Fund i
To account for grants and donated monies used to operate a recycling center and to educate citizens
about recycling. '

Delinguent Real Estate Tax Collection Fund 7
To account for five percent of all collected delinquent real estate taxes, personal property taxes, and
manufactured home taxes for the purpose of collecting delinquent real estate taxes.

Treasurer Prepaid Interest Fund
To account for interest earned from real estate tax prepayments to be used for the tax repayment
program.

Local Emergency Planning Fund
To account for state monies and local revenues used to operate the County emergency
emergency program and increase community awareness of emergency plans.
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UNION COUNTY, QHIO
DECEMBER 31, 1999

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:- (continued)

Indigent Guardianship Fund ‘
To account for probate court fees charged according to Section 2101.16(B) of the Ohio Revised Code.

These montes are used for attorney fees, evalnations, and investigation expenditures related to indigent
individuals.

Driving Under Influence Fund (DUT)

To account for fines collected through the courts from offenders operating motor vehicles under the
influence of alcohol or drugs. These monies are used for enforcement and education programs.

Forfeiturgs o
To account for funds coliected from forfeiture of bonds.

Adult Basic Literacy Education Grant Fund (ABLE) L
To account for state and federal grants and local revenues used to pay for aduit basic literacy education.

Clerk of Courts Computerization Fund _
To account for fees collected by the Probate and Juvenile Courts used for computerization of the Court
System.

Ditch Maintenance Fund
To account for special assessment revenues which are used to provide irrigation ditches and maintain
existing ditches.

Probate and Juvenile Court Computerization Fund

To account for fees collected by the Probate and Juvenile Courts used for legal research
computerization.

Probate and Juvenile Court Computer Research Fund

To account for fees collected by the Probate and Juvenile Courts used for legal research
computerization.

Certificate Title Administration Fund
To account for fees collected by the Clerk of Courts. These monies are used for costs associated with
the processing of titles.

Felony Delinquent Care and Custody Fund

To account for state grant monies for youths who have committed felony offenses and require
rehabilitation.

Juvenile Court Indigent Offenders Fund
To account for state monies used for the treatment and rehabilitation of indigent offenders.

Computerized Legal Research Fund
To account for filing fees collected by the Courts used for legal research computerization.

Convention and Tourist Bureau Fund S
To account for menies collected and distributed related to the “County Bed Tax”.
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UNION COUNTY., OHIO

DECEMBER 31, 1999

SPECIAIL REVENUE FUNDS:-_(continued)

Other special Revenue Funds - smaller special revenue funds operated by the County and subsidized in part by
local, state, and federal funds as well as miscellaneous sources. These funds are listed as follows:

Ohio Law Block Grant
Supporting Housing Grant
Preschool Grant

Community Support Services
Prison Jail Diversion

Union County Family and Children First Council

Grant Mediation
VOCA Grant

-86-

Memorial Fountain Trust Fund

Drug Awareness Resistance Education (DARE)
Pass Teacher

DARE Community Education Fund

Sheriff Policing Rotary Fund

CSEA IV-D Grant

VAWA Grant

Coordination Transportation



UNION COUNTY, CHIO

AlL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1999

REAL ESTAIE
ASSESSMENT ADAMH MRDD
ASSETS:
Equity In Pooled Cosh and
Cash Equivalents §251,580 $316,552 $2.0%9,397

Cash In Segregated Accounts 0 0 0
Invesiments 171.310 192,586 1,228,576
Receivablas (net of cllowance for uncollectibles) _

Sales Taxes 0 Q- o}

Rec] and other taxes B o 0 Ryt 3,406,365

Accounts Q 0 0

Special Assassments g g 0

Accrued Interest 0 ¢ o

Locins 1] 8] 0
Duga From Other Funds 0 0 D
Due From Other Governmenis 2] 10,000 48,900
Materials & Supplies Inventory o 16,009 1.580
Prepaid ltermns 8] 5,570 15,970
TOTAL ASSETS 5452550 518,452 86,720,788
Accounts Payahle 0 38,4461 145175
Accrued Wages & Benefits Payable 6,653 8,448 101,768
Compensated Absences Payatle 500 a 0
Retcinage Paycvle o] o [¥]
Due To Other Funds 0 o] o
Due To Other Governments 9.367 11.747 99,989
Due To Compenent Uniis 0 o} 0
Deferred Revenue a 377.735 3,406,365
TOTAL LIABILITIES 76,520 436,301 3755297
EUND EQUITY:

Reserved For Encumbrances 226,028 4] 17,360

Reserved For Supplies Inventory 0 14,009 1.580

Reserved For Prepayments 0 5570 15,970

Unreserved:

Undesignated: 210,342 460,482 2,932.581

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 436,370 482,061 2,967,491
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $452,890 §918,452 $6,720,788

-a7-

CONTINVED



PROBATE

MOTOR COURT
VEHICIE/GAS PUBLIC CONDUCT SHERIFF

TAX ASSISTANCE DOG/KENNEL | __BUSINESS COMMISSARY

51,238,291 §184,416 $7.276 51,301 5673

0 39,517 0 Q 1}

753,340 113,413 4427 791 409

] 0 0 0 0

s} ] 0 0 o}

0 6,500 L1060 o 0

0 0 0 0 3}

5310 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 ]

47,100 0 0 0 o]

0 8,506 0 0- ]

i3] 0 o 0 o]

§2.064,061 $354,352 512 803 52,092 §1.082

367.980 49,747 0 0 ]

51,101 63,581 1,583 D Q

2334 8,259 0 ] 0

o 0 ] D] 0

1,086,269 o o} 0 D

85,1467 36,065 1,734 0 0

0 o ] qQ 0

0 0 Q 0 0

1,572,681 168,062 5117 [V G

84,751 2,328 o} 0 0

o} 8,506 0 0 |

0 0 0 0 0

426,629 185,466 9,686 2,092 _ 1.082

491,380 196,300 9,686 2.002 1.082

§2.064,061 §354,352 $12,803 §2.092 $7.082

CONTINUED
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 195%

YOUTH
SERVICES CHILD SUPPORT
suBsSiDY ROAD & ENFORCEMENT
GRANT BRIDGE AGENCY
ASSETS:
Equity In Pooled Cash and ,

Cash Equivalents §32,8% $22.473 $52,.292
Cash In Segregated Accounts Q o 652
Investments 20,012 13,673 31.813
Receivables (net of dlowance for unccliectibles)

Sales Toxes 0 0 [s]
Rect and other faxes i} 0 0
Accounts 8] a 6,700
Special Assassmenis 8] 0 a
Accrued interest 0 0 0
Leans 0 1) 0
Due From QOther Funds a 8] o]
Dus From QOther Govermnments 0 0D o
Matarials & Supplias Inventory ¢] 0 0
Prepaid lterns 0 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS 352,500 536,746 551,457
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable ¢! o] 19,603
Accruad Wages & Benefits Payable 2,805 563 16,393
Compensated Absencas Payable 0 1} 2.454
Retainage Payable D 0 4]
Due To Other Funds 0 o o
Due To Cther Governments 297 n7 21,870
Due To Component Units 3] o] 0
Deferred Revenus - a 0 0
TOTAL BARILTIES 5,422 1.280 53,260
FUND EQUITY:
Reserved For Encumbrances 0 2,984 0
Reserved For Supplies iInventory 0 ¢] D
Reserved For Prepayments Q o] 0
Unreserved:
Undesignated: 47,487 31,882 3LI197
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 47,487 34,866 31,157
TOTAL LABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $52,909 536,146 591,457
CONTINUED



QHIO

DRUG LAW CHILDREN CHILDRENS REVOLVING 211

ENFORCEMENT TRUST SERVICES LOAN EMERGENCY

50 §1.411 $69.296 539,508 $169.820

10,452 0 o g ] 0

0 859 42,159 24,091 103,317

o 0 g s} 340,000

] 0 0 o ]

0 0 43,400 v 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 220 0

0 o 0 10,074 0

0 0 0 0 0

a o 16,500 0 o

] 0 0 D 0

0 0 0 0 o]
510,452 $2.270 $171,355 573,583 $633,137
0 0 52,235 0 0

D ] ] 0 8617

D D 0 0 518

0 0 ) 0 0

] o} ] ] 0

0 1] 0 Q 11,187

0 0 0 ] 0

D Q 0 a 360,000

0 ] 52235 0 380,422

0 0 6,889 0 41,841

0 0 Q a 0

0 0 0 0 0
10.452 2270 112231 73,583, _ 210874 .

10.452 2270 119,120 73,983 252.715

$10,452 $2,270 $171,355 573.983 $633,137
CONTINUVED



UNION COUNTY, OHIO

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1999

DELINQUENT
REAL ESTATE TREASURER
UNION TAX PREPAID
RECYCUNG COLIECTION INTEREST
ASSETS:
Equity In Pocled Cash and
Cash Equivalants . 18,652 $87.517 318,097
Cash In Segregated Accounts 0 1] 0
Investrnents 11,348 53,304 11,01%
Receivabiles (net of dllowance for uncollectibles)
Sales Taxes a ] a
Real and other taxes o o] a
Accounts 0 0 ]
Special Assessments 0 0 0
Accrued Interest o a 1,330
Loans o] ¢ ’ 0
Due From Other Funds 0 o] o]
Due From Other Govarnments 0 0 0
Maderials & Supplies invenfory a ] 0
Prepaid ttems a 8] Q
TOTAL ASSETS $30.000 $140,523 530,438
LIABHTIES:
Accounts Payabile [8] 0 o}
Accrued Wages & Benefits Payabile 0 2,558 0
Compensated Absences Paycble o] 0 8]
Retainoge Payakble 0 0 ]
Due To Other Funds o] 0 4]
Cue To Other Governments 0 3,448 0
Due To Compenent Units 0 113 o]
Defened Revenue o o 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES 0 6,006 0
ELND EQUITY:
Resarved For Encurnbrances 0 a ¢
Resarved For Supplies Inventory 0 1} 0
Reserved For Prepoyments 2 0 0
Unreserved: -
30,000 134,915 30,438
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 30,000 134915 30.438
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 530,000 $140,921 530,428
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SUPPORTING LOCAL
HOUSING EMERGENCY INDIGENT
GRANT PLANNING: GUARDIANSHIP 1] FOREEMURES

§8,043 $23.344 $574 48,798 $0
0 1} 0 0 g

4,894 14,202 350 5,353 0
4} ¢ o] 4] ¢

o 0 o o] 0

0 0 0 0 a0

0 0 0 ] 0

1] 0 0 0 a

O Q 0 9] Q

) 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 1} 0

0 0 o] a o

0 o] G 4 o]
512,937 §37.546 5524 §14,151 5D
0 Q s} Q 0

0 0 Q a) 0

0 0 ¥ 0 0

a o a. o] i}

0 0 o o ]

0 0 55 50 o

0 Q 0 0 0

0 a 0 0 o

0 [1] 55 =) 0

o 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 Q 0
12.937 37,546 549 14,101 0
12,937 37,545 867 14,107 2
512.937 537,546 $924 $14.15] 50
CONTINVED
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 37, 1999

DITCH

MAINTENAMCE

FROBATE/IUV
COURT
COMPUTER_

PROBATESSUV
COURT
COMPUTER
RESEARCH

ASSETS:
Equity In Pooled Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Cash In Segregated Accounits
Investmants
Recelvables (net of diowance for uncollectibles)
Sates Taxes
Reci and other taxes
Accounts
Special Assessments
Accrued Inferest
Loans
Due Frorn Other Funds
Due From Other Govermnmenis
Materials & Supplies Inventory
Prepaid lterms

§5,872

3572

oooQOOLOoOOD

$8.040

&
il
N O

COoOoODOOQOODOoOO0

TOTAL ASSETS

56,444

R
M
Ol
Lo
X

LEARILIFIES,

Accounts Payable

Accrued Woges & Benefits Payable
Compensated Absences Poyable
Retainage Payabile

Due To Other Funds

Due Te Other Governments

Due To Cormponent Units

Defaetred Revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

OO0 0O0 o000

uilaleleleleNelaelel

s NoRoNolnlsNeNele]

FUND EQUITY:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Reserved For Supplies Inventory
Reserved For Prapayments
Unreserved:.
Undesignated:

0
0
0

129,947

(=Rl

9,444

0
o
o]

12,932

TOTAL FUND EQUITY

120,947

9,444

12,932

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

$129.947

59,444

$12.932

CONTINGED



ADULT

BASIC COMMUNITY CLERK OF

CERTIFICATE PRESCHOOL LTERACY SUPPORT COURTS
TITLE ADMIN GRANT SRANT SERVICES ) COMPUTER
$35,448 $20.935 $20900 544,975 522,744
0 g 0 o 0
21,567 12736 12715 27,362 13,836
0 0 0 ) 0
0 o 0 0 0
12,300 0 4,600 o 0
) 0 0 0 0
o o ) 0 0
0 0 D D 0
0 o 0 D 0
0 0 a 0 0
g 0 o 0 0
0 0 0 ) a g
563,315 §33.671 540215 572,337 £34.580
0 0 0 0 0
4,507 0 2,243 0 0
430 0 0 0 0
0 0 D 0 0
0 a 0 ) 0
5,559 0 3,245 D 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 o 0 0 a
11,556 0 5,458 I 5]
0 o I 0 0
0 o 0 o 0
0 0 0 0 o
57.619 33.671 34,727 72,337 36,580
57,619 33,671 34,727 72.337 36,580
$69,315 $33.671 540,215 £72.337 $36.580
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UNION COUNTY, GHIO
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1999

JUVENILE
COURT
INDIGENT
FELONY DELINQ DRIVERS
CARESCUSTODY ALCOHOL DARE.
ASSETR:
Equity In Pocled Cash and .

Cash Equivalents 540,311 $303 512,142
Cash in Segregated Accounts [¢] £} ¢l
Investments 24,524 185 7.387
Receivables (net of dlowance for uncollectiblies)

Sales Taxes ) 0 0
Redal and other taxes 1] 0 0
Accounts o] o] 0
Special Assassments 0 0 [}
Accrued Inferast g ag o]
Logins 4] g o
Due From Other Funds a 34 0
Due From Other Governmenis G 0 0
Materials & Supplies Inventory 4] o] 0
Prepaid items 0 o 0
TOTAL ASSETS 564,835 $488 319,530
LIABILIMES:
Accounts Payable 1,611 o] o]
Accrued Woges & Benefits Payable a 0 0
Compensated Absences Payable 0 0 o]
Retainage Paycble 0 0 a
Due To Other Funds o] 0 0
Bue Te Cther Govemments 0 0 0
Due To Component Urits 0 Q 0
Defered Revenue B 0 o} D
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.611 0 0
Reserved For Encumbrances o] 0 3]
Ressrved For Supplies Invantory 0 Q D
Reserved For Prepayments 0 Q 0
Unweserved:

Undesignctad: 63,224 438 19,529
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 63,224 488 19,52¢
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $64.835 5488 519,529

CONPVUED




COMPUTER

COHIO LAW LEGAL DARE
PASS- PRISON/JAIL BLOCK RESEARCH COMMUNITY
TEACHER DIVER_SION GRANT SERVICE EDUCATION
547 548,457 56,204 $4,874 . 57,096
0 0 0 0 0
28 29.480 3829 2966 4317
0 0 0 0 0
] ] 0 o 0
0 0 0 ] 0
] 0 0 0 0
0 ] 40 0 0
0 0 0 o 0
1] 0 Q ] 0
0 0 0 D 0
a 0 0 0 0
0 ) o 0 0
§75 577,537 510183 $7.847 511,413
0 o D o o
0 1,249 0 0 o
0 o 0 0 ]
0 o 0 0 4]
0 0 0 g )
h 1,861 D 0 0
¢ ] 0 0 0
o] 0 0 0 a]
D 3,118 0 t D
0 g ] 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 o 0 0 0
75 74.827 10,163 7.842 _ 11413
75 74,827 10,163 7,842 11,413
$75 $77.937 510,163 §7.842 $311,413
CONTINUED
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ASSETS:

Equity In Pooled Cash and
Cosh Equivalents

Cash In Segregated Accounts

Investments

UNION COUNTY, CHIO
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Receivables (net of alowance for uncollectibles)

Sales Taxes
Reql and other taxes
Accounts
Special Assassments
Accrued Interest
Loans
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Materlals & Supplies Inventory
Prepaid ftems

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable

Accried Wages & Benefits Payable
Compensaied Absences Payable

Reatainoge Payatle

Due To Other Funds

Due To Cther Governments
Cue To Component Units
Dafered Revenue

TOTAL LIABILIMES

FUND EQUITY:
Reserved For Encumbrances

Raeserved For Supplles Inventory

Reserved For Prepoyments
Unreserved:
Undesignated:

TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

CONVENTION SHERIFF
MEMORIAL & YOURIST POLICING
FOUNTAIN TRUST _BUREAU ROTARY
$3.078 §49.609 S11,000
0 ] )
2,420 30,187 7,246
0 0 a
) 0 0
o ] )
0 0 0
a0 ] 0
0 0 o
o o 0
0 o 0
0 ) 0
0 0 a
56,428 579,790 19,1
0 0 2,495
) 0 5738
] 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 2,607
0 0 0
0 0 0
o ] 1037
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
6,428 79,790 8315
6,428 79,790 8315
$6,428 $79.760 $79,155
CONTINVED
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EAMILY &

CHILDREN COURT
FIRST SECURITY GRANT VOCA VAWA
COUNCIE GRANT MEDIATION GRANT G!I_A_NT
584,278 834,573 $7.286 514,945 $2.879
a 0 0 0 0
51,273 21,277 4,433 9.003 175
0 0 0 o 0
0 0 0 g 0
0 0 0 o] a
0 0 0 0 0
) 0 0 0 0
0 ] ) s} 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 7.100 7] o
0 0 0 0 0
0 o ] 0 0
§135,551 $56,250 518,819 524,558 §4,630
5,361 0 a 1,996 0
1,236 0 3,448 3833 499
0 0 0 e 0
0 0 0 o 0
0 0 20,000 0 0
1,476 0 3,576 2.643 1,044
0 ] 0 3} 0
0 0 ) 0 0
5073 0 27,003 8479 1.543
0 0 0 0 0
0 ] 0 0 Q
0 0 0 0 0
127,478 56,250, (5.203) 15,564 3087
127.478 £6,250 (8,203 15.566 3,087
$135,55] $56,250 $18.819 $24,033 54,630

-98-
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 231, 1999

CSEA IV-D CO-ORDINATION
GRANT TRANSPORTATION TOTAL
ASSETS:
Equity In Pooled Cash and .

Cash Equivalents $2.250 . $867 $5,158,058
Cash In Segregated Accounts o] o 50,621
Invastments 1,369 527 3,138,095
Receivables (net of allgwance for uncollectibles) [} 0 4]

Sales Taxes -0 0 360,000
Reat and other taxes 0 0 3784100
Accounts 0 o] 76,600
Special Assessments o] 0 20,830
Accnied Interesf D 0 6,930
Loans 0 0 10,074
Cue From Other Funds : 0 0 o}
Eue From Cther Governiments 0 a 149.600
Matericis & Suppilles Inventory 0 O 26.095
Prepaid lterns a 0 21.540
TOTAL ASSETS 53,619 51,304 $12.871,543
LIABILSTIES:
Accounts Payabls 0 1.46% 686,125
Accruect Woges & Benefiis Paycble o} 2.584 289,305
Compensated Absences Payable 44 438 15,033
Retainage Payable 9} a a
Cue To Other Funds 0 0 1,106,299
Due To Other Governments 0 2,782 200,045
Cue To Component Units o] a 0
Deferred Revenue 0 a 4,144,100
TOTAL UABILITIES 0 7,305 6,630,908
EUND EQUITY.
Reserved For Encumbrances g [y} 342,181
Reserved For Supplies inventory - 0] s} 26,095
Reserved For Prepayments 0 0 21,540
Unressrved:
Undesignoted: 3619 (5,871) 5,870,819
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 3,619 (5.871) 8,280,635
TOTAL HABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $3,619 $1,394 512,811,543
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES / EQUITY

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

REAL ESTATE
ASSESSMENT ADAMH MRDD
BREVENUES:
Charges For Services 5320.027 §28.591 S0
Property Taxes 0 3735638 3,337,500
Intergovernmentat 0 1.582.426 914,234
Fines & FoMeitures 0 0 0
Special Assassmenis Q o} 0
Licenses & Parrmits o387 [} o]
Investrent Incorme c W] 0
Other Q0 113,921 197.776
Tofal Revenues 5320414 $2.098,876 34,449,510
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Genargl Governmeant:
lLagisiative & Executive 5307,084 $0 S0
Judicial o] 0 0
Public Safeiy 0 0 0
Public Works 0 a 8]
Health 0 2,125.383 145175
Hurnan Sewices o] 0 4,258,733
Capital Qutlay 0 0 0
Intergovemmenta! o o o
Employee Fringe Benefits a 0 0
Other ] 0 0
Debi Senvice:
Principal Retirement 0 0 3]
Interest and Fiscal Charges D 0 0
Tolal exponditures §307.084 $2,125.383 _ $4,403,908
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 22,330 (26.507) 45,402
Saie of Fived Assels 2] o o
Inception of Proceeds of Capital Lease D 0 0
Cther Financing Sources {Uses) 0 o s}
Advances In 0 o] ¢}
Operating Transters In a 42,610 325
Operating Transfers Out 0 (100.698) (265.466)
Total Other Financing Sourcas (Uses) $0 (558,088) (52651413
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)} OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 22,330 (84,5958 (219,539
Fund Bailanca at January 1 414,040 565,925 3,184,730
Increase (decrease) in reserve for inventory 0 731 00
TOTAL FUND EQUITY AT
DECEMEER 31, 1999 5436,370 5482061 52,967,491
CONTINLED
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PROBATE

MoTon COURT
VEHICLE/GAS PUBLIC CONDUCT SHERIFF

TAX ASSISTANCE DOG/KENNEL BUSINESS COMMISSARY

$457.713 (517,200 50 S0 50

0 0 0 0 0

3,696,360 2,008,967 0 0 0

Q 0 2.544 ] 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 55923 304 0

46,442 0 0 0 0

894,605 139,123 9 0 1,849

$5.095,180 $2,220,890 $£8.476 $304 §1.849

$376.590 $1,007,001 0 0 Q

Q 0 0 818 0

a 0 a g 2.545

5.187.536 0 .0 0 0

0 0 66,491 0 0

0 1.511,224 0 0 0

0 o 0 0 0

Q 0 a a 0

D 0 0 a 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 o] g

$6.564.126 $2.602.315 566,491 $818 $2.545

(468,948) {281.425) 8.015) (514) (698

0 0 0 0 0

D 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 a}

a 0 0 0 o

587,394 258,570 9 9 9

(166.910) __(19.574) Q42 g 0

$420.484 S238.996 (8143 $0 50

(48.462) (142,429 8157 14 (696)

539,842 336,494 17.843 2606 1778

Q 2235 0 0 0

$497.380 §196,300 §9.686 $2.062 $1.082

CONTINUED
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UNION COUNTY, CHIC
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES / EQUITY

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

REVEMUES:

Charges For Services
Property Taxes
Intergovemmentct
Fines & Forfeitures
Special Assessments
Licenses & Permits
Investment Income
Othet

Tolal Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Cument:

General Govemment:
Legisiative & Executive
Judicial

Pubiic Safety

Public Works

Health

Humen Services

Capital Outlay

Intergovemmental

Employes Fringe Benefits

Ofher

Debt Service:

Prinzipal Retirement
Interast and Fiscal Charges

Tolal expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LISES):
Sale of Fixed Assats

Inception of Proceeds of Capital Lease
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Advances In

QOpercting Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

Fund 8alarce at January 1
Increase (decrease) in reserve for inventory

TOTAL FUND EQUITY AT
CECEMBER 31, 1999

CONTINUED
YOUTH

SERVICES CHUD SUPPORT
SUBSIDY ROAD & ENFORCEMENT

GRANT BRIDGE AGENCY
$0 50 118,611
0 0 )
63,472 14,248 416,272
0 86,234 0
0 ) 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
9 0 5272
$63,481 100,452 $540,155
0 0 0
0 a 0
57,990 0 a
0 129,996 o
0 a 0
0 9 569,059
0 0 0
0 o 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 o
0 a 2
S57.999 $129.996 $659,059
5,482 (29.514) (18,908
a 0 0
Q 0 0
Q 0 0
o 0 0
0 0 0
0 g (134,202
$0 50 (5134.202)
5,452 (29,514 (153,106)
42,005 44,380 187,236
a 0 (2.933)
$47,487 534,866 531,197
CONTINUED



DRUG LAW CHILDREN CHILDRENS REVOLVING 9t
ENFORCEMENF TRUST SERVICES LOAN EMERGENCY
$0 $0 $0 50 $0

0 0 0 0 373124

0 7,650 786,390 0 0

0 b) 0 0 0

0 0 ) 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 2426 a

0 0 133,120 12,171 327

$0 $7.450 $919.510 $14,507 §373,451

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 a 0

0 0 0 o 263,976

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 9.650 3.242.941 12.500 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 a

0 0 0 0 0
2.885 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 a 0

g 0 0. o 0
$2,885 $9,659 §1,242.341 §12.500 §263.976
(2.885) 0m) (323,431) 2.097 109.475
b 0 0 0 0

0 0 a 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 o 0 0

0 0 656 0 G

Q 0 (49,435) g 0

%0 s (548,779) 50 50
(2.885) (2.009) (E72.210) 2007 109.475
13,337 4279 491,330 71.886 143,240
D 0 0 b} Q
$10,452 $2.270 119,120 $73,983 $252.715
LONTINVED




EEVEMUES:

Chairges For Services
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental
Fines & Forfeitures
Special Assassments
Licenses & Permits
Investrnent Income
Cther

Tolcl Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Cument:

General Govemment:
Legisiative & Execuiive

Judiclat
Public Safely
Public Works
Health
Human Services
Capitat Outlay
Intergovemmental

Employes Fringe Bensfiis

Other
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Tolal expenditures

UNION COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES 1IN FUND BALANCES / EQUITY
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Yeor Ended December 31, 1999
CONTINUED

DELINQUENT
REAL ESTATE

UNION

TAX

RECYCLING COLLECTION

TREASURER
PREPAID
INTEREST

g
~
hODDDDD&

—

$52.770

oo DOQDDD&DOO

2
g

0o O0oOOoCO

198

CQoOooooOoO

oo

$280,183

§63,447

5108

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (30,000

Sale of Fixed Assets

Inception of Proceeds of Capital Lease
Other Financing Scurces (Uses)

Advancesin

Operating Transfers in
Operating Transfers Out

Qo000 0

(0677

ocooQo

(721)

828D

lQoocogo

4,03

Total Other Financing Sourcas (Uses) 50

{5721

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (20,000

Fund Balance at January 1 &3.600
Ingrease {decrease} in reserve far inventory a_

TOTAL FUND EQUITY AT
DECEMBER 31, 1999

(11.398)

146,313
Q

o (34.089)

4,241

26,197

$30.000

$134.915

$30.438

-105-

CONTINUED



SUPPORTING LOCAL
HOUSING EMERGENCY INDIGENT

GRANT PLANNING GUARDIANSHIP DUl FORFEITURES

$0 S0 §4,265 $2,805 50

0 Q o} 0 0

90,406 9,208 a o 0

0 0 0 2718 Q

0 o o] g 4]

D y; 0 0 o]

0 a 0 +] 0

0 C 1 2 0

$90,406 $9.208 $4.266 $5525 $0

0 0 0 0 0

o 0 3,402 0 0

0 0 0 1,350 ]

0 0 0 0 c

120,920 0 0 0 0

Q 0 0 0 0

qQ i} Q 0 0

0 0 4] ¢ Q

0 0 0 0 a

O 0 0 0 4]

0 0 0 0 o

0 0 0 1] 0

$120,920 $0 _ $3.402 $1,350 50

(30.514) 9,208 864 4175 a

0 o] 0 o] 0

0 0 0 0 0

Q 0 o] 0 0

v g 0 a 0

20,000 e a o [}

0 ) o o g

$20.000 $0 $0 $0 $0

(10.514) 9.208 864 4175 )

23,453 28,338 5 9924 0

4] 2 0 0 0

$12.937 $37,546 8862 §14,101 50

CONTINUED
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES / EQUITY

BEVENUES:

Charges For Services
Propery Taxes
Injergovemmental
Fines & Forfeitures
Special Assessmenis
Licahses & Permits
Irvastrnent Income
Other

Tolul Revenuss

EXPENDITURES:

Curent:

Geaneral Govemment:
Legiskative & Executive
Judicial

Public Sofety

Public Works

Health

Human Services

Capital Cutlay

intergovernmental

Employee Fringe Benefits

Other

Debt Service:

Principol Refirernent
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Tolcl expendilures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER} EXPENDITURES

Sale of Fixed Assets

Inception of Proceeds of Copltal Lease
Other Finoncing Sources (Uses)
Advances in

Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Qut

Total Other Finoncing Sources (Uses)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
QTHER FINANCING SQURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

Fund Balonce at January 1
Increase (decrease) in reserve for inventory

TOTAL FUND EQUITY AT
DECEMBER 31, 1999

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended Decembar M, 1999
CONTINUED
PROBATE/JUV
FROBATE/JUV COURT
DITCH CQURT COMPUTER
MAINTENANCE __COMPUTER RESEARCH
S0 $10.769 $2.927
o 0

0 0 o

. 0 a 0
27.073 a 0

0 o 0

g a g

0 " g

527.073 $10.769 $2,927

) 0 0 t]
0 16,523 0

) 0 )

56,840 a 0

0 ¢ 0

0 0 o]

a 0 o

0 o 0

o 0 0

0 0 )

0 0 0

_ 0 0 ]
$56,840 $16.523 30
(20,767} (5.754y 2977

0 o o

0 0 ]

] 0 D

o ] 0

0 al 0

] o ]

S0 50 30

(29,767 (5.754) 2997
159,714 15,198 10.005

0 0 0

$129.947 59,444 §12.932
CONTINUED
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ADULT

BASIC COMMUNITY CLERK OF
CERTIFICATE PRESCHOOL LTERACY SUPPORT COURTS
TITLE ADMIN _GRANT GRANT SERVICES COMPUTER
$158,301 50 $8,143 $37.848 §7.742
0 0 0 0 0
0 19,79) 73,857 103,996 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 Q
0 o 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
3103 0 6,612 0 o
$161.404 $19.79% $86.612 §141.844 §7.742
0 0 0 0 g
187.517 o 0 0 3,990
0 D 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 19.773 0 161.939 0
0 0 67.594 0 0
0 0 0 0 Q
0 0 0 a a
a 2] D o a
a b! 0 0 a
o ) 0 0 0
Q _0 a 0 0
$137.517 §19,773 $67.504 $141.939 $3.990
23,887 18 21018 (20.095) 3782
0 0 0 0 Q
0 o 0 a 1]
0 g 0 g 0
0 0 0 0 0
a 0 0 31.029 0
{46,801y D 0 o 0
(846.801) $0 $0 531,029 $0
(22914 18 21.018 10,934 3752
80,533 33,653 13,769 61,408 32,828
0 a g 9 9
$57.819 $33671  _$34727 $72.337 $34,580
CONTINVED



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES / EQUITY

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
for tha Year Ended Decernber 31, 199¢
CONTINUED
JUVERILE
COURT
INDIGENT
FELONY DELING DRIVERS
CARE/CUSTODY ALCOHOL D.ARE.
BEMENUES:
Charges For Services S0 S0 50
Property Taxes : 0 0 1}
Intergovemmental 6,786 0 9.857
Fines & Forfeitures 0 43 )
Special Assessments 0 0 0
Licenses & Permifs 0 o} Q
Investrmeant income 0 o] 2]
Other 15 0 ?.861
Tolal Revanues $6,781 $63 $19.718
EXPENDITURES:
Current
General Govemmeni:
Legisiative & Executive 0 0 o}
Judicial 12,679 0 8]
Public Safety 1.611 0 18
Public Works 0 0 0
Health Q Q Q
Human Services a a 0
Capital Outiay c g D
intergovemmenial G g [}
Empiloyes Fringe Benefits g 0 0
Cther 3 a 0
Debl Sernice:
Principal Retirement 0 0 B Y
Interast and Fiscal Charges 0 0 0
Tolal expenditures $14,200 50 $18
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (7.509) 53 19,700
Scle of Fixed Assets o D 0
Inception of Proceeds of Capital Lease 0 0 o]
COther Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 o]
Advances in - Q g G
QOperaiing Tronsfers In 4] aQ 0
Oparating Transfers Out o] a 0
Total Cther Financing Sources (Uses) $Q 2 $0
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPEMDITURES AND OTHER USES (7.509) 63 19,700
Fund Balance of January 1 70,733 425 (i71)
Increase {decrease) in reserve for inventory 4] 0 0

TOTAL FUND EQUITY AT
DECEMBER 31, 1999 363,224 5488 $19,529
CONDNUED



COMPUTER

OHIO LAW LEGAL DARE
PASS- PRISON/IALL BLOCK RESEARCH COMMUNITY
TEACHER DIVERSION GRANT SERVICE EDUCATION
§0 §279 50 51,644 50
O 0 0 0 o
0 90,537 2.000 0 o]
0 0 0 Q 0
4] D a ] o]
0 0 0 0 1}
0 v} 407 4 o]
0 14 8] i 0 39.277
$0 $90.830 $9.407 $1.644 39277
Q 0 0 o] 0
¢ 0 D ] o}
a 40,610 a 4} 34,032
] Q D ] 8]
0 o} 0 o] s}
Q 0 o] o 0
o] 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 s}
[+ 0 o] 0 0
4] 0 D 8] 0
0 0 0 0 0
Q 0 a 4]
sa 840,610 $0 50 $34,032
Q 30220 9,407 1,644 5,245
0 o 0 1] 0
0 a] 0 s} 0
0 0 i) o] 4]
0 Q 0 i 0
0 0 1,000 0 0
D o (16194 ] o
50 0 (815,194) ) 50
o] 30,220 (5.787) 1,644 5,245
75 44,607 15,950 6,198 5,168
Q 0 0 0 1]
$75 §74,827 $13,163 §7.842 511,413
CONTINUED
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES / EQUITY

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Yoear Ended December 31, 1999
CONTINUED
CONVENTION SHERIFF
MEMORIAL & TOURIST POLICING
FOUNTAIN TRUST BUREAH ROTARY
Charges For Services S0 $0 §25032
Preperty Taxes 0 0 1]
Intergovemmental Q 48,716 4,004
Fines & Forfelfures o} 8] [t}
Special Assessments 2] 0 o
Licenses & Pemnits 0 ¢ o
Investment Income 273 1] o
Other 0 0 16,194
Totol Revenues 5273 58,716 $45292
EXPENDITURES:
Curment:
Generg! Govemment: ,
Legislative & Executive 0 0 4]
Judlicial 0 0 0
Public Sofety a g 71.210
Public Works g a a
Hedalth a v} 0
Humemn Services a 0 D
Capital Qutlay g Q 0
Intergovernmental 0 g 0
Employee Fringe Benefifs 0 o 0
Cther ¢ 50.000 0
Debt Senvice:
Principal Retiremeni o] 0 0
interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0 0
Tolal expenditures 50 $50,000 571,210
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
QVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 273 18.716 (25.918)
Scle of Fixed Assets 0 o] 8]
inception of Proceeds of Capital Lease o] 0 g
Other Financing Scurces (Uses) b 0 0
Advancesn o] 0 0
Operating Transfers In o] 0 0
Operating Transfers Qut 0 Q v}
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 50 $0 $0
EXCESS {(DEFRICIENCY} OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES . 73 18,7156 (25.918)
Fund Balance af January 1 46,155 61,074 34233
Increase (decraase)} in reserve for inventon 0 0 0
TOTAL FUND EQUITY AT
CECEMBER 31, 199% $6,428 $79.790 $8.315

-ill-
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FAMILY &

CHILDREN COURT
FIRST SECURITY GRANT VOCA VAWA
COUNCIL GRANT MEDIATION _ GRANT GRANT
0 50 $0 50 $0

0 0 0 0 a

89,516 56,250 25,496 38.928 9,687

0 g 0 0 8

0 0 ) f a

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 9

20,301 0 20,000 _ .0 426
109,617 556250 §45,496 $38.928 $10113

0 g 0 ) a

0 0 46,677 0 a

0 a 0 14,890 5,483

a 0 2 o 0

0 0 o 0 0

41,173 ) 7.022 . 4848 1,543

0 0 0 0 o

0 0 0 3.624 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 a

o g 0 g g9
$41.173 50 353,699 §23.362 57,026

88,444 56,250 (8.203) 15,556 3.087

0 0 0 0 0

Q 0 0 0 0

a 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 g

0 a 0 0 o

(1.285) 0 _ 9. o 0

{51,285) 50 0 50 50

&7.159 56,250 (8.203) 15,566 3087

1,229 a 0 0 0

910) 0 0 0 0

$127.478 $55,250 (58.203) 515,566 53,087
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES / EQUITY

BEVENUES:

Charges For Services
Property Toxes
Intergovemmental
Fines & Forfeltures
Specicl Assassments
licenses & Permits
Investment income
Other

Tolal Ravenues

EXPENRITURES,

Current:

Genercl Govemment:
Legisiative & Executive
Judiciet

Public Safety

Public Works

Healih

Human Services

Capital Quticy

Infergovemmental

Employee Finge Benefits

Cither

Cebt Service:

Principal Retirement
tnterest and Fiscal Charges
Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER} EXPENDITURES

OTHER ANANCING SOURCES (USES):
Sale of Fixed Assels

Inception of Proceesds of Capitat Lease
Cther Financing Scurces (Uses)
Advancesin

Opercting Transfers in

Operating Transfers Out

Telat Other Financing Sources (Uses)

EXCESS (DEFICENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

Fund Balance at January 1
Increase (decrease) in reserve for invaniory

TOTAL FUND EQILETY AT
DECEMBER 31, 1999

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 193¢
CONTINUED
CSEA TV-D CO-CRDINATION
GRANT TRANSPORTATION TOTAL
S0 $0 $1.220.553
0 o] 4,084,262
3.619 15.507 10.555.405
a o] 91.55¢
o] 2] 27.073
o] -0 65,614
] .0 58.026
8] 0 1,613.862
33.419 516,507 §V‘I?,?'l¢_u.354” )
0 0 $1.838,410
0 0 221,606
Q 0 513,724
o] 0 5,654,555
0 0 2.639.681
0 39,491 7,755,787
o] a ¢}
0 1,461 5,085
4] 0 8]
0 0 52.885
8] 0 - a
0 0 ) _ 9]
$0 ; _540.952 §$18.681L.733
3619 (25.445) (965,379
Q 0 0
. a o] 0
0 0 0
i3] 0 D
0 19.574 061,158
0 0 (805,467}
52 519,574 §155,691
3.619 .87 (80%.£88)
o] 0 7,030,900
0 0 _{(5Th
§3.619 ($5.871) 44,280,635
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

REAL ESTATE ASSESSMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NCN-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actudl {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:

Toxes 30 $0 50

Charges for Services - 280,000 320,027 40,627

Licenses and Permits 4,000 2,387 5,387

Total Revenues . 284,000 320,414 45,414
EXPENDITURES:

Curent:
Generdl Govemment:
Legislative and Executive
Perscnal Services 141,000 132,053 8,947
Coniractual Services 341.716 108.376 233,340
Materials/Supplies 7.461 6816 645
Ofther 48,600 33,317 - 15,283
Fringe Bengfits 40,738 31,923 8815
Total legisiafive and execufive 579,515 312,485 267,030
Total expendifures 579,515 312,485 267,030
Excess of Revenues Over : )

(Under) Expenditures {295,515) 16,929 312,444
Fund Balance, January 1 430,627 430,527 0
Prior year encumbrances appropricted 5,434 5,434 0
Fund Balance, December 31 5140,446 5452830 8312,444
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

ADAMH

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENLUES:
Taxes $330,000 §373,4638 $43,638
Charges for Services 39.864 38,891 &7
Infergovernmenial 1,672,808 1,794,426 121,618
Other 151,659 113,921 (37,738)
Total Revenues 2,194,331 2,320,876 126,545
EXPENDITURES:
Curent:
Hedalth
Personal Services 190,500 149,285 21.215
Contractual Services 2,290,604 2,073,731 217,873
Materals/Supplies Q.000 7,262 1,738
Capital Outlay 10.500 5,833 3.667
Other 27,000 10,720 16,280
Principal 12,600 7,116 4,884
interest 15,900 15,695 205
Fringe Benefils ) 98,000 41,986 16,014
Fotal health 2,614,504 2,332,698 281,876
Total expenditures 2,614,504 2,332,628 281,876
Excess of Revenues Over -
{Undlet) Expenditures (420,173 (11.752) 408,421
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Transfers - In g 42,610 42,610
Transfers - Out {103,000} {100,698) 2,302
Tatal Other Sources (Uses) (103,000; (58,088) 44912
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sourcas over (under)
expandifures and other (uses) (523.173) (69.840) 453,333
Fund Balance, January 1 448,634 448,634 0
Pricr year encurnbronces appropricted 130,344 130,344 0
Fund Balance, December 31 555,505 $509,138 5453,333
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
MRDD

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Cther
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Curreni:

Human Services
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Materials/Supplies
Capital Qutlay
Other
Fringe Benefils

Tofal hurmar services

Total expendifures

Excess of Revenuas Qver
{Under) Expendiiures

QTHER EINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Transfers - In
Transfers - Qut
Other scurces (uses)
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing socurces over (under)
expenditures and other (Uses)

Fund Balance, January 1
Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorabla
Budgef Actuck (Unfavorable)

- 62,965,100 $3,371,000 $405,900
554,660 855,334 308,674
221,500 199,430 (22.070)
3,743,280 T 4,435764 592,504
1.843.961 1.796.998 46,963

12,200,939 2,169,125 31,814
101,105 76,489 24,616
86,409 68,441 17,968
2,259,761 84,160 2,175,401
338,525 . 315,126 23,399
6,830,700 4,510,339 2,320,341
6,830,700 4,510,339 2,320,361

~ (3.087,440) (74.575) 3,012,865
25,000 325 (24,675)
(535,410) (265,466) 269,944

500 1,446 - 946
(509,910) (263.8595) 246,215

(3,597,350) (338.270) 3,259,080
3,425,469 3,425,459 )
160,774 160,774 3]
(311,107} 53,247,973 53,550,080
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

MOTOR VEHICLE AND GASOLINE TAX

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Intergovernmentat
Investment Income
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current;

General Govemment:

Legislafive and Execulfve
Personal Services
Contractual Senvices
Matericls/Supplies
Caopital Qutlay
Other
Fringe Bensfits
Total legislative and execuiive

Public Works

Personat Services
Contractuci Services
Materials/Supplies
Capital Qutlay
Principat
Other
Fringe Benefits

Totol public works

Totat expenditures

Excess of Revenues Qver
{Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advancss - In
Advances - Ouf
Transfers - In
Transfers - Out
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Excess (deflciency) of revenues and
other financing sources over {undern)
expenditures and other (Uses)

Fund Balance, January 1
Priar year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, Pacember 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$280,000 $457.713 $177,713
3,125,678 3.629.260 503.582
48,000 44,132 (3.868)
633,549 894,665 261,116
4,087,227 5,025,770 238,543
280,000 263,685 16,315
13,500 Q772 3,728
23.700 14,373 9.327
32,948 8711 24,237
25,849 23,163 2.686
67,529 63,237 4,202
443,526 382,941 60,585
780,000 751.832 28,148
3,189,802 3.017.186 172,416
972,851 Q20,167 52,684
303,663 194,217 109,446
38,090 - 36.010 _2.080
8,352 6209 2,143
206.868 197,601 16,267
5,499,626 5 117,222 382,404
5,943,152 5,500,143 £42.8%
(1.855,925) (474,393 1.381.632
o 805,51¢ 805,519
0} 8] 0}
770,000 587.394 (182,606)
(1669100 (166,910 Q
603,090 1,226,003 622,913
(1.252,835) 751,610 2,004,445
981,522 981,522 0
258,519 258,519 0
{512,794) 51,991,451 52,004,445
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
PUBLIC ASSISTANCE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Cther
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General Government:

Legisiafive and Execufive
Personal Services
Contractucl Services
Materlals/Supplies
Capital Cuflay
Cther
Fringe Benefits
Total legisiofive ond exectiive

Human Services
Persconal Services
Contractual Services
Materials/Supplies
Capital Qutiay
Other
Fringe Benefits

Tofal human senices

Total expenditures

Excass of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

QTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Transfers - In
Transfers - Qut
Total Other Scurces [Uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over {Under)
expenditures and other (uses)

Fund Balance, January 1
Frior year encurmbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Achual (Unfavorable)

$§1,793.756 $2,098,967 $305.211
15,000 102,228 87.228
1,808,756 2,201,195 392,439
-524,804 524,356 ~ 148
247,835 245,944 1.891
42,784 38,803 3,981
56,725 56,561 164
100,140 95,286 4,854
130,837 130,141 426
1,102,825 1,081,091 11,734
633,220 633,220 0
664,519 630,350 34,169
11,313 10,844 469
2,702 2,702 Q
80,951 80,430 521
160,646 159,734 Q12

- 1,553,351 1,517,280 36.071
2,656,176 2,608,371 47,805
{847,420} (407.176) 440,244
695,942 258,570 (437.372)
{(19,574) (19,574} 0
676,368 238,996 (437,372)

' {171.052) {168,180} 2,872
456,280 456,280 0
11729 11,729 0
5206,957 $299. 820 52,872
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

DOG AND KENNEL

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)  ~
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Licenses and Permits $57,000 $58.823 $1.823
Fines and Forfeitures 1,500 2,544 1.044
Cther g - Q Q
Total Reverues 58,500 61,376 2,876
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Healih
Personal Services 30,765 30,445 320
Contractual Services @263 7,908 1,355
Maferals/Supplies 3,908 3,368 540
Capiital Outlay 85 85 0
Other 15,589 15,589 0]
Principal G a g
Interest 0 0 &
Fringe Benefits 2,339 9,209 13D
Tofal health £8,049 66,604 2,345
Total expenditures 48,949 66,604 2,345
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expendifures (10,449 {8,228) 5,221
Transfers - Qut 142y (142) 0
Total Other Sources {(Uses) (142 (142) 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
othet financing sources over (Under)
expendiiures and other (Uses) (g9 {5,370) 5,221
Fund Balance, January } 16,489 16,489 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 585 585 Q
Fund Balance, December 31 56,483 571,704 $5,221
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

PROBATE COURT CONDUCT BUSINESS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Vatiance:
Revised Favorable
Budgei Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Licenses and Permits $300 $304 54
Total Revenues 300 304 4
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Judfcion :
Materials/Supplies 1150 0 1,180
Capital Cutlay 1150 818 332

Fotal judician 2,300 818 1,482
Totol expendijures 2,300 818 1.482

Excess of Revenues Qver
{Under) Expenditures {2.000) {514y 1,486
Fund Balance, January 1 2.606 2,606 9;
Prior year encumbrances appropriaied 0 0 0
Fund Balance, December 31 5606 $2,092 51,4864
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

SHERRIFF COMMISSARY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Varianca:
Revised Favoratle
Budget Actual (Unfavorabile)
BEVENUES:
Other 57,000 51,849 {5§5,151)
Totcl Revenues 7,000 1,849 (5,150
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Safety
Coentractual Services 1.066 487 57¢
Materials/Supplies 7.666 2,066 5,600
Capital Qutlay 1.955 1,955 Q
Total public safefy 10.687 4,508 5175
Total expenditures 10,687 4,508 5179
Excess of Revenues Over ‘

{Under) Expendiiures (3.687) (2.659) 1,028
Fund Balance, January 1 2728 2728 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriaied 1,013 1,013 8]
Fund Balance, December 31 554 51,082 51,028
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
ROAD & BRIDGE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

BEVENUES:
Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovermmenial
Total Ravenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works
Personal Services
Coniractual Services
Materials/Supplies
Capital Outlay
Other
Fringe Benefits
Totaf public works

Total expendifures
Excess of Revenuas Over
(Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance, January 1

Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Baionce, Decembor 3}

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual Unfavorable)
$109,000 $86,234 (822,765
0 14,248 14,248
109,000 100,482 (8.518)
22,480 15025 7,455
52,600 52,080 7.520
37,372 36,792 580
28,000 26,000 2.000
24,600 360 24,240
2,600 2,059 541
174,652 132,316 42,336
174,652 132,316 42,3346
(65,652) (31,834 33.818
465,825 65,825 0
2,185 2,155 0
52,328 536,146 533,878
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

YOUTH SERVICES SUBSIDY GRANT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Infergovernmental
Other
Total Revenuss

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Public Sofety
Personal Services
Fringe Benefits

Total public safety

Total expenditures
Excess of Ravenues Over
(Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance, January 1

Prior year encumbrances approptiated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revisad Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$64.000 $63,472 (3528)
Q @ 9
64,600 43,481 519
- 57.900 50,836 7.064
4.775 4,137 638
62,675 54,973 © 7702
62,675 54,973 7,702
1,325 8.508 7,183
44,401 44,407 0
- a _ 0 0
545,726 ~ 5RZ509 57,183
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FCR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Charges for Services
infergovernmeniat
Cther
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Human Services
Personal Services
Confractual Services
Materials/Suppiies
Capital Cutlay
Other
Fringe Benefits

Total human services

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES).
Transfars - Qut
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Excess (deficlency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expendiiures and other (uses)

Fund Balance, January 1
Prior year encumbrancas appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actudl {Unfavorable)

580,000 §126,079 §46,079
548,532 416,272 (132.260)
200 44620 4,420
628,732 546,671 (81,761)
322,337 320,344 1,593
- 120,692 120,356 _. 336
6,303 4,642 1,661
599 8o 0
25,093 24,091 1.002
82,196 76,967 5,22%
557,220 546,999 10,221
557,220 246,999 10,221
71.512 28) (71,640)
(134,203) {134,202) 1
(134203 (134,203 1
(62,691 (134,230 (71.536)
214,797 214,797 0
3,538 3,538 g
§155,644 584,105 (571.53%)

=125



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
COURT SECURITY GRANT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Intergovermmentat
Total Revenues

EXPENDIURES;
Current:
Toial expendifures

Excess of Revenuas Cver
(Under) Expendifures

Fund Balance, January 1
Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Varance:
Revised Favorable
Budgef Actual {Unfavorable)
$46,000 556,250 510,250
46,000 56,250 10,250
0] a 8]
46,000 56,250 10,250
0] 0 D
0 0 o
345000 | S56250 510,250
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
OHIO CHILDREN TRUST

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Intergovernmentail
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Human Services
Personal Services
Total human services

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under} Expenditures

Fund Balancs, January 1
Prior year encumbxances appropricted
Fund Baiance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget _Actual (Unfavorabla)
$7.500 $7.680 81580
7,500 7,650 180
9,659 9,659 0
2,659 ) 2,859 g
.659 .659 0
(2,159 {2.00%) 150
4,279 4,279 G
0 8] 0
52,120 $2,270 3150
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

CHILDREN SERVICES
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Vatiance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Intergovemmental 5862477 581,000 (551,387
Other 97.919 ©8,420 801
Total Revenues 960,396 $0%9,510 (50.886)
EXPENRITURES:
Curreni:
Human Services
Contractual Services 1.010.77¢9 948,096 62,483
Materials/Supplies 12,199 19,148 51
Other 319,206 301331 17.875
Total human senvices 1,349,184 1,268,575 80,409
Total expendilures 1,349,184 1,268,575 80,609
Excess of Revenuas Over
(Under) Expendifures (388.788) @R59.065) 29.723
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Transfers - In 0 656 656
Transfers - Out (110,300} (42,435 40,865
Total Other Sources (Uses) N {110,300} (48.779) 41,521
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (Under) )
expenditures and other (Uses) {492.088) {407.844) 91,244
Fund Balance, January | 487,270 487,270 0
Prior year encumbrances appropiiated 32,029 32,02¢ 0
Fund Balance, December 31 320,271 $111.455 591,244
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
REVOLVING LOAN

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Investrment Income
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current;
HMuman Services
Other
Tofal human services

Total expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expendituras
Fund Baiance, January 1

Prior year encumbrances qopropriated
fund Balance, Pecember 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
50 $2,426 $2.426
0 2,097 2,097
0 4,523 4,523
12,500 12,500 Q
- 12,500 12,500 Q
12,500 12,500 0
(12,5003 7.977) 4,523
71666 71.666 0
. g . 0 0
$59,166 563,689 54,523
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
911 EMERGENCY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Taxes
Other
Total Revenuss

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Pubdic Scafety
Personal Services
Coniractual Services
Materials/Supplies
Copital Outtay
Ofther
Fringe Benefits

Tofal public safefy

Totol expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance, January 1

Prior year encumbranceas appropriafted
Fund Balance, December 31

Varance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actudl (Unfavorable)
$327,890 T5373.124 845,234
1.000 327 673y
326,890 373.451 44,561
152,555 141,114 11.441
112",7%' ) 63,955 48,841
3,560 1,684 1,906
22.014 18.710 3,304
1,000 4,551 (3,551)
37114 34,763 2,351
32¢,03¢ T 284,747 64,292
329,039 264,747 64,292
{14%) 108,704 108,853
157,279 157,279 0
7.154 7.154 3]
5164284 5273,137 $108,853
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
UNION RECYCLING

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 1999

BEVENUES:
Intergovernmentai
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works
Contractual Services
Tofal public works

Total expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance, January 1

Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$250,183 | $250,183 50
250,183 250,183 0
310,183 280,183 30,000
310,183 280,183 30,000
330,183 280,183 30,000
{(60.000) (30,000 30,000
60,000 60,000 0
0 1] 0
50 ~ 530,000 530,000
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

DELINQUENT REAL ESTATE TAX COLLECTION

SCHEDULE OF REVEMUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General Govemnment:

Leglsiative and Execulive
Personal Services
Contractuadl Services
Materials/Supplies
Capital Outlay
Cther
Fringe Benefits
Total legisiative and execuiive

Total expenditures
Excass of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures
QTHER EINANCING SOURCES (USESY:
Transfers - Quf

Tofal Other Scurces (Uses)

Excess (deficiency) of ravenues and

other financing sources over (under)

expendifures and other (uses)

Fund Balance, January 1

Prior year encumbrances cppropricted

Fund Balance, Decembaer 31

Variance:
Revised Faveorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$60,000 . 8B2,786 (§7.244)
0 14 14
&0,000 52,770 (7.230)
61,360 53,897 7.763
1.000 211 89
279 0 279
1,000 138 862
1.785 1.004 781
12416 11,640 776
77.840 467,290 14,550
77.840 67,290 10,550
(17.840) (14,520) 3,320
721 20 0
- {727 721 0
(18,561) (15.241) 3,320
156,142 156,162 0
0 0 0
5137,601 §140,921 53,320
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

TREASURER PREPAY INTEREST
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

BEVENUES:
Investrment Income
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Govemment:
Legisiafive and Execufive
Personal Services
Coenfrgctual Services
Materials/Supplies
Capital Quilay
Tokal legisiative and execuiive

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
{Undern) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USESY:
Transfers - Qut
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenuss and
other financing sources over (under)

expeaendituras and other (uses)

Fund Balance, January 1

Pricr veor encumbiances appropriated

Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$8,000 $8,208 $208
18,000 8,208 208
0
0
1,580 198 1,382
1,500 0 1,500
3,080 198 2,882
3,080 198 2,882
4,920 B8.010 - 3,090
(4.539) (4,039} 500
(4.53%) 4,039 500
381 3,971 3,590
25,137 25,137 0
0 0 0
525,518 320,108 59,590
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

SUPPORTING HOUSING GRANT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actudl {(Unfavorabie)
BEVENLES:
Intergovemmentai $65,075 §90,406 L $25,331
Total Revenues , ' 85,075 90,406 25,331
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Health
Personal Services 0
Contractual Senices ) 128,862 120,920 7,942
Other 1,000 0 1,000
Total heattf: 129,862 120,920 8,942
Total expendilures 129,862 120,920 8,942
Excess of Revenues Over )
(Under) Expenditures (64,787 (30,514 ) 34,273
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)Y:
Transfers - In 63,000 20,000 ' {43.000)
Total Other Sources (Uses) 63,000 _ Z0.000 7 (43,000)
Excess (deficiency} of revenues and
other financing sources over (under) ) ) o 7
expendifures and other (Uses) (1.787) (10.514) @.727)
Fund Balance, January 1 23,451 23,481 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated a 0 0
Fund Balance, December 31 $21.664 $12,637 (58,727)
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
BEVENUES:
Intergovemmental 59.000 59,208 §208
Total Reverues ) - 2000 9,208 208
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Safety
Contractudi Services L e 0 1.000
Materlals/Supplies , ) 2,000 6] 2,000
Capital Quilay 22,164 6} 22,764
Other 9,749 0 9.749
Tofal pubiic safety - 34913 0 34913
Total expenditures 34,913 0 34,913
Excess of Revenues Over ) - :
{Under) Expendifures (25.913) 9,208 35,121
Fund Balance, January 1 28,338 28.338 0
Pricr year encumbrances appropriated 0 8] g
Fund Balance, December 31 52,425 537.546 535,121
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
INDIGENT GUARDIANSHIP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Cuirent:
Judhefo
Personai Services
Contractual Services
Other
Totfal judfcla:

Total expendifures
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance, January 1

Pricr year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Faverabie
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
- - $5300 $4,265 (81,035
0 _ 1 i
5,300 4,266 (1,034)
1,553 1.505 45
2,849 .43 1,536
Q48 577 371
§,450 3.495 1,955
5,450 3.495 1,955
(50 771 921
153 153 D
_ _ 0 0 0
53 5624 5921
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UNION COUNTY, CHIO

DUl
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Varance:
Revised Favorabie
Budgei Actual {(Unfavorable)
Charges for Services $4,450 $2.805 (51.645)
Fines and Forfeitures 3,780 2,718 (L33
Other o] 2 2
Total Revenues 8,200 5525 (2,675)
EXPEND{TURES:
Current:
Public Safety
Personal Services 6,000 2,445 3.585
Materials/Supplies 100 0 100
Capitat Cutlay 800 ¢ 800
Fringe Benafils 1.209 476 533
Toral public sarfely 8.109 3,121 4,988
Total expenditures 8,109 3121 4,088
Excess of Revenues Over - - . -
(Under) Expenditures 1l 2,404 2,313
Fund Balance, January 1 11,747 11.747 0
Prior year encurnbrances appropriated 8] 0 D
Fund Balance, December 31 511,838 ~ 574,151 52,313
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

FORFEITURES

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Taxes 30 $0 $0
Total Revenuss 0 1] 0
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Total expenditures 0 0 0
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 0 D 0
Fund Balance, Jonuary 1 0 0 g
Prior year encumbrances oppropriated 0] 0 0
Fund Balance, December 31 30 50 50
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

DITCH MAINTENANCE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND _
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Ac;tuul {(Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Special Assessments $26.644 $27.073 $42¢

Total Revenues 26,644 27,073 429

EXPEND(TURES:
Curmrent:
General Government:
Public Warks
Contractual Services - 146,587 56,840 8e.747
Total public works o 146,587 56,840 89,747
Tolal expenditures 146,587 56,84C 89,747
Excess of Revenues Over :

(Under) Expenditures (119.943) (29.767) 90,176
Fund Balance, January 1 129,884 126,884 0
Prior yeor encumbrances approprioted _ g L 0 0
Fund Balance, December 31 52,941 $100,117 590,176
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

PROBATE & JUVENILE COURT COMPUTERIZATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actudl Unfavorable)
BEVENUES;
Charges for Services $11.000 310,769 {8231
Tofa! Revenues 11,000 10,769 230
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Judician
Other 16.524 16,523 i
Jotal judicia, 16,624 Y7%) 1
Total expenditures 16,524 16,523 1
Excass of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (G524 (5,754} 230
Fund Balunce, January 1 15,198 15,198 0
Pricor year encurmnbrances appropriated 0 0 0
Fund Balance, December 31 55,674 59,444 {5230y
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

PROBATE & JUVENILE COURT COMPUTER RESEARCH
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENEES:
Charges for Services
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Cument:
Judicion
Other
Total judicia

Total expenditures

Excass of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance, January 1

Pricr year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, Decembaer 31

Varance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$2.100 $2.927 5827
2,100 2,927 827
2,000 0 2,000
2.000 0 2,000
2,000 0 2,000
100G 2.927 2,827
13,005 10,008 0
0 0] 0
510,105 512,932 52,827
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

CERTIFICATE TITLE ADMINISTRATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revisad Favorable
Budgel Achuc (Unfavorable)
REVENUIES:
Charges for Services $135,000 $157,301 $22,301
Qther 1.000 3.103 2,103
Total Revenues 136,000 180,404 24,404
EXPENDITURES:
Curmrent:
Judlicicn
Personal Services 95,487 92,556 2,931
Coniractual Services - 9598 9,105 493
Materials/Supplies 11.864 11.648 219
Capital Quilay 0 g 0]
Other 25,493 24,627 966
Tofal judiicia 142,442 137,833 4,609
Tolal expendilures 142,442 137,833 4,609
Excess of Revenues Cver )
{Under) Expenditures (6.442) 22,571 29.013
QOIHER FINANCING SOURCES (LISES):
Transfers - Cut {45,801} {45,801) 0
Total Other Sources (Uses) (46.801) (446,801 0
Excess (deficiency) of raverues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other (uses) (53,243} (24,230 29,013
Fund Balance, January 1 79,477 79,477 0]
Prior yeor encumbrances appropricted 1,769 1,769 D
Fund Balance, December 31 528,003 $57.016 ~ 529013
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

PRESCHOOL GRANT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 :

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)}
REVENUES:

intergovernmental $19.773 $19.791 518

Total Revenues . - 19,773 19,791 18
EXPENDITURES:

Curent:
Heatth
Contractugi Services . 19773 19.773 9]
Total heaith 19,773 19,773 V]
Total expenditures 19.773 12,773 0
Excess of Revenues Over .

(Under) Expenditures 0 18 18
Fund Balance, Jonuary 1 33,653 33,653 ]
Prior year encumbrances appropriated B 0 0] 0
Fund Baiance, December 31 533,653 533,671 $18
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

ADULT BASIC LITERACY GRANT (ABLE)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BA3IS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

BEYENUES:
Charges for Services
Intergovernmental
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Cumrent:

Humon Services
Persondl Services
Contraciudl Services
Materials/Supplies
Capital Cutlay
Other
Fringe Benefits

Totaf Auman services

Total expendilures
Excess of Ravenues Over
(Unde) Expendiiures
Fund Balance, January 1

Prior yedr encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Varance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actuai {Unfavorable)
$15,000 38,143 (56.857)
53,978 73,857 19,879
0 12 12
468,978 82,012 13,034
47,079 39,053 8,024
20,341 14,739 5,602
4,204 3,159 1,045
4,538 4161 az7
3.918 3,470 448
7,942 5,698 2,244
- 88022 70,280 17,742
88,022 70,280 17,742
(19,044 11,732 30,776
17.143 17,143 0
4,740 4,740 0
52,839 333,615 $30,774
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

COMMUNITY SUPPORT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Infergovernmental
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES;
Current:
Hecalih
Contractual Services
Capital Outiay
Other
foilal healit

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Unden Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USESY.

Transfers - In

Totdl Other Sources (Uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other {(Uses)

Fund Balance, January 1

Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budiget Actual (Unfavqrc:ble)
__$15,000 $37.848 522,848
179,217 103,926 {75.221)
194,217 141,844 (52,373
172,626 153,129 19,497
20,000 580 19,420
44,987 8,230 36,757
- 237,613 T 181,939 75,674
237,613 161.939 75,674
(43.396) (20,095 23,301
40.000 31,029 (8,571}
40,000 31,029 .57 1)
{3,396 10,934 14,330
61,403 61,403 0
0 Q 0
558,007 572,337 514,330
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

CLERK OF COURTS COMPUTERIZATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES N FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorabie
Budget Aciual Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Charges for Services 30 §7.742 57,742
Total Revenues 0 7.742 7.742
EXPENDITURES;
Current:
Judhicio,
Capital Cuilay 4,050 3990 a0
Toral judician 4,050 B 3,000 ' &0
Total expenditures 4,050 3,990 &0
Excess of Revenues Over .

(Under) Expenditures (4,050) 3,752 7,802
Fund Balance, January 1 32,827 : 32,827 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriared 0 0 (4]
Fund Balance, December 31 528,777 ' 536,579 §7.802




UNION COUNTY, OHIO

FELONY DELINQUENT CARE & CUSTODY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 1999

REVENUES:
infergovemmental
Other
Total Revenuas

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Judicion
Confractual Services
Tofal judicion

Total expendilures
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expendifures
Fund Balance, January §

Prior vear encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorahle)
$100,000 §6,766 (§93,2348)
0 15 15
100,000 6,781 (93,219
21,400 12,679 78,721
1,400 12,679 73,72]
1,400 12,679 78,721
8,600 (5,898 (14,498)
70,733 70,733 0
. 0 0
575,333 584,835 ~ (514,498)
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
D.A.R.E.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Publlc Safety
Personal Services
Fringe Benefils

Total public sofety

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Cver
(Unden Expendituras

QTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Transfers - In
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Excass (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other (uses)

Fund Balance, January 1
Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, Dacember 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget i Aciual (Unfavorable)
$%.800 §9.857 557
0 9,861 0,861
2.800 19,718 2,918
15,000 D 15,000
4,600 _ 189 4,411
19.@00 189 - 18,411
19,600 189 19,411
{2.800) 19,529 29,329
2,812 0 {2,812)
‘?fS_T? 0 Q.81
_T2 19,529 19.517
o} a 0
8] 0 0
312 318,520 519,517
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

PASS-TEACHER

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 1999 ’

Vaionce:
Revised Favorable
Budgei Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Charges for Senvices 50 $0 $0
Total Revenues 0] 1] 0
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Total expenditures 0 0 0
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 0] 0 )
Fund Balance, January 1 75 75 0
Prior yedr encumbrances appropriated 0 0 0
Fund Balance, DPecember 31 575 575 50
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
PRISON/JAIL DIVERSION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Infergovemmental
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Safety
Personal Services
Contractuaf Services
Materials/Supplies
Capital Cuilay
Other
Fringe Benefits
Jorlal pubiic safety

Total expenditures
Excass of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance, January 1

Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Achuat {Unfavorable)
S0 §27¢ 5279
“89.095 90,537 1,442
2] 14 14
82,095 0,830 1,735
48,549 36,965 11,584
19.097 12,559 6,538
4,409 1,527 2.882
1,050 256 Q4
3.179 488 2691
13,0746 10,433 _ 2,643
89,380 &2.928 24,432
89,360 &2.928 26,432
(265) 27,002 28,167
50,035 80,035 4]
8] 0 0
345,770 577,937 528,157
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

OHIC LAW BLOCK GRANT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Faverable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Infergovernmenta 515,950 © §9,000 ($6,950)
Invastment Income 300 367 67
Total Revenues 16,250 9,367 (6.883)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Total expenditures 0 0 0
Excess of Revenues Over . i
(Under) Expenditures 14,250 N 2,367 5883
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (LISES):
Transfers - In 1.750 1,000 (750)
Transfers - Qut (26.199 (16,194 10,005
Total Other Sources (Uses) _ (24,449 (15, 194) 8,255
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
ciher financing scurces over (Undern) )
expendifures and other (Uses) {8.199) (5.827) 2,372
Fund Balance, January 1 15,950 15,950 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 0] 0 0
Fund Balance, December 31 ~§7,75T S10,123 52,3472
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH SERVICE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Total Revenues

EXPENRITURES:
Current:
Total expendituras

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, January 1
Prior year encumbrances appropriated
fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabla)
o 80 $1.644 $1,644
0 1,644 71.644
0 0 0
0 1.644 1.644
6,198 6,198 0]
4 Q 0
56108 37,542 51,544
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

SHERIFF COMMUNITY EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE _
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
BEVENUES:
Charges for Services $0 S0 50
Total Revenues 8] 0 0
EXPENDITURES:
Current;
Public Safety
Contiractual Services o 5,348 4,453 915
Materials/Supplies 9,614 9,347 267
Capital Qutiay 21,000 21.000 o]
Total public sofefy 36,082 34,800 1,182
Total expenditures 35,982 34,800 1,182
Excess of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures (35982 (34,800} 1,182
Other sources (uses) 20,856 39,297 9,741
Total Other Sources (Uses) 29,554 39,297 74
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
cother financing sources over {under)
expenditures and other (uses) . ) (6,426) 4,497 10,923
fund Balance, January 1 6,148 6,148 g
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 768 768 0
Fund Balance, becember 31 5400 511,413 510,623
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

UNION MEMORIAL FOUNTAIN TRUST
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Investment Income 50 5243 $243
Total Revenues , 8] 243 243
EXPENDITURES:
Curment:
Total expenditures 0 g 0]
Excess of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures B 0 243 243
Fund Balance, January | 6,185 6,155 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated ) g 0 0
Fund Balance, December 31 56,155 55,398 5243
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

CONVENTION /TOURIST BUREAU
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Vardance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorabla)
BREVENUES:
Intergovammental $55,000 $68.716 $13,716
Total Revenues 55,000 68,716 ERNATS
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Economic Developmenit
Coniract Services 50,000 50.000 0
Total economic developmen 50.000 50006 9]
Total expenditures 50,000 50,000 a
Excess of Revenues Cver o
(Under) Expendifures 5,000 18,716 13,716
Fund Balance, January 1 41,074 61.074 g
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 0 0 0
Fund Balance, December 31 $66,074 579,750 $13,716
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

SHERIFF POLICING ROTARY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Varance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
BEVENUES:
Charges for Services 562,138 $27.432 (§34,706)
Intergovernmental 0 4,066 4,066
Other 0 16,194 16,194
Total Revenues 62,138 47,602 (14.446)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Pubilic Safety
Personal Services 28,895 28,895 0
Confractual Services 4,927 2,877 2,050
Materials/Supplies 2,500 2,244 254
Capital Qutlay 32.544 22,104 10,440
Fringe Benefits 65991 5,991 0
Total public safety 75,857 63,113 12,744
Total expenditures 75,857 63,113 12,744
Excass of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (3.71%H {15,421 1,702)
Fund Balance, January 1 34,452 34,452 0
Pricr year encumbrances gppropricted 124 124 0]
Fund Balance, December 31 520,857 §1%.155 {51,702




UNION COUNTY, OHIO

UC FAMILY/CHILDREN FIRST COUNCIL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $18,500 589,516 $§71,016
Other 0 20,101 20,101
Total Revenues 18,500 109.617 d1,117
EXPENDITURES:
Cufreni:
Human Services
Personal Services 14,472 13,300 1,172
Coentractual Services 19,639 8,414 11.225
Materals/Supplies L1600 1,090 510
Capital Qutlay 1,000 250 750
Other 9.144 7.638 1,506
Fringe Bensfifs 4.098 2,408 1,650
Jotal hurman services 49,953 33,100 16,853
Total expendifures 48,953 33,100 16,853
Excess of Revenues Over )
{Unden) Expenditures (31,453 76,517 107.970
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USESY.
Transfers - Out (1.285) (1,285) 0
Total Other Sources (Uses) (1,285) (1,285) 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
cther financing scurces over (under)
expenditures and other (uses) (32,7383 75,232 107,970
Fund Balance, January 1 &0,319 60,319 0
Prior year encumbrances gppropriated 0 0] 0
Fund Balance, Decemnber 31 527581 5135551 5107,970
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

GRANT MEDIATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1992

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVEMUES:
Intergovernmental $28,500 $18,396 {$70,104)
Total Revenues 28,500 18,396 {10,104y
EXPENBDITURES:
Current:
Judiclan
Other 28,800 26,677 1.823
Fotal judicia, 28,500 28,677 1.823
Total expendifures 28,500 28,677 1.823
Excess of Revanues Over
{Under) Expenditures 4] (8.281) (8.281)
QTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Advances- In 0 20,000 20,000
Total Other Sources (Uses) D 20,000 20.000
Excess {(deficiency) of ravenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other (uses) v 11.719 11,719
Fund Balance, January 1 0O 0 o
Prior year encumirances appropriated 0 0 0
Fund Balance, December 31 30 511,719 STL719
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
VOCA GRANT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Intergovernmmental
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Cumrent:

Public Safetfy
Personal Services
Contfractual Senvices
Matericls/Supplies
Capital Qutlay
Other
Fringe Benefits

Tofal public safefy

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

QIHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Advances - In
Advances - Out
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over {under)
axpenditures ang other {uses)

Fund Balance, January 1
Prior year encumbrances appropricted
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actuadl (Unfavorable)
3667 _ 33,928 7.261
31,667 38,928 7,261
16,513 @, 188 7,325
- 3400 Q2 3,308
84 0 84
8014 5,305 2,709
135 0 135
499 305 194
28,645 14,890 13,755
28,645 14,850 13,755
N 3,022 24,038 21,016
0 1.851 1,851
0 (1.851) {1.851)
0 0 0
3,022 24,038 21,016
D 4] o
Y D 0
83,022 524,038 $21.016
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

VAWA GRANT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES iN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Infergovernmental
Cther
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Public Sofety
Personaol Servicas
Confractual Services
Mafterials/Supplies
Capital Quilay
Cither
Fringe Benefits

Toral public safefy

Totul expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (NSESY:

Advances -In
Advances - Qut

Tofai Other Sources (Uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sourceas over (under)}
expenditures and other (uses)

Fund Balance, Jonuary )

Prior year encumbrances appropriated
fFund Balance, December 31

Vardance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

§9,3356 59.687 3351
0 426 426
2,336 10,113 _777
1,840 1,840 0
3,160 2,525 635
1,364 1.081 283
2,569 0 2,569
175 8] 175
21 37 54
2,169 5,483 3,716
2.199 5.483 3,716
137 4,630 4,493
0 1,851 1,85]

0 (1.851) {1,851
g 0 0
7137 4,620 4,493
8] 9; 0
0 0 0
S137 54,630 54,493
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

CSEA IV-D GRANT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfaverable)
BEVENUES:

Intergovernmental $722 $3.619 32.897

Total Revenues 722 3,619 2,897
EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Total expenditures 0 0 0
Exceass of Revenues Over :

(Under) Expenditures 722 3,619 2,897
Fund Balance, January 1 0 0 o
Prior year encumbiances appropricted 0} 0] 4]
Fund Balance, December 31 5722 33.619 $2.897
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

CO-ORDINATION TRANSPORTATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 |

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Human Services
Personal Services
Coniractuadl Services
Materials/Supplies
Capital Qutlay
Other
Fringe Benefits

Total human senvices

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers - In
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenueas and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other (uses)

Fund Balance, January |
Pricr year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Faveorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorabkle)
$15,507 $15,507 $G
15,507 15,807 0
21,430 21.85¢ 71
2,662 2,382 280
1.600 1.569 31
117 117 3
5,746 5312 434
2.940 2,748 192
34,6905 33,687 1.008
34,495 33,887 1,008
(19,188 (18.180) 1,008
19.574 19,674 0
15,574 190,574 i}
3Bs 1,394 1,008
0 0 0
3] D 0
5384 31,304 51,008
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

JUVENILE COURT INDIGENT DRIVERS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND _

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE _ -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 N

Varance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
REVENUES: 7

Fines and Forfeitures ) $25 563 o §38

Tolal Revenues S 25 63 38
EXPENDITURES:

Curent;
Total expenditures 0 0 0
Excess of Revenues Over ) o B : -

(Under) Expenditures 2 63 38
Fund Balange, January 1 425 425 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 0 3] 0
Fund Baicnce, December 31 5450 5488 538
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 199%

REVENUES:
Taxes

Charges for Services
Licensas and Permits
Fines and Forfeiiures

Intfergovemmental

Special Assassments

Investment Income
Cther
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES;
Current:
General Govemment.

Legisiativa and Execuiive

Parsonat Seervices

Contfractuat Senvices

Matarials/Supplies
Capital Qutlay
Other

Fringe Benafits

Total legisioive and exacutive

Jucclo
Personat Services

Conlractual Services

Materials/Sugplies
Capital Cutiay
Othet

Total judicio.

Public Safety
Persongl Senicas

Contractual Services

Materals/Supplies

Copital Cutlay

Other

Friinge Benefits
Total public saren,

Pubic Works
Personal Servicas

Canfractucl Servicas

Materals/Supplies

Capital Qutlay

Principal

Other

Frimge Benefits
Total public works

Varance:
Revised Favorable
Budgot Actual {Unfavorable)

$3,622.990 84,117,762 5494,772
989,852 1,256,621 266,769
61,300 48,514 7.214
114,275 91,559 @22.716)
2,628,714 10,669,005 1,040,291
26,644 27.073 429
56,300 55,376 {924)
1,128,827 1,467,318 338,491
15,558,502 17. 2.124,3%4
1,006,864 P73.691 33,173
&04,051 365,003 239,048
75,804 40,190 185,414
92,173 65,410 26,763
176,374 152,770 23,404
251,520 236,941 14,579
2005, 786 ‘554,005 382781
97.040 24,051 2.97¢
103,947 23,197 80,750
13,014 11,445 1389
5200 4,808 392
73.465 £68.304 5161
292,566 2020715 - 0,651
327,252 271,283 55,969
150.814 86,948 63,866
31,297 TR 13,374
112,110 70.03C 42,080
14,238 5039 9,199
68,355 . 57,53 10.824
704,066 508,752 195,314
802,480 766,857 35,623
3,706,172 3,406,289 299.883
1,010,223 256,959 53,264
331.863 22007 111.446
38.090 36,010 2080
32952 5,569 25,383
209,468 193,660 15,808
6,131,048 - 5EBEE5T B44,487
CONTINUED
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UNION COUNTY, CHIO
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Health
Personal Services
Contractuct Servicas
Materials/Supplies
Capital Qutlay
Other
Principal
Interest
Fringe Benefits

Total health

Human Services
Perscral Services
Contraciuct Services
Mcaterdals/Supplies
Capital Qutlay
Other
Fringe Benefits

Total human sanvices

Economic Davelopmenrt
Contraci Services
Total economic developmemn

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expanditures

QTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LISES):
Advanceas-in
Advances - Out
Transfers - In
Transfers - Out
Other sources (Uses)
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Excess {deficlency) of revenueas ond
other financing sourcas over (under)
sxpenditures and other (uses)

Fund Balance, January 1
Pricr year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Varance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

221,268 199.730 27.535
2,622.128 2,375,461 246,667
12,908 10,630 2,278
30,585 7.498 23,087
88,574 34,539 54,037
12,000 7116 4,884
15,900 15,695 205
67,339 51,195 16,144
3,070,701 2701864 328,857
2,892,358 2,834,133 58,225
4,039,57) 31,893,462 346,109
145,324 116,941 28,283
95,3468 76.270 19,095
2,716,319 518,932 2.197.387
£96,347 562,681 33,666
) 10,485,254 B00Z419 2,482,865
50,000 50.000 0
5000 50,000 q
22,940,851 18,905,616 4,034,935
(7,311,649 (1,152,388 4,159,261
0 829.221 822.221
0 (3.702) B.70
1,425,078 561,158 (663,920
(1,149.084) (805,467 343,817
30.086 40,743 10,687
— B06,050 1,021,953 15903
(6.805.559) (130,435) &675,164
7.805,914 7.805,914 0
520,673 H0.675 0

20, L 295,154 ¥
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UNION COUNTY, QHIO
DECEMBER 31, 1999

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general
long-term debt principal and interest.

Bond Retirement Fund o . o o 7
To account for the retirement of debt contained in the general long-term obligations account group,

Sales Tax Debt Fund
To account for activity related to debt issued specifically for construction of a new sheriff’s facility. A
portion of the County’s permissive sales tax supports repayment of this debt.
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

ASSETS:
Equity with County Treasurer in pocled
cash and cash equivalents
Caosh In Segregated Accounts
Investmenis
Recelvables (net of dlowance for uncollectibles)
Redl and other toxes
Accounis
Special Assessments
Accrued Interest
Loans
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Govemments
Materials & Supplies nventory
Prepaid Items

TOTAL ASSETS

Accounts payable

Contracts payable

Accrued wages and benefits payable
Compensated absences payable
Retcinage payable

Due fo other funds

Due 1o other govemments

Dus to component unifs

beferred Revenus

Accrued inferest payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EUND EQUITY:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for supplies inveniory
Reserved for prepayments
Reserved for loans
Unraserved:
Undesignated

TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

BOND
RETIREMENT
FUND

SALES TAX DEBT
_FUND

TOTAL

LR e e I a0 B e L o Y i 3

557.195
0
34,797

:

3

ODODoOO0C OO

$57.195
0
34,797

276,065

oRoNoReNeNwlele

R
3
®
&
&)

$729,902

$368.057

e B o I ow o I s i o

238,065
8]

ODOCo0OQOCO

OO0O0000O0 0

e
N
&
o O

238,085

e -
o e
88
Slo o

257,065

o000

oOooo

110,992

oo o

110,992

110,962

$238,065

$129,992

110,992

§368,057
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REVEMNUES:
Taxes

Charges for services
Investment Income

Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outiay

Principal retirament
interest & fiscal charges

Other

Tolal expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds of refunding notes

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

Fund Balance, January 1
Fund Balance, December 31

UNION COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 199¢%

BOND
RETIREMENT SALES TAX DEBT
FUND FUND TOTAL

$29F,455 $228,000 453,455
0 0 o

0 0 0

0 0 0
295,455 223,000 453,455

0 0 0

277,927 $0.000 367,927
253,148 122,378 375,526
0 0 0

531,075 212,378 743,453
(305,420) 15,422 (289,998)
0 0 o

0 0 )

304,657 0 304,657
0 0 )
304,657 o 304,657
(963 15,622 14,659

963 95,370 96,333

50 5110992 §110,992
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

BOND RETIREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1699 _

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actuagl (Unfavorable)
REVEMUES:
Taxes $236,460 $225,455 {$11,005)
Total Revenues - 236,480 225,455 (11,005
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Debt Service:
Princlpal refirement 292,927 288,335 4,592
Interest and fiscal charges 240,850 242,740 (1.850)
Total expendilures 533.817 531.075 2,742
Excess of Revenuess Over
(Under} Expenditures (297.357) (306,620) (8.243)
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (LISES):
Transfers in 293,652 304,657 11,005
Total Other Sources (Uses) 203,652 304,657 11,005
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over {under)
expenditures and other (uses) . (3.705) ls%))] 2742
Fund Balance, January 1 263 263 Q
Fund Balance, December 31 (52,742} S0 52,742
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

SALES TAX DEBT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1699

EEYEMUES:
Taxes
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Debt Service:
Principal refirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Tolal expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, January 1
Fund Balance, Decembar 31

Variance:
Revised ' Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)

$228,000 $228,000 $0
$228.000 $228,000 S0
25,000 95,000 0
129,980 128,100 1.850
224,950 223,100 1,850
3,080 4,200 1.880
87,092 87.092 [&]
590,142 571,992 51,850
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorabie
Budget Actudl (Unfavorable)

BEVENUES:

Taxes $464.460 $3453,455 ($11,009)
Total Revenues 454,460 453,455 Q11,005

EXPENDITURES:

Cumrent:

Debt Senvice: )
Principal retirement 387.927 383,335 4,592
Interest and fiscal charges 370,840 370,840 0

Toial expenditures 758747 754,175 4,502

Excess of Revenues Cver )

{Unden Expendifures (204,307) 3007200 (YRS

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LJSES):

Transters In 293,652 304,657 11,005
Total Other Sources (Uses) o T 03,652 - 304,857 11.005

Excess (deficlency) of revenues and
other financing sources over {unden) . . o
expenditures and other (Uses) ) - 655 3,937 4,592

Fund Balance, January 1 88.055 88,055

Fund Balance, December 31 §87.400 551,592 54,592
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
DECEMBER 31, 1999

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects funds are established to account for financial resources used for the construction of major
capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).

Federal Grant Fund
To account for federal grant monies received for payments to individuals/companies for community
development biock grant capital projects.

Ditch Construction Fund o
To account for special assessments and/or note proceeds used for activities related to the construction
of ditches.

County Airport Construction ‘
To account for various capital improvements at the County Airport.

Courthouse Renovation Fupd .
To account for the proceeds of bonds and/or notes used to remodel] and repair the Courthouse.

Veterans Memorial Auditorium Renovation Fund
To account for the proceeds of bonds and/or notes used to refurbish the County’s auditorium located in
the County office building.

JDC Construction Fund
To account for state monies and proceeds of bonds and/or notes used for construction and renovations
to the Juvenile Detention Center.

MRDD Capitai Fund
To account for various capital improvements at the MRDD school and workshop.

DOD Road Construction ‘ ,
To account for various construction costs.

Capital Improvements
To account for various capital improvements to County facilities and other assets.

Sheriff’s Facility Construction
To account for various capital improvements to Sheriff Facilities and other assets.

County Garage Construction
To account for the proceeds of bonds and/or notes used to construct the County's Engineer’s Garage.

London Avenue Government Building o
To account for funds used to purchase and refurbish an office building

Airport Federal Fund o
To account for special-use construction funds received from the federal government.

-174-



UNION COUNTY, OHIO

ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 21, 1998

FEDERAL

DITCH

GRANT FUND CONSTRUCTION

VETERANS
MEMORIAL
RENOVATION

COUNTY AIRPORT
CONSTRUCTION

ASSETS:
Equity with County Treasurer I pooled
cash and cash equivaients 519,467
Cash In Segregated Accounts D
Investments 11,843
Recelvables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Real and other foxes
Accounts
Specicl Assessmanis
Accrued Interest
Loans
Cueg From Other Funds
Bue From Other Govemmenis
Materials & Supplies Inventory
Prepaid llems
Resticted assets: ‘
Cash in segregated accounts 0
Cash with fisce! and escrow agents D

CoO0O0OoQOoO00

$23,954

o
14,574

oOooOoODOOoO0o0o0

oo

$§207.038
0
125,959

0O00OOUDDOoOLO

oo

$125,040

76.073

OO0 o000 0

0
0

TOTAL ASSETS 531,310

538,528

533287

3201.803

LIABILITIES:
Accounts poyable 0
Contracts payable 24,707
Accrued wages and benefits payable
Compensated absences payable
Retainage poyable

Due to other funds

Cue to other governments

Due to component units

Defered Revenue

ooococooo

By

TOTAL LIABILITIES 24,707

(o] e I Bl e R o o Y m i e

SIDODOODDSO

o

Reserved for encumbrances

Reserved for supplies Inventory

Reszrved for prepayments

Reserved for loans

Unreserved: )
Undesignafed 4,603

D000

Do oo

34,528

oooCco

249,183

ooOoo0

199,703

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 6,603

38,528

249.183

199,703

TOTAL LUABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $31.310

$38,528

$332,997

$201,803

=175
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COURTHOUSE SHERIFF'S FACILTY CAPITAL MRDD CAFITAL
JDG CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUGTION CONSTRUCTION IMPROVEMENTS FUND

$0 $3.864 §1.530.559 §234,409 §77.855
9 a 0 g a
0 2,361 936,648 142,611 47,364
o o o 0 a
0 0 0 0 a
0 0 0 0 o
0 a0 0 ] o
0 0 o 0 0
0 g 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 o
0 D 0 0 a
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 239.358 ! 0
0 0 o 0 ]
$0 56,245 52.T15.555 _ ko) 3125221
0 0 0 0 0
0 o 12,543 0 57.396
0 0 0 0 o
0 D 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 o
0 a 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
a 0 a 0 a
0 0 0 0 0
g 0 _ 12543 0 57,366
0 o 1.557 0 31.136
0 0 g 0 0
0 0 0 0 c
0 0 o o b
0 4,245 2.701.465 377.020 36,689
0 5,245 2,703,022 377.020 67,825
0 56,245 52,715,565 5377,020 $125,221

CONINUED
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

ALL CAPWTAL PROJSECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 30, 1999

DOD ROAD COUNTY GARAGE LONDON AVE.
CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION GOVT. BLDG. AIRPORT FEDERAL TOTAL

ASSFTS;
Equity with County Treasurer in poaled L

cash and cosh equivolents §3,757 $456,226 $681,987 5402 §3,273,558
Cash In Segregated Accounts 0 0 D 0 0
Investments 2,285 277.562 354,073 244 1,591,589
Recelvables (net of allowance for uncollectibles). N

Real ond other taxas Q 1] 0 o; o]

Accounts o o ¢] 0 3] 3]

Special Assessments G &) 0 0 ]

Accrued Interest 0 0 a D 720

Loans o] 0 0 0 0
Due From Other Funds 286,299 0 Q 0 284,299
Lue From Other Governmenis 0 0 Q a o]
Matericls & Supplles Inventory o] 0 0 o] o]
Prepaid iterns o] o] [} 1} 4]
Reskicted assols:

Cash in segregated accounts 0 Q 0 0 239,358

Cash with fiscal and escrow agents 0 s} 0 2 0
TOTAL ASSETS 5252.341 5733758 5558060 5845 — 55 701,524
LIARILITIES:
Accounts payable o o 0 o} a
Centrocts payable Q 344,931 0 1,623 520,114
Accrued wages and benefits pavable 0 G 0 0 0
Compensaied absences payable o 0 0 0 8]
Retalnage payable 0 o] 0 o 0
Due to other funds o] 0 0 ] 0
Due to other govemmeants 0 4] 0 0 0
Due to component units 0 Q 0 o] o]
Ceferred Revenue Q. o a 0 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES Q0 346931 ] 1,623 520,114
FUND EQUITY:

Reserved for encumbrances 0 215,366 o Q 248,059

Rasetved for supplies inventory O s} o] Q o

Reserved for prepavments 3] o] 0 4] 8]

Reserved for loans ] o] 0 o]

Unreservad:

Undesignoted: 202,341 171,49 936,060 &7 5,014,357

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 262,341 384,857 936,050 77} 5,262,410
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $292,341 §7.33,788 $936.060 3646 _ $5,791,524
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REVENUES:
Intergovemmentcl
Special Assessments
Investment Income
Other

Tolal Revenuas

EXPENDITURES;

Capital Outlay
tntergovernmental
Public Works

Interest & fiscal charges

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
COVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

QTHER FINANCING SQURCES (IISES):
Proceeds of refunding notes

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Opaearating Transfars (n

Cperating Transfers Out :
Payment to Refund Bond Escrow Agent

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

Fund Balance January 1
Fund Bodance, December 31

UNION COUNTY, CHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

VETERANS

FDERAL DITCH MEMORIAL COUNTY AIRPORT

GRANT FUND CONSTRUCTIOI_‘J _ I!EHOVATION CONSTRUCTION
200,951 50 s0 0
0 7.537 0 0

0 0 0 7.143

0 0 0 41,243

0,951 7.537 g 28T
293,857 14,084 103,454 29,082

g 0 0 a

2 o 0 a

i 0 0 0 a
293,857 14084 103,454 20.082
(2,908) (6,547) {103,454) 19,529

0 b 0 0
9 0 0 o

0 0 0 0
(36,127 0 0 D

0 0 0 0
(36.137) i ) 0
(39.033) (6.547) {103,454) 19.529
45.636 45,075 362637 180,174
86,603 338,528 524%,183 5159,703
CONTINUED
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COURTHOUSE SHERIFF'S FACILTY CAPITAL MRDD CAPITAL
JDC CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUGTION CONSTRUCTION IMPROVEMENTS FUND

50 50 0 50 5G

Q 0 o} 0 0

82 247 125117 ] 0

0 0 0 Q 0

g0 247 T15,117 0 i}

] 0 187,149 809,450 396,492

0 0 o) 0 2]

¢ Q -0 0 0
8462 0 o 0 0
8,467 G 187,189 805,450 396,492
6,382y 247 (42,052 (B0, 440) (396,492)
v 0 2} 0 )

0 ] ] 0 0

0 0 0 0 265,456

G g g (1,550,520 a

0 0 0 0 ]

] 0 5 1,550,520} 265,466
(5.382) 247 (62,052 (2.359.9800 (131,026}
6,382 5598 2,765,074 2,737,000 198,851
50 $6.245 32,703,022 $377,020 357,825
CONTINUED
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES iN FUND BALANCES

ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 33, 190¢

DOD ROAD COUNTY GARAGE LONDON AVE,
CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION GOVT. BIDG, AIRPORT FEDERAL TOTAL
Intergevermmental $395,622 S0 4] $93.077 779550
Specicl Assessments 0 0 o] o] 7.537
Investmeni Income 259 82,628 0 0 215,474
Other 0 Q 936,060 648 978,174
Total Revenues 365,881 82,428 935,060 - 93733 1,980,535
EXPENRITURES:
Capital Qutiay 392,031 1,781,650 634,582 98.657 4,740,518
Intergovemmental o _ 0 G 0 0
Public Werks 0 185 0 o} 185
Interest & fiscal charges g 0 0 o 6,462
Total expenditures 392,031 1,781,835 634,582 08,657 4,747,165
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 3.850 (1.699.207 . 301.478 (4,934) (2.766,330)
Proceeds of refunding notes 0 Q 0 0 0
Cther Financing Sources (Uses) D 0 0 8] 0
Cperating Transfars In D £0,000 634,582 3957 984,005
Cperating Transfers Out . 0 Q O 0 (1.5856,847)
Payment to Refund Bond Escrow Agent 0 o] ] D D
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 B0.0QO 434,582 3957 (602,647
EXCESS (PEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 3,850 (1.619.207) 235,060 Crp (3.368,972;
Fund Balance January 1 288,491 2,006,064 0 4] 8.4631.382
Fund Balance, December 31 §292.34) $386.857 5936,060 (97T $58,262 41G

CONTNUED
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UNION COUNTY, OHIOC
FEDERAL GRANT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Intergovemmenial
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Curent:

Capital Quiiay:
Capital Outlay

Toial Expendiiures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expendifures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Transfers - Out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues ond

other financing sources over (under)

expenditures and other uses

Fund Balance, January )
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
$2095,551 5295,551 $0
D 0 0
295,551 285,551 0
299,358 269,150 30,208
299,358 260.150 30,208 _
(3.807) 26,401 30.208
{36,127 {36,127 0
_(36. 1273 36,127 0
| B39934) (9,726) 30,208
41,036 41,036 8]
$1,102 $31.310 $30,208
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

DITCH CONSTRUCTION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Varignece:
Revisad Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENLIES:
Special Assessments S0 57,537 57,637
Total Revenues ) .0 7.537 7.537
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Capital Oullay: : -

Capitai Qutiay 14,084 14,084 o]
Total Expenditures 14,084 14,084 7 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues i

over (Under) expenditures (14,084 (6,547 7.537
QTHER EINANCING SQURCES (USES):

Transfers - Qut (1.300) 0 (1,300}
Total other financing sources (Uses) ] ) (1,300 D (1,300
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and _

oiher financing sourcas over (under)

expenditures and other uses o .. (1538 (6,547) 8,837
Fund Balance, January 1 45,075 45,075 8]

Fund Balance, December 31 $§29,691 538,528 $8,837
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

VETERANS MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM RENOVATICN FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
infergovemmentat
Other

Tolal Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Capital Outlay:
Confraciucl Services
Capital Quilay

Total Expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

QTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Advances-In

Advances - Out

Transfers - In

Tronsfers - Qut

Ofther sources (Uses)

Bond Proceeds

Tetal other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses :

Fund Balance, January 1
Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, Dacember 31

Varance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavotabilse)

50 30 80
0 0 0
g 0 g
34,472 34,472 0
387,107 54,111 332,996
421,579 88,583 332,996
T {421,579 (88,583) 332,996
] 0] D
0 G 8]
0 D D
0 Q 0
g - 0 0
D a Q
0 0 0
421,579 (88,583 332,994
387,107 387,107 1))
34,472 34,472 0
50 5332994 8332,996




UNION COUNTY, OHIO
COUNTY AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Invesiment Income
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Capifal OQutlay:
Contractual Services
Other

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund Balonce, January 1
Prior year encurmbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Varance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
$11.500 $7.063 (54,437
0 41,468 47,468
11,500 48,531 37.031
266,847 163,205 103,642
200 50 180
267,047 163,255 103,792
{285,547 (114.724 140,823
179.564 179,564 0
136,273 136,273 0
$60.290 $201,113 $140,823
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER CONSTRUCTION FUND (JDC)

SCHEDULE OF REVEMNUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 1999

REVENUES:
Iinvestment Income
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Interest and fiscal charges
Total Expenditures

Excess (deficlency) of revenues
aver (undern expendihures

Fund Balance, January 1
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual Unfavorable)
$100 $100 50
0 0 O
100 [[53] 0
6,462 5,462 0
6,442 6,462 0
{6,362) TG4 Q
6,362 6,362 Q
SO 30 50




UNION COUNTY, OHIO

COURTHOUSE CONSTRUCTION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE _
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
REVENLES:
Investmeant Income 50 $237 $237
Cther 0 0 0
Total Revenues 0 237 237
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Capital Quttay:

Contractual Services ) 0 0 0
Total Expendituraes 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expendifures 0 237 237
Fund Balance, January | 5,978 5978 9]
Fund Balance, December 31 $5,978 56,215 8237
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
SHERIFF'S FACILITY CONSTRUCTION FUND
SCHEDULE COF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1992

Variance:
Revised favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Investment Income $30.000 $127.515 597,515
Other 0 0 Q
Total Revenues 30,000 127.5156 97,515
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Capital Qutliay:

Contractucl Services 2.936,656 388,100 2,548,454
Total Expenditures 2,936,556 388,100 2,548,456
Excess (deficlency) of revenues

over (under) expendiiures (2.9055, 556) (250,585) 2,645,971
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):

Transfers - In 170,000 0 {170,000y
Total other financing sources {Uses) 170,000 0 (70,000)
Excess (deflciency) of revenues and

other financing sources over (unden)

expenditures and ofher uses (2,736,556} (260.585) 2475971
Fund Balance, January 1 2,536,888 2.536.888 0
Prior year encumbrances approptiafed 192,904 199,904 g
Fund Balance, December 31 $236 52,476,207 52,475,971
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
MRDD CAPITAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND

CHANGES [N FUNE BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Intergovemmental
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Capital Quilay:
Contractual Senceas
Capitat Quiiay

Totat Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

QIHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers - In
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (Under
expenditures and other uses

Fund Balance, January 1
Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Buciget Actual (Unfavorable)
$0 50 $0
. 0 0 0
561,193 404,429 156,764
351,702 175,820 175,889
912,902 580,249 332,653
(12,902) (580,249 332,653
511,650 265,466 (246,184
511,650 265,466 (246,184
(401,252 (314,783) 86,469
201,09 201,091 0
238,913 238,913 0
538,752 $125,221 586,469
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
DCODL ROAD CONSTRUCTION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Investment Income:
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Cumrent:

Caopital Quitay:
Contractudgi Senvices

Total Expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expendifures

OTHER EINANCING SOURCES (LISES):
Advances- In

Advances - Out

Total other financing sources (Uses)

Exceass (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses

Fund Balance, January 1
Fund Balance, December 31

Varance:
Revised Favorable
Budgef Aciual {Unfavorable)
$468,499 $395,622 ($72.877)
0 259 259
468,499 395,881 (72.618)
468,500 392,031 76,469
468,500 392,031 76,469
M 3,850 3.851
o 397,813 397,813
0 (403,332) (403.332)
0 G.519) (5519
D (L6669 (1.668)
7711 771 8]
57,710 56,047 (31.,668)




UNION COUNTY, OHIO

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Aciual {(Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental S0 %0 $G
Other 0 0 0
Total Revenues DU 0 0 0
EXPENDITURES:
Current;
Capital Qutlay:

Confraciual Services 809,460 802,460 0
Total Expenditures 809,460 802,460 8]
Excass {deficiency) of revenues .

over (under) expenditures ) {809,440) (809,460 0]
QTHER FINANCING SQURCES (LISES):

Transfers - Qut (2,737,000) (1,580,520 1,186,480
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,737,000} {1,550,520) 1,186,480
Excess (deficiency) of revenueas and _

other financing sources over (Lnder) - ) )

expenditures and other uses (3,546,460 (2,359,980 1,186,480
Fund Balance, January 1 2,737,000 2,737.0C0 0
Fund Balance, December 31 (5809.440) ~8377,020 51,186,480
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UNICN COUNTY, OHIO

COUNTY GARAGE CONSTRUCTICN FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1992

Variance:
Revised Favorabie
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)

BEVEMLIES:
Investment Income 840,000 $50,698 $50,698
Total Revenues - - 40000 90,698 50.698
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Capital Outlay: :

Materials / Supplies 22,000 1676 20,324

Contractual Services 2,045,000 1,435,543 409,457

Capital Outlay 16,000 ’ 0 14,000
Cther 10,000 185 @.815
Interest and Fiscal Charges 12,077 0 19.077
Total Expenditures 2112077 1,437,404 654,349
Exceass (deficiency) of revenues

over {under) expendiiures (2,072,077} (1.346,708) 725,371
QOTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Transfers - In 80,000 80,000 0
Total other financing sources (uses) 80,000 80,000 a
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and

cther financing sources over (Uunder) o -

expendiures and other uses (1.962.077) (1.266.706) 725,371
Fund Balance, January 1 2,000,494 2,000,424 Q
Fund Balance, December 31 $8.417 5733,788 §725,371
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UNION COUNTY, CHIO
AIRPORT FEDERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Capital Outlay:
Capital Quilay

Toldl Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expendliures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES);

Transfers - In

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess {deficiency) of revenues and

other financing sources over (under)

expenditures and other uses

Fund Baiance, January 1
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Aclual {Unfavorable)
593,077 o __§?3.077 50
0 644 646
Q3,077 23,723 &b
97.034 97,034 0
97,034 97.034 0
C(3.957) B3 6446
3,957 3,957 0
3,057 3.957 0
0 646 646
8] 0 0
S0 5646 5646

-193-



UNION COUNTY, OHI10

LONDON AVENUE GOVERNMENT BUILDING

SCHEDULE OF REVENLUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES: :
Other $936.060 $936,060 50
Total Revenues 236,060 £36.060 0
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Capital Outlay:

Contrachual Services . 634,582 634,582 0
Total Expenditures 634,582 634,582 0
Excass (deficiency) of revenues .

over (unden expenditures ) 301.478 301,478 0
QTHER FINANCING SQURCES (HISES):

Transfers - In 634,582 634,582 0
Total other financing sources (Uses) 634,582 634,582 0
Excess (deficlency) of revenues and

other finoncing sourcas over (nder)

expenditures and other uses _ Q36,060 936,060 0]
Fund Balance, January 1 0 0 0
Fund Balance, Decembaer 31 $936,06D §936,060 50
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UNION COUNTY, CHIO

ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE )

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Vaiiance:
Revised favorable
RBudget Actuai {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
intergovemmental $857.127 §784,250 (872,877
Special Assassments 8] 7.537 7.537
Invesiment Income 81,600 225,872 144,272
Other 936,060 978,174 42114
Total Revenues 1,874,787 1,995,833 121,046
EXPENDITURES:
Curent:
Capital Quilay;
Materials and Supplies 22,000 1,676 20,324
Contractual Services 7,786,610 4,261,822 3,494,788
Capital Qutiay 1,165,292 610,199 555,093
Cther 10,200 235 @.965
Interest and fiscal charges 25,539 8,462 19077
Total Expenditures 8,979,641 4,880,394 4,095,247
Excess (deflclency) of revenues o :
over (under) expendifures (7.104.854) (2,884,667} 4,220,293
QTHER FINANCING SQURCES (LISES):
Advances- In 0 397.813 397,813
Advances - Out 0 (403,332 403,332
Transfers - In 1,400,189 284,005 (416,184)
Transfers - Qut (2,774,427 (1,586,647} 1,187,780
Other sources (uses) 0 0 0
Total other financing sources (uses) (1.374,238) {608,161 766,077
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (under) T -
expenditures and other uses (8.479,092) (3,492,722 4,086 370
Fund Balance, January 1 8,148,306 8,148,306 8]
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 609,562 609,562 a
Fund Balance, December 31 $278,776 $5,265,146 54,986,370
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UNION COUNTY, CHIO
DECEMBER 31, 1999

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise funds are established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises where the intent is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing
goods or services to the general public be financed or recovered primarnily through user charges.

Sanitary Sewer Fund
To account for the operations of the sewer collection system within the County.

Water District Fund ] B
To account for the operations of the water distribution system within the County.

Building and Development Fund 3
To account for fees collected from the general public for building and construction permits.

Memorial Hospital Fund )
To account for the operations of the Union County Memorial Hospital.
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UNION COUNTY, CHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Pecembaear 31, 1999

Sanitary Building and Memorial
Sewer District Water Dislrict  Development Hospital Total
ASSETR:
Equity In Pooled Cash and ' - ’
Cash Equivalents $527,516 $190,146 $110,745 §616,138 $1,444,545
invesiments 320,933 115,682 67,376 503,991
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Accounis 5,300 0 0 7.675,.342 7.680,642
Accrued Interest 2,940 1.060 0 ’ 4,000
Matericls & Supplies Inventory 496,079 696,079
Prepald ltems 150,344 180,344
Unamortized bond issuance cosis - 522,714 522,714
Fixed cssefs (net of accurnulated depreciation 3,473,157 1,731,725 20,798,684 26,003,566
Rasticted assets: )
Cash in segregated accounts 0 0 8,809,605 8,509,605
Cash with fiscal and escrow agents o 0 1,478,908 1,478,908
. TOTAL ASSETS $4,329.846 $2,038,613 5$178,121 540,447,814 546,994,394
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable A 1,447,383 1,467,383
Contracts Payable 13,042 44,557 20,664 78,265
Accrued Wages & Benefiis Payable 2,518 532 17.643 2,491,296 2,511,989
Compensated Absences Payable 18,786 396 27.238 486,463 532,883
Due To Other Funds ’ 0 400,000 400,000
Due To Other Govemnments 4,519 499 21,188 £05,294 531,500
CPWC loans payable 116,944 116,246
Accrued Interest payable 70,175 30078 100,250
Notes payable 3,500,000 1,500,000 §,0C0,000
Generdl obligation bonds payable 16,585,000 16,585,000
Qbligation under copital lecase 474,813 414,813
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,725,986 1,576,059 86,738 22 350,249 27,739.02¢
EUND EQUITY:
Contributed copital 1,893,294 38,900 o} 1.932,194
Retained samings-unreserved (3,289,434) 423,654 91,388 18,097,565 17,323,171
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 603,860 462,554 21,386 18,097,565 19,255,365
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $4,329,846 52,038,613 $178,121 $40,447,814 $46,994,394
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

REVENLIES:

Charges For Services
Tap-in fees

Net patient sevices
Other

Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Parsonal services

Conlract services

Matericls and supplies

Bod debis

Depreciation and amaortization
Interest and fiscal charges
Other operaling expsanses

Total operating expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS}

NON-QPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest income
Gifts, grants, and bequests
Payments on behaif of affiiate
Resiricted axpenditures
Interest and fiscal charges
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
CPERATING TRANSFERS

Operaiing transfer-in
Operating transfer-out

NET INCOME (LOS55)

Retained earnings af January 1

Retcinad earnings at December 31

Contributed capital of January 1
Contributions received during year

Confributed capital of December 31

Total fund equity ot December 31

CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Dacember 31, 199¢

Sanitary Building and Memoricl
Seweor Dishict  Water District  Development Hospital Tolod

$302.032 $86,236 $32,940 $421,208
84,482 145,958 230.440
$37,205,390 37,205,390
45174 59.785 483,123 2,842,204 3,428,286
$431.688 $291.979 $514,063 $40,047.594 §41,285,324
77,569 6,225 370,561 22,054,807 22,540,162
110,012 113,082 83.424 5.081,404 5,388,122
12,319 46,988 5.639 ' 7.505,522 7.570,468
0 2,304,701 2,304,701

100,001 14,486 1.757.385 1,871,872
0 0 419,695 419,695
9,164 17,985 17,214 o 44,363
$309,065 $198,766 $477.038 §39,163.514 540,148,383
122,623 23213 37,025 884,080 1,136,941
- 0 577 0 233.247 233,824
0] 556,982 550,982
(1.026,412) (1.026,412)
0 ) ) (#1901 (91.907)
{329,453) (5.803) i} 35,256
{329,453) (5,226) 0 {325,084) {659,743)
(206.830) 87,997 37.025 558,996 A77.178
283,677 70.955 0 1] 334,632
{192,927y @oessy 0 0 (263,882
(136,080) 87,987 a5 558,596 547,538
(1,153.354) 335,667 54,361 17,538,569 16,775,243
(1,289,434} 423,654 91,386 18,097,565 17.323.171
1,893,294 38,900 0 1,932,194
0 ¢ 0 o)
1,893,294 38.900 __0 0 1,932,194
5603860 $4462,554 591,386 $18,097,5465 319,255,365
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1899

Sanitary Sewer Buiiding and Memorial
District Water District Development Hospital Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sales/senvice charges.......— $429,188 $291,979 $516,563 $1,237.730
Cash recsived from patients and
third-party payer. $34,863,132 34,863,132
Cash received from other operations........ 2,842,204 2,842,204
Cash payments for personal services. {83,775) (5,693) {349,732} {22,264,218) (22,703,418}
Cash payments far contract ServiCes.....mmreeme - {100,630) {175,000) (69,108) (344,738)
Cash payments far suppfies and materais........om-- (12,318} {46,988} {5,638} {12,515,888} {12,580,834)
Qther cash (payments)freceipts.......... e i . 57,158 {146,486} {(55,118) (144,446)
Cash payments for restricted expenses ... {91,901) (91,901)
Cash payments for interest............ S {380,650} {380,650)
Net cash provided by {used in)
aperating activities 289,622 {82,188) 36,966 2,452,679 2,697,079
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Cash received from gifts, grants, and bequests.... Q _ 0 1] 557,423 557,423
Net cash provided by S ’ - :
non-capital financing activities......orem 0 1] 1} 557,423 557,423
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Net (acquisition)/disposal of capital assets......... S 6,600 11,198 (6,310,303) 6,292,505}
Proceeds of debt iSSUSS. . wvreeesmarrrireses 3,500,000 1,500,000 11,000,000 16,004,000
Principal refirement......... {3,707,927) (1,500,000) (1,776,161) (5,984,088)
Interest and fiscal charges....rreeeene (307,398} (31,868) {339,266}
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets.......cccmmevene 0 ~ 9,780 9,750
Net cash provided by (used inj capital and
related financing actlvities....... {508,725) {20,670} a 2,923,296 2,393,891
Cash flows from investing activities:
(Purchase)/redemption of investments. ... {119,013) (37,110 (40,546} {196,669}
Distribution 10 related pamy...ccmmr e mssmmresssenes {1,347,200) {1,347,200}
Interast income........... ; Q0 . 577 g 233,247 233,824
Net cash used in investing activilies...... _{119,013) {36,533) {40,546) {1,113,953) ___{1,310,045)
Net increase {decrease} in cash and
cash equivalents {339,116) (139,391) (3,580} 4,819,435 4,338,348
Cash and cash equivatents at beginning of year............. 865,632 329,537 114,325 5785216 7,084,710
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.......ve $527,516 $190,146 $110,745 $10,504,651 $11,433,058
Reconcliiation of operating income (logg)
to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities: '
Operating Income (Loss) _ 122,623 93,213 37,025 884,080 1,136,941
Adjustments o reconcile operating income
1o net cash provided by operating activities...
Depreciation and amortization............coveerermorasns 100,001 14,486 1,757,385 1,871,872
Transfers-IN. ... e e st e s . 263,677 70,955 o] 334,632
Transfers-Cut......... (192,927 (70,955) 0 263,882)
Bad debis......vimnnciiniin 2,304,701 2,304,701
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Supplies inventory and other current assets..... (348,271) (348,271}
Accounts recalvable......ceeem s W (2,500} 0 2,500 {2,400,111} (2,400,111}
Accounts payable......... . — 9,282 {61,918) 14,516 467,420 429,400
Accrued wages and benefits...... . (7,729) 532 13,251 6,054
Compensated absences payable.. . 1,523 b} ’ 7,578 9,1
Other accrued expenses......., et e ] {123,000) (212,525} {341,525)
Due fromv(to} other funds....... e . o {50,000} {50,000}
Due from/(10) Sther gOVeTnMEntS.....ccoersrmemres (4,428} 499 12,088 B,167
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities. 3289622 (582,188) $36,966 $2,452,679 $2,697,079
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

OPERATING REVEMUES:
Charges for Services
Tap in Fees
License/Permits
Invesiment Income
Other
Total Operaiing Revenues

QPERATING EXPENSES;
Personal Services
Contraciual Services
Material and Supplies
Capital Cutlay
Fringe Benefis
Other Operating Expenses
infarest & Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Operating profit (loss)

NONQPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Operating ransfers in

Operating transfers out

Principal

Proceeds of nofes

Tolal nenoperating revenues (expenses)

Net lncome

Fund Balance, January 1
Pricr year encumbircances appropsiafed
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance
Ravised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$317.000 $299.532 (17.468)
100,000 84,482 {15,518)
0 1,300 1,300
53,000 40,843 (12,157
D 21 21
470,000 426,248 (43,752
69.000 65,480 3,520
202,497 142,791 59,706
20,226 15,576 4,650
11,706 6,984 4,122
20,094 16,466 628
8222 2,180 46,042
279027 274,023 5,004
610172 526,500 83,672
{140,172y (100.252) 39,920
83,000 413,663 333,463
(258,000) 192.927) 65,073
(3,803,663) (3.803.663) 0
3,700,000 3,464,076 (235,924)
(281,663 (118,851 162,812
{421.835) 212,103 202,732
1,067,551 1.067,551 0]
0] 8] 0
$645,716 $848,448 5202,732
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

WATER DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services $51,300 586,236 $34,936
Tap in Fees 210,0c0 145,958 (64,042)

License/Parmits 0 580 550
Special Assessments 0 15,784 15,784
Invesiment Income 16,800 13,700 2900
Other 31,315 28,691 (2.624)
Total Operating Revenues 303,415 290,919 (12.496)

QPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal Services 16,700 3,931 12749
Contractuci Services 299,471 293,802 5,669
Material and Supplies 200,517 185,707 14,810
Capital Qutlay 2,000 1.885 115
Fringe Benefits 4,400 1,263 3137
Other Operating Expenses 20,356 16,100 4,256
Interest & Fiscal Charges 140,732 65,732 75,000
Total Expenditures 684,176 548,420 115,756

Cperating profit (loss) (380,761 (277,501} 103,280
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Operating fransfers In 77,405 70,955 (6,450)
Operating fransfers out (145,764) {70,955 74,809
Principai (1,500,006} (1.500,000) 6}
Proceeds of notes } 1,835,624 1,535,924 0
Interest income 0 577 577
Totdl nonoperating revenues (expenses) {32,435) 36.501 468,936
Net (oss) Income (413,196) (241,000) 172,196
Fund Balance, January 1 408,109 408,109 0
Pricr year encumbrances appropriated 138,719 138,719 4]
Fund Balance, December 31 5133,632 S305,828 §172,196




UNION COUNTY, CHIO

BUILDING DEVELOPMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
QOPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for Services - $6000 $35,440 $29.440
Licenses/Permits - 430.000 481,048 51,048
Other 0 75 75
Total Operating Revenues 436,000 516,563 80,563

QPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal Services o B 312.000 . 276,628 35,372
Contractuai Services o 76.725 69,108 7.617
Material and Supplies 6.000 5,639 361
Capital Cutlay 26,000 3,863 22137

Fringe Banefils BDL465 51,008 19,457
Other Operaiing Expenses 14,600 13,351 1,249
Total Expenditures 515,790 429,597 86,193

Operating profit (loss) N {79.790) 86,966 166,756
1)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Advancss Cut g (50.000) (50,000)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) o 0 (50,000 (50,000)
Net income {72.790) 36,966 116,786
Fund Balance, Jonuary 1 141,155 141,185 0
Prior yedar encumbrances appropriaied a 0 0
Fund Balance, Dacember 31 $41,365 5178121 §116,756




UNION COUNTY, OO

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1995

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Tap InFees
Licenses & Permits
Intergovernmantal
Investrment Income
Cther
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Perscnal Services
Contractual Services
Material and Supplies
Capital Ouflay

Other Operating Expenses
Fringe Benefifs

Interest & Fiscal Charges

Total Expendifures

Operafing profif Joss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Advances Out

Operating fransfers in

Operating fransfers out

Principal

Proceeds of notes

Interest income

Total nenoperating revenusas (expensas)

Net income

Fund Balance, January 1
Prior year encumbrances appropiiated
Fund Balance, December 31

Variance
Rovised Favorable
Budget Actual Unfavorable)

$374,300 $421,208 46,908
310,000 230,440 {79,560)
430,000 482,898 £§2.898

0 15,784 18,784

- — 63,800 54,8643 (9,257}
31,315 28,§_5_7__ {2,458)
1,209.415 1,233,730 24,315
397,700 346,039 91,661
578,693 505,701 72,992
226,743 206,922 19,821
39,106 12,732 26,374
43,178 31,631 11,547
104,959 81,737 23,222
419,759 339,755 80,004
1,810,138 1,824,517 285,621
(600,723} (290,787} 309,936

0 {60,000 (50,000}

157,405 484,618 327,213
(403,764 (263,882 139,882
(5.303,643) (5.303,663) 0
5,235,924 - 5,000,000 (235,924)
"0 577 577
(314,398) (132,350) 181,748
{214,821} (423.137) 421,484
1,518,815 1,816,815 0
138,719 138,719 0
§840,713 $1,332,397 5491,684




UNION COUNTY, OHIO
DECEMBER 31, 1999

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds. Agency funds are purely custodial and thus do not
involve the measurement of operations. ' '

Tax Collections Fund 7
To account for the collection of various property taxes. These taxes are periodically distributed to locai
governments in the County including Union County itself.

Joint Juvenile Detention Center Fund

To account for monies received and expended for a five county joint juvenile detention center for
which the Union County Auditor serves as fiscal agent.

Health Department Fund S
To account for the funds and sub-funds of the Board of Health for which the County Auditor serves as
ex-officio fiscal agent.

Soil and Water Conservation District Fupd o
To account for monies received and expended for the Soil and Water Conservation District for which
the County Auditor serves as fiscal agent.

Fine Fund o
To account for monies received from Marysville municipal court fines and costs and Ohio State Patrol
costs. The monies are distributed to the General Fund, the Road and Bridge special revenue fund, and
the Law Library.

Retirement Fund _ ‘
To account for monies withheld from employees and the County’s required contributions to the state’s
various retirement systems.

Marriage License Fund , ) i
To account for monies collected on each marriage license to be used for a battered spouse program
provided by Tuming Point and Choices, Inc.

Indigent Counsel Restitution Fund -
To account for court monies ordered reimbursed to the County or subdivision for attorney fees related
to cases involving indigent clients.

Domestic Violence Fund
To account for fees collected on each divorce and dissolution case to be used for a battered spouse
program provided by Turning Point and Choices, Inc.

CFHS Grant
To account for funds received for administration of DCHD Grant, which are comprised of revenues
from the Delaware County Health Department.
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
DECEMBER 31, 1999
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS
(CONTINUED)

Safe Communities Grant

County Court Fund i
To account for Clerk of Courts, Probate Court, Juvenile Court and County Municipal Court receipts

which are distributed to various agencies.

Deferred Compensation Fund o .
To account for monies collected from employees who voluntarily contribute to various deferred

- compensation plans.

Alimony and Child Support Fund 7
To account for the collection of alimony and child support payments and the distribution of such

monies to the court designated agencies.

Payroll Fund
To account for the payroll taxes and other related payroll deductions accumulate from all funds for

distribution to the appropriate governmental unit and/or private organization.
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Balance Balance
12/31/98 Additions Reduclions 12/31/99
Tax Gallections )
Asseis:
Equity with Counly Treasurer in poaled ’
cash and cash equivalenis $1.181,327 549,043,023 $48,627,276 $1.597.074
Taxes Recelvable 38272354 39.562.460 38,272,354 39,582,440
Invastments 575,927 1,388,135 575,927 1,388,736
Total Assets 540,029,608 $89.983,619 $87,475 E57 542,537,670
Ligbilties:
Undistributed monies . 40,029,608 89.983.619 87,475,557 42,537,670
Tola! Liabilities $40,029,608 $85 583,819 387 475,557 342,537,670
Balance Balance
12/31/98 Addilions Reductions 12/31/99
oint ile Detention Can -
Assetsr
Equity with County Treasurer in pooled
cash and cash equivctents 043,519 1,128011 1,297,930 473,600
Total Assels 5643519~ 31,128,011 §1,257,530 ~$473.400
liabilties:
Undistributed monles 643,519 1,128.011 31,207,930 473,600
Total Licbilities 3643519 5112801 $1,297.930 3473600
Balance Balance
12/31/98 Acldlitions Reductions 12/31/9¢9
Hegith
Agsafs:
Equity with County Treasurer in pooled B ‘
cash ond cash equivalents 471,543 1,123,145 1,002,395 592,203
Due from other funds 20,000 .0 20,000 0
Tofal Assels $491,543 31,123,745~ §7,025.39% §E¢2 293
Liabillies:
Due o other funds 30,000 0 30,0c0 B 0
Undisiributed monies 461,543 1,123,145 292,395 592,293
Total Liabilities 21,543 1,123,145 1,022,395 592,293
CONTINUED
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT GF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Bolance Balance
12/31/98 Additions Reductions 12/31/99
. : SN AT A
Assais:
Equiiy with County Treasurer in pooled
cash and cash equivalents 53,981 157,962 136,640 75.303
Tolal Assels 1 i . - ] 303
! iﬂb[‘!ti&:‘
Due to ather funds 10,006 0T 0 10,000
Undistributed ronies 43,981 157,962 136,540 65,303
Tolal Liabilifies 353,981 §157,982 $134 840 $7s303°
Balance Balance
12/31/98 Addilions Raductions 12/31/9%9
i .
Assels:
Equity with County Treasurer In pooled
cash and cash equivalents 0, 296,921 273,508 23,413
Total Assels 30 $29692% §273,508 523,413
Lighilties:
Undiistributed monias 8] 296,921 273,508 234313
Total Liobiities 50— 5255921 5273,508 $23,4713
Balance Balance
12/31/98 . Additlons Reductions 12/31/99
Mari i
Asseis;
Equity with County Treasurer in pooled o
cash and cash equivalents 3.536 5,168 5,457 3,247
Tolal Assels 53,536 55,168 - §5457 ’ $3,247
Ligbilties:
Undistriouted monies 3,536 5,168 5,457 3247
Total Liabilitles 33,536 55,158 35,457 $3,247
CONTINUED




Indicent C i Restiuti
Assefs:
Equity with County Treasurer In pocled
cash and cash equivalents
Total Assels

Ligbilties;
Undistributed monies
Total Liabilities

Domastic: Viclence
Assefs:

Equity with County Treasurer in pooled
cash and cash equivalents
Tolal Asseis

Labillies:

Undistributed monies
Total Liabililiss

County Courts
Assefs:
Equity with County Treasurer in pooled
cash and cash equivaients
Cash in segregated accounis
Total Assets

Uabiltias:

Undisiributed monies
Total Liabilities

UNION COUNTY, OHIO
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILTTIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Balance Balance

12/31/98 Additions Reductions 12/31/9¢
2,701 46,053 5,273 2,481
$2.701 $6,083 $8273 32,481
2,701 6,053 5,273 2,481
52,701 $4,053 56,273 §2,481

Bolance Balance

12/31/98 __ _ Additions Reductions _ 12/31/99
3,552 7,216 6,928 3,840
53,552 ~ 57,218 $6,928 $3,840
3,552 7216 6,938 3,840
$3,552 37216 54,008 33,840

Balance Balance

12/31/38 — Agldiﬁons Reduclions 12731799
38,552 2,734 6,499 34,787
438,906 288,191 438,906 288,191
$477,458 “$290,925 5445 405 §aza 078
477,458 200,925 445,408 322,978
£477 458 §290,925 $445 405 §302,078
CONTINUED



Al & Child S ;

Assels:

Cash in segregaoted accounts

Total Assets

Lighilfies:

Undlistributed monies

Total Liabilihes

Payroit
Assals:

Equity with County Treasurer in pooled
cash and cash equivalents

Total Asseis

liabillias:

Undistriputed monies

Total Lichilities

CEHS Grant
Assofs

Equity with County Treasures in pooled
cash and cash equivalents
Cue from other funds

Tolal Assets

Lichillies:

Undistributed monies

Total Liabilities

UNION COUNTY, OHIO

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT QF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND UABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Balance Balance

12/31/98 _ Additions Reductions 12/31/99
184,868 156,802 184,868 156,802
3184.868  S154802 5184 848 $154,802
184,858 156,802 184,868 156,802
§184,848 §156.802 5184348 5154 802

Balance Balance

12/31/98 _ Addilions _Reducflons 1__2/31/99
48,910 10,407,408 10,410,337 45981
Ao 10,407 408 10,410,337 581
48,910 10,407,408 10,410,337 45,981
348910 510,407 408 $10,416,237 545,58)

Balance Balance

12/31/98 Addifions Reductions 12/31/99
607G 52,437 44,036 14,471
10,600 0 g 10,000
$16,070 $52 437 544,034 $24,471
16,070 52,437 44,036 24,471
316,070 352,437 544,036 524,471
CONTINUED
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PHF County Health Insurance
Assals
Equity with County Treasurer in pooled
cash and cash equivalents
Tolal Assets

Lichillias:

Undistributed monles
Tolal Licbhilities

Sofe Communities Geant
Assofs:
Equity with County Treasurer in pooled
cash and cash equivalents
Cash In segregated accounts
Due from other funds
Total Assels

Lighilties:

Undistributed monias
Tolal Liabilifies

Qhio Elections Commission
Assais:
Equity with County Treasurer in pocied

cash and cash equivalents
Total Assefs

Lichiltias:

Undisiributed monies
Total Liabilifies

UNION COUNTY, OHIO
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Balance Balance
12/31/98 Additions Raductions 12/31/59
332 877,804 878.136 0]
5332 3877804 SAIB 134 il
332 877,804 878,136 0
5332 877,804 U 5878,134 50
Balance Balance
12/31/98 Addifions _ __ Reduclions J12/31/99
10,756 42,648 37.583 15.821
704 2,239 704 2,239
10,000 0 10.000 . 8]
$21,460 %44,8387 348,287 §13,060
21,440 44,887 48,287 18.060
$21,460 $44 ABT 548,287 318,060
Balance Balance
12/31/98 Additions _ Reductions 12/31/99
0 1,835 1.675 160
30 37,835 31,675 5160
0 1.835 1.675 160
30 $1,835 $1,675 §160
CONTINUED
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND UABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Balance Balance
12/31/98 Additions Reduclions . 12/31/99
Assels.
Equity with County Treasurer in pooled
cash ond cosh equivalents $2,464,779 562,551,558 $62,734,673 $2,281,664
Cash in segregoted accounts 624,478 447,232 624,478 447,232
Taxes Recelvable 38,272,354 39,552,440 38,272,354 39,552,460
Due from other funds 40,000 0 30,000 10,000
Investments 575,927 __ 1,388,135 575,927 1,388,136
Total Assels $41,977,538 $103,939,386 §102,237 432 843,679,492
Due fo other funds $40,000 ) $0 $30,000 310,000
Undistributed monies 41,937,538 103,939,386 102,207,432 43,669,492
Tolal Liabilities 541,977,538 5103,939,386 $102,237,432 843,679,492
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NION COUNTY. QHIO
DECEMBER 31, 1999

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

General Fixed Assets Account Group
To account for long-lived assets not used in the operation of the proprietary funds.
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

FUNCTION

General Govermment
Legisiative and Execuiive
Judiclal

Public Sofety

Pubilic Works

Heolth

Human Services

Comservation/Recreation

BY FUNCTION
DECEMBER 31, 1999

BALANCE
12/31/98 ADDITIONS

BALANCE

DELETIONS 12/31/99

) 8,364,302 $3.986.846 $114,260 $ 12235888
462,514 31,029 32.015 461,528
1.571.887 215,062 2,179 1.777.770
3,212,630 112.236 103,218 3,221,648
5,093.835 60,742 15,579 5,138,998
337,208 34,026 12,395 358,839
1,333,851 581,890 700 1.915.041

5 20,376,227 $ 5021.831 5 287,346 $ 25110712
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
DECEMBER 31, 1999

GENERAL FEXED ASSET BY CLASS:-
LAND

IMPROVEMENTS

BUILDINGS

EQUIPMENT

FURNITURE/FIXTURES

VEHICLES

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

SOURCE OF INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:-
GENERAL FUND REVENUES

NOTE OR BONDED DEBT

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

STATE GRANTS

FEDERAL GRANTS

DONATIONS

OTHER

216-

S

1,317,846
258,628
14,475,644
3,229,888
843,591
3,838,717
1,446,398

25110,712

4,099.698
12,818,005
4,889,794
1,606,556
839,990
846,894
10,775

25,110,712
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TABLE &
UNION COUNTY, OHIC
PAOPERTY TAX RATES- DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE)

LAST TEN YEARS
1989 1988 1997 1996 19895 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
N o

General 3.40 3.40 3.40 3.40 3.40 340 340 3.40 340 3.40
Hospital Operation 0.50
MR/DD 470 4.70 4.70 470  A70 ATC 470 4.00 4.00 2.70
Mental Heaith 0.50 050 . 050 050 050 150 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
g-1-1 0.50 0.50 0.50 . 050 Q.50 050 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Health 1.25 0.50 050 . 0.50 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80
Fairbartks LSD 38.50 39,00 . 4000 4025 42,09 35.70 3s.70 34.30 3430 3470
Marysville EVSD 47.71 47.71 42,86 42.86 42.91 43.21 4338 34.16 34.23 3556
North Unian LSD 34,80 35.30 36.70 37.80 34.40 35.68 3595 35.95 3718 3745

Benjamin Lcgan LSD 36.70 36.90 36.90 36.90 37.50 3791 3681 3220 32.20 35.20

Triad LSD 36,90 32.80 33.10 33.35 33.40 33.60 33.90 34.10 35.05 35.05
Jonathon Alder LSD 40.10 40.10 40,19 40.10 40.10 37.60 37,90 38.60 39.10 39.80
Hilliard CSD 59.71 59,71 59.96 60.28 60.65 52.15 50.37 51,58 47.08 45.48
Dubfin LSD 65.22 65,50 57.80.. 57.90 58.41 58.41 50.51 5142 49.24 49.90
Buckeye Vailey LSD 34,75 36.00 36.05 35.92 36.92 30.90 30.90 30.96 '40.57 40.56
Richwood 11.00 11.00 11,00 11.00 12.80 12.80 12.80 12.80 12.80 12.80
LInionville Canter 3.95 395 3.95 —3.9% 3.95 3.95 3.95 3.95 385 £.45
Plain Gity 6.00 6.00 600 T B.OQ . 7.50 17.50 25.00 30.00 25.50 2250
Magnetic Springs 5.90 5.80 15.9 15.90 15,90 15.80 15.90 10.90 15.90 10.90
Marysville 4.50 4.50 4,50 4.50 4.82 4.82 4.80 4.92 5.04 5.12
Milford Center 7.00 7.00 7.00 9.00 9.00 7.10 7.10 7.10 7.10 7.10
Central Ohio JV¥S 1.60 1.60 1.60 ~1.60 _ 1860 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.60
Ohio Hi Peint JVS 2.00 2.00. 2.00 200 2.00 20 2.00 200 2.00 2.00
Tri-Rivers JVS 4.40 4.40 4.40 3.10 3.10 310 3.10 3.10 310 3.10
Delaware Co JVS 3.40 3.40 3.40 4.40 280 2.50 2.57 2.55 262 2.65
id .
Allen 6.6 B.60 6.60 B.10 6.10 6.10 .10 6.10 6.10 2.10
Claibourne 1.6 3.60 360 3.60. 3.60 3.60 3.60 3.60 3.60 3.60
Darby 3.3 1.60 3.30 3.30 3.30 6.30 8.30 6.30 6.30 6.30
Dover 5.4 5.40 5.40 8.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40
Jackson 1.4 465 | 4.65 3.65 3.65 3.65 4,65 4.66 455 465
Jerome 13.9 13.90 13.90 13.80 13.80 13.90 13.90 13.90 10.40 B.10
Leesburg 3.5 3.50 3.50° 3.50 3.50 3.50 4,90 1.90 1.90 0.80
Liberty 5.4 5.40 3.65 2.65 . 285 265 4.65 4.65 4.65 5.15
Milicreek 6,95 6.85 695 | 595 3.85 3.50 3.50 2.80 280 2.80
Paris 4.4 4.40 4.40 290 2.90 2.80 3.40 3.40 3.40 3.40
Taylar 57 5.70 3.20 270 3.20 T 320 320 3.20 320 3.20
Urion 8.38 8.50 8.80 8.60 8.75 7.75 7.97 7.97 7.97 8.05
Washington 4.2 5.20 520 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 4.00 4.00
York 49 4.90 380 . 390 3.90 4.90 4.30 490 490 370

MNote: For the 1095 tax rate for Darby Twp this is what is collected in district 7, for other districts
in this tlownship the township rate is 1,60 with an additional 10.C mills for the Pleasant
Valkay Fire District which started to be collected for this distict in 1995 tax year.
*Also, please note that in 1999 tax rates for Claibourne, Jackson and York the rate does not
include the 4.90 mills for the Northern Union County Fire District.
* For 1999 In Washington Township, the rate does not reflect the .90 mills for the
Southeast Hardin/Nerthwest Union County Fire District.

Source Unicn County Auditor



TABLE 7
UNION COUNTY, OHIO
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS

DITCH MAINT & CONSTRCT
COLLECTION AMOUNT AMGOUNT PERCENT
YEAR BILLED COLLECTED COLLECTED
1999 36,610 35,515 97.01%
1998 30,063 29,377 97.72%
1997 36,481 35,899 98.40%
1996 38,795 38,425 88.06%
1985 44,551 44,511 99.91%
1994 44,893 44,445 99.00%
1993 148,466 149,455 100.67%
1992 50,916 51,760 101.66%
1991 51,384 50,838 98.94%
1990 47,954 52,607 109.70%

Source: Union County Auditor
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Assessed Value of County
Collection year 1999

Debt Limitation

Total Qutstanding Debt:
Water District Notes
Sanitary Sewer District Notes
Mortgage Loan
General Obligation Bonds
OPWC Loans

Total Quistanding Debt
Exemptions:
Water District Notes
Sanitary Sewer District Notes
Morigage Loan
General Obligation Bonds
OPWC Loans
Total Exemptions
Less: Amount in Debt Service

Net Debt Subject to Limitation

Total Legal Debt Margin

{Debt Limitation Minus Net Debt)
Source: Union County Auditor

{a} The Debt Limitation is calculated as foilows:
3% of first $100,000,000 of assessed value

UNION COUNTY, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
December 31,1999

Total Debt
Limit {a}

$ 808,231,040

18,705,776

1,500,000
3,500,000
251,597
21,705,000
116,946

27,073,543

(1,500,000)
(3,500,000)
(251,597)
(16,640,000)
{116,946)

(22,008,543)

(368,057)

4,696,043

$ 14,008,833

1-1/2% of next $200.000,000 of assessed value

2-1/2% of amount of assessed value in excess of $300,000,000

{b} The Unvoted Debt Limitation equals 1% of assessed value
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TABLE 9

Total Unvoted
Debt Limit {b}

$808,231,040

8,082,310

1,500,000
3,500,000
251,597
21,705,000
116,946

27,073,543

{1,500,000)
(3,500,000)
(251,597)
(16,640,000)
(116,946)

(22,008,543)

_ (368,057)

4,696,943

$ 3,385,367

$ 3,000,000
3,000,000
12,705,776

$ 18,705,776




UNION COUNTY, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT

Jurisdiction
The County

All Villages and Cities wholly
within the County
City of Dublin

All Townships wholly within the County

All School Districts

Marysville Exempted Village School District
North Union Local School District
Fairbanks Local School District

Tri-Rivers Joint Vocational School

Total Applicable to County

Net General
Obligation Debt

Qutstanding (a)

$ 21,705,000

4,670,000
37,970,573

885,000

566,500
738,630

Percentage
Applicable

to County (b)

100.00%

100.00%
5.84%

100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

12.40%

(a) Includes only general obligation bonded debt payable from property tax.

(b) Percentages were determined by dividing the assessed valuation of the
political subdivision located within the boundaries of the County by the
total assessed valuation of the political subdivision. The valuations used

were for the 1999 tax year.
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TABLE 10

Amount
Applicable
to County

$21,705,000

4,670,000
2,217,481

985,000

566,500
91,590

530235572
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Civilian Labor Force Estimate

Year
1980
1991
1992
1983
1984
1985
1996
1997
1598
1959

Emgloyment Unemployment

UNION COUNTY, OHIO
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

16,200
15,500
15,300
15,200
14,900
15,000
15,500
17,000
17,300
17,800

1

1999 Employment, Union County

700
700
800
,100
800
700
600
600
500
500

Month Employment Unemployment
January 18,200 700
February 17,900 600
March 17,900 500
April 17,900 500
May 18,000 400
June 18,400 500
July 18,500 500
August 18,400 500
September 17,900 500
October 17,800 400
November 17,700 400
December 17,600 500

LAST TEN YEARS

County

3.6
3.5
3.0
25
23
2.9
2.8
2.5
2.6
2.5
2.7
2.7

Source: Labor Market Information Division
Ohia Bureay of Employment Services

Columbus, Chio

Estimates are not seasonally adjusted.

Unemployment Rate

County Ohic L.S.
4.30% 5.50% 5.30%
4.50% 5.70% 5.50%

_ B.20% 8.40% 6.70%
6.50% 7.20% 7.40%
5.40% 6.50% £.80%
4.50% 5.50% 6.10%
3.80% 4.80% 5.60%
3.60% 4.60% 4.90%

- 2.90% 4.30% 4.50%
2.90% 4.30% 4.20%
Ohig

4.9

4.7

4.3

4.0

3.7

4.5

4.5

4.0

4.2

3.9

3.9

3.8
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TABLE 13

U.S.
48
4.7
4.4
4.1
4.0
45
45
4.2
4.1
3.8
3.8
37
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UNION COUNTY, OHIO
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Taxpayer - Type of Business
Honda of America Business
Ohio Power Utility
Dayton Power & Light Utility
O M Scotts & Sons Business
Ohio Edison Company Utility
United Telephone Utility
Union Rural Electric Utility
Columbia Gas of Ohio Utility
GTE North Utility
Glimcher Properties Utility

Source: Union County Auditor
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TABLE 15

Total
Assessed
Valuation

$ 53,629,680
24,521,750
11,899,980
10,687,590

7,420,710
7,124,880
6,340,840
5,433,250
3,147,550

2,171,550

$ 132,377,780




UNION COUNTY, OHIO

TEN LARGEST EMPLOYERS

EMPLOYER

Honda of America

The Scotis Company
Ranco North America
Honda R & D NA

Union County School System

Memorial Hospital of Union County
and Union Manor Nursing Home

Midwest Express
Ohio Reformatory for Women
Union County

Goodyear Tire and Rubber

DECEMBER 31, 1999

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Automobile/Motorcycle
Manufacturer (4 area plants)

L.awn Care Products
Electromechanical Controls
Technical Consultants
Education

Health Care

Tire Assem/Material Hand
Penal Institution
Government

Conveyor Belts

Source: Union County Chamber of Commerce
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TABLE 16

NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES

8,000

1,089
700
650
640

600

8557
500
340

314



UNION COUNTY, OHIO
MISCELLANEQUS STATISTICS

Date of Incorporation
County Seat
Area- Square Miles

Road Mileage
State & U.S. Highways
County Roads
Township Roads

Population (1990 Census)

Number of Households
Average Number of Persons Per Household

Number of Political Subdivisions Located in Union County
Municipalities
Villages
Townships
School Districts

Communications
Radio Stations
Daily Newspapers
Weekly Newspapers

Voter Statistics, Election of November 1999
Number of Registered Voters(Active)
Number of Voters Last General Election
Percentage of Registered Voters Voting

Union County’s Agricultural
Number of Parcels
Land in Agriculiure

Animal Claims 1999
Animal Claims Paid

Number of Dog Licenses Sold
Number of Kennels Licenses Sold
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TABLE 17

April 1, 1820
Marysville, Ohio
437

185 Miles

475 Miles

149 Miles

31,969

11,037
2.73

- )

24,080
9,113
37.80%

5,726
250,577 Acres

1 Claim
1 Claim

5,748 at $10.00 each $57,480
94 at $50.00 each $4,700
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88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140
Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

UNION COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITION

UNION COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
Thisis atrue and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Poubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
JULY 13, 2000
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